
 

***GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20**** 
**RE CORONAVIRUS COVID-19** 

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE 

GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER WHICH SUSPENDS CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
RALPH M. BROWN ACT. 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE REMOTELY AT THE JUNE 4, 2020 MEETING 

VIA LIVESTREAM. THE LINK(S) WILL BE PROVIDE 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
MEETING.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN VIA 

LIVESTREAM AT THE TIME INDICATED ON THE AGENDA. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIFIC 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN DURING THE TIME THAT ITEM IS DISCUSSED.  

 
PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
REGULAR MEETING 

           Trustees                . 
Debbie Crandell, President 
Cristy Dawson, Clerk 
John Paff 
Brian Swanson 
Jon Walton 

 DATE: Thursday, June 4, 2020 
 
 TIME: 5:30 p.m. Closed Session 
  6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 
LOCATION: VIRTUAL MEETING 
     PGUSD is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://pgusd.zoom.us/j/8314567890?pwd=bk1pejNFVzg5WTQwZWZTSjl2RVc4Zz
09 
Meeting ID: 831 456 7890 
Password: 9395093950 
 
Join by SIP 
8314567890@zoomcrc.com 
Join by H.323 
162.255.37.11 (US West) 
162.255.36.11 (US East) 
115.114.131.7 (India Mumbai) 
115.114.115.7 (India Hyderabad) 
213.19.144.110 (EMEA) 
103.122.166.55 (Australia) 
209.9.211.110 (Hong Kong SAR) 
64.211.144.160 (Brazil) 
69.174.57.160 (Canada) 
207.226.132.110 (Japan) 
Meeting ID: 831 456 7890 
Password: 9395093950 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fpgusd.zoom.us%2Fj%2F8314567890%3Fpwd%3Dbk1pejNFVzg5WTQwZWZTSjl2RVc4Zz09&sa=D&ust=1591564888338000&usg=AOvVaw198zejcWNk91Hs3CSRXKwx
https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fpgusd.zoom.us%2Fj%2F8314567890%3Fpwd%3Dbk1pejNFVzg5WTQwZWZTSjl2RVc4Zz09&sa=D&ust=1591564888338000&usg=AOvVaw198zejcWNk91Hs3CSRXKwx
mailto:8314567890@zoomcrc.com


 

  Pacific Grove Unified School District Office 
  435 Hillcrest Avenue 
  Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
 
The Board of Education welcomes you to its meetings, which are regularly scheduled for the first and third Thursdays of the month. Regular 
Board Meetings shall be adjourned by 10:00 pm, unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board.  This meeting 
may be extended no more than once and may be adjourned to a later date. Individuals who require special accommodation, including but not 
limited to an American Sign Language interpreter, accessible seating or documentation in accessible formats, should contact the 
Superintendent at least two days before the meeting date. 
 

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on 
this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the District Office located at 435 Hillcrest Avenue, Pacific Grove during normal 
business hours. 

 
AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
I. OPENING BUSINESS 

 
A. Call to Order 

 
B. Roll Call 

 
C. Adoption of Agenda 

 
Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
 
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___ 

 
II. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Identify Closed Session Topics  
The Board of Education will meet in Closed Session to consider matters appropriate for Closed 
Session in accordance with Education and Government Code. 
 
1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA for  

2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 
and its designated representatives, Billie Mankey, Song Chin-Bendib and Ralph Gómez Porras 
for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 
 

2. Planning and Preparation Meet and Confer: Confidential – Classified Management 
 

3. Planning and Preparation Meet and Confer: Management 
 
III. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION  

 
A. Report action taken in Closed Session: 

 
1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA for  

2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public school employer 
and its designated representatives, Billie Mankey, Song Chin-Bendib and Ralph Gómez Porras 
for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 
 

2. Planning and Preparation Meet and Confer: Confidential – Classified Management 



 

3. Planning and Preparation Meet and Confer: Management 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
IV. RECOGNITION  
 

Dr. Deneen Guss, Monterey County Superintendent of Schools and Harvey Kuffner, Monterey County 
Board of Education Trustee, presentation of Monterey County Board of Education Resolution No. 19-20-
18, Honoring and Recognizing Robert Down Elementary School as a 2019 National Blue Ribbon School. 
 

V. RECOGNITION OF RETIREES 
 

Matt Bell, 37 years 
Elaine DeMarco, 18 years 
Joel Drucker, 11 years 
Debby Farmer, 14 years 
Lisa Stacks, 23 years 
Maria Taschner, 32 years 
Elyse Thomas, 21 years 
Linda Williams, 26 years 

 
VI. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
A. Written Communication 
 
B. Board Member Comments 
 
C. Superintendent Report 
 
D.  PGUSD Staff Comments (Non Agenda Items) 

 
VII. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard.  The Board 
may limit comments to no more than three (3) minutes for each agenda or non-agenda item; a total time for public 
input on each item is 20 minutes, pursuant to Board Policy 9323.  Public comment will also be allowed on each 
specific action item prior to Board action thereon. This meeting of the Board of Education is a business meeting of 
the Board, conducted in public. Please note that the Brown Act limits the Board’s ability to respond to public comment. 
The Board may choose to direct items to the Administration for action or place an item on a future agenda. 

 
VIII. CONSENT AGENDA   
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and/or may have been discussed at a previous Board 
meeting.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote unless a member of the Board requests specific 
items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Agenda. Each item on the Consent Agenda approved by the Board of 
Trustees shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 
 
A. Minutes of May 21, 2020 Board Meeting 7 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) Approval of minutes as presented. 
 
 
 



 

B. Certificated Assignment Order #18   16 
Recommendation: (Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources) The Administration recommends 
adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #18. 

 
C. Classified Assignment Order #16                      18 

Recommendation:  (Billie Mankey, Director of Human Resources) The Administration recommends 
adoption of Classified Assignment Order #16. 
 

D. Memorandum of Understanding with North Monterey County Unified School District for 
Independent Study Program    20 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration  
recommends that the Board review and approve the 2020-21 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
with North Monterey County Unified School District (NMCUSD) for Independent Study Program. 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
IX.   PUBLIC HEARING I        
  

A. Public Hearing for Tentative Agreement with Pacific Grove Teacher’s Association   23 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 
that the Board hold a Public Hearing for the Tentative Agreement between the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District and the Pacific Grove Teacher’s Association (PGTA). 
 
Open Public Hearing: ______________ Close Public Hearing: ______________ 

  
X. ACTION/DISCUSSION A 
 

A. Approval of Tentative Agreement with Pacific Grove Teacher’s Association                                     32 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The Administration recommends 
that the Board review and approve the Tentative Agreement between the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District and the Pacific Grove Teacher’s Association (PGTA). 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
XI.   PUBLIC HEARING II  
  
 B. Public Hearing for the District General Fund Budget and All Other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21   41 

Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The District Administration 
recommends that the Board hold a public hearing for the District General Fund Budget and all  
other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21. 
 
Open Public Hearing: ______________ Close Public Hearing: ______________ 

 
 
 
 
 



 

XII. ACTION/DISCUSSION 
 

B. Adoption of the District General Fund Budget and All Other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21    45 
Recommendation: (Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent) The District Administration 
recommends that the Board review and adopt the District General Fund Budget and all other Funds 
for fiscal year 2020-21. 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
C.  Covid-19 Operations Written Report                              49 

Recommendation: (Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review and approve the Covid-19 Operations Written  
Report. 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
D.  Adoption of the Precalculus Textbook for 12th Grade Math, Pearson’s College Algebra and  

Trigonometry, 7th Edition (2021)                     56 
Recommendation: (Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects) The District 
Administration recommends the Board review and approve the 12th grade Precalculus course 
textbook: Pearson’s College Algebra and Trigonometry, 7th Edition (2021). 

 
Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
E. Options for July Feeding During COVID-19 Pandemic 60 

Recommendation: (Stephanie Lip, School Nutrition Director) The District Administration 
recommends the Board review and provide direction on securing meals for families in July during 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

  
F.  Approval of Measure A Education Technology Expenditures                    62 

Recommendation: (Matthew Binder, Director or Educational Technology; Jonathan Mejia, 
Technology Systems Coordinator) The District Administration recommends that the Board review 
and approve Measure A - Education Technology Bond expenditures.  

 
Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
 
 
 



 

G. Updates to Board Policies, Regulations and Exhibits from the Parents Rights Handbook 2020-21   66 
Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The District Administration  
recommends that the Board review and approve the updates to Board Policies, Regulations and 
Exhibits from the Parents Rights Handbook.  

 
Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
H. Board Calendar/Future Meetings    180 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  
that the Board review and possibly modify meeting dates on the attached calendar and determine,  
given information from the Administration, whether additional Board dates or modifications need 
to be established.  

 
Move: _____________ Second: _____________ Roll Call Vote:  ___________ 
  
Trustees:   Crandell  ___    Dawson  ___   Paff ___    Swanson  ___    Walton ___     

 
XIII. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 
A. District Update on Response to COVID-19 183 

The District Administration will update the Board, staff and community on current District  
response and protocols to COVID-19. 
 
Board Direction:  

 
B. Future Agenda Items  184 

Recommendation: (Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent) The Administration recommends  
that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct Administration to add items to  
the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 
• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (TBD) 
• Board requested teacher housing (TBD) 
• Board requested review of current District committees (Will be addressed through District  

Newsletter/Update) 
• A member of the public requested SELPA present on Special Education (Fall 2020) 
• Board requested utility bills costs (electric and water) by school site (2020-21) 
 

Board Direction:  
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Next regular Board meeting: June 18, 2020 – District Office 



 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Minutes of Regular Meeting of May 21, 2020 – District Office 

 
I. OPENED BUSINESS    
 

A. Called to Order   5:00 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call  President: Trustee Crandell 
  Clerk: Trustee Dawson 
  Trustees Present: Trustee Paff 
   Trustee Swanson 

Trustee Walton 
  Administration Present: Superintendent Porras 
   Asst. Superintendent Chin-Bendib 
  Board Recorder: Mandi Ackerman 
 Student Board Member: Adrian Clark 
 

C. Adopted Agenda 
 

MOTION Swanson/Crandell to adopt agenda as presented. 
Public comment:  none  
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 3 – 0 
 
Trustee Paff and Trustee Walton were unable to vote due to a technology issue. 

 
II. CLOSED SESSION   
 

A. Identified Closed Session Topics  
 
1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA 

for 2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public 
school employer and its designated representatives, Matt Bell, Song Chin-Bendib and 
Ralph Gómez Porras, for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 
2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA 

for 2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)] Executive session between the public 
school employer and its designated representatives, Billie Mankey, Song Chin-Bendib 
and Ralph Gómez Porras for the purpose of giving direction and updates. 

 
3. Continue Superintendent Evaluation  
 

B. Public comment on Closed Session Topics 
 
None.  

 
C. Adjourned to Closed Session  5:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 7



 

 

III. RECONVENED IN OPEN SESSION  6:31 p.m.  
 
A. Reported action taken in Closed Session: 
 

1. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the PGTA  
for 2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)]  

 
The Board received information and discussed this item.  

 
2. Negotiations - Collective Bargaining Session planning and preparation with the CSEA  

for 2019-20 [Government Code § 3549.1 (d)]  
 

The Board received information and gave direction to Administration.  
 

3. Continue Superintendent Evaluation  
 

The Board discussed this item.  
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance Led By: Trustee Crandell 
 

IV. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Written Communication 
 

The Board received email communications regarding Local Control Accountability Plan; 
concerns regarding COVID-19 and Fall reopening of schools; reconfiguration; public 
comment regarding the last meeting.  

 
B. Board Member Comments 
 

Trustee Crandell thanked Pacific Grove Middle School Teacher Brice Gamble for 
representing the District in the documentary on KSBW on the 9,000 8th graders from 
Monterey County that attended the Hamilton play.  
 
Trustee Dawson thanked the teachers, students, and families during this challenging time. 
 
Trustee Paff noted the many school events that were scheduled during this time but were 
cancelled due to COVID-19, and said this will pass. 
 
Trustee Swanson thanked everyone during this time; spoke about the senior awards ceremony 
video.  
 
Trustee Walton noted how generous everyone has been; thanked the staff, teachers and 
parents who are part of the Task Force teams; is excited for the Pacific Grove High School 
graduation at Laguna Seca.  
 
Pacific Grove High School Student Representative Adrian Clark noted this would be his last 
Board meeting; said the awards night ceremony video was amazing; announced Gabriel 
Geraldo will be the new ASB president next year.  
 
Trustee Crandell thanked Student Representative Clark for his work on the Board.  

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 8



 

 

C. Superintendent Report 
 

Superintendent Porras congratulated Student Representative Clark for his work on the Board, 
saying he was articulate, intelligent, and represented the student body well.  
 
Superintendent Porras also acknowledged California School Employees Association week, 
thanking the aides, custodians, maintenance, grounds, food service, librarians and support 
staff for their work.  
 

D. PGUSD Staff Comments (Non Agenda Items) 
 

Pacific Grove High School Principal Matt Bell spoke about the senior awards ceremony 
video, thanking Counselor Kristin Paris and Librarian Alex Morrison for their work; said it 
was a great presentation and noted the students were awarded $220,000 in awards; the link is 
on the high school website under Counseling; noted the high school graduation ceremony 
would take place at Laguna Seca with a slow lap around the track.  
 
Director of Curriculum and Special Projects Ani Silva spoke about the District Advisory 
group and LCAP for 2020-21.  
 
Pacific Grove Middle School Principal Sean Roach said the 6th grade teachers were virtually 
meeting with the 5th grade class in preparation for next school year; thanked the custodians 
for their help during the locker distribution efforts.  
 
Robert Down Elementary School Principal Sean Keller thanked the parents for reaching out 
regarding Fall reopening of schools. 
 
Robert Down Elementary School Teacher Cristina Renteria thanked Principal Sean Keller. 
 
Forest Grove Elementary School Principal Buck Roggeman echoed Principal Keller’s 
sentiments, thanking the parent community for their input regarding the Fall reopening of 
schools.  
 
Robert Down Elementary School Teacher Erica Chavez congratulated the PGTA scholarship 
recipients Robertson Rice, Juliet Perlstein, Wendy Roach, and Tyler Smithtro. 
 
State Preschool Teacher Diane Beron announced the State Preschool received a 5-star rating 
from Quality Matters of Monterey County. 
 

V. INDIVIDUALS DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD   
 
Elliott thanked all the teachers that have had to serve as tech support and educators in these tough 
times. Our teachers have kept our kid’s anxiety way down which I cannot thank them for enough 

 
Sarah Chavez said Ms. McBride has been amazing during distance learning with her 8th Grade 
students. She has sent personal notes home to the students. Enclosed in the notes are stickers and 
kind comments. It is amazing how this small gift is a token of gold for a middle school student. 

 
Jessica Thompson thanked the District for the great communication and asked that the District 
continue the updates. 
 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 9



 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA    
 
A. Minutes of May 7, 2020 Board Meeting 
B. Certificated Assignment Order #17   
C. Classified Assignment Order #15 
D. Warrant Schedules No. 619 
E. Acceptance of Quarterly Treasurer’s Report  
F. E-Waste Pacific Grove Unified School District Equipment 
    

 MOTION Swanson/Paff to approve consent agenda as presented. 
Public comment:  none  
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0  
 

VII.  PUBLIC HEARING 
  

A. Public Hearing of the Precalculus Textbook for 12th Grade Math, Pearson’s College Algebra 
and Trigonometry, 7th Edition (2021)    
 
Open Public Hearing: 6:55 p.m. Close Public Hearing: 7:09 p.m. 

 
Director of Curriculum and Special Projects Ani Silva presented information to the Board. 
The Board asked questions about textbooks and distance learning. The Board discussed this 
item with Director Silva and Pacific Grove High School Teacher Isaac Rubin.  
 
Public comment:  none  
 

VIII. ACTION/DISCUSSION  
 
A. Special Education Billback Agreement for 2020-21 

 
Assistant Superintendent Song Chin-Bendib presented information to the Board. The Board 
asked questions and discussed this item, with input from Director of Student Services Clare 
Davies.  
 

Public comment:   
The Zeidbergs thanked Director Davies and the Special Education program.  

 
MOTION Dawson/Paff to approve the Special Education Billback Agreement for 
2020-21. 
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 10



 

 

B. Monterey County Office of Education Wide Area Network Memorandum of Understanding  
Consortium Contract Services    
 

District Technology Systems Coordinator Jonathan Mejia provided a high-level summary to 
the Board.  
 

MOTION Dawson/Crandell to approve the Monterey County Office of Education 
Wide Area Network Memorandum of Understanding Consortium Contract 
Services. 
Public comment:  none  
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0 

 
C. Projection of Summer Feeding During COVID-19 Pandemic 
 

Director of Nutrition Stephanie Lip presented information to the Board. The Board asked 
questions and discussed this item.  

 
Public comment:   
Kathleen Lee thanked Trustee Paff for acknowledging the difficult reality that food 
insecurity is such an issue in our community. Our hospitality industry and overall 
community have been so hard hit, and we are increasingly seeing more and more families 
rely on food banks, food pantries and school lunches to feed not just the children but the 
whole family. Any support for feeding children throughout the year is a deeply humane 
and important priority.  
 
Jonathan Mejia said he has been helping to distribute meals since the beginning of all this 
and day after day families have mentioned to us that this really makes the difference in 
them getting by or not making it. 
 
Aimee noted with unemployment affecting every 1in 5 individuals she agreed with 
Trustee Paff, suggested reaching out to families to see if we could get additional parent 
participation to help. The boards consideration for using funds from the general fund 
would greatly help the families\kiddos attending PGUSD schools. 
 
Chris Evans suggested I believe it would be a good idea to partner with local businesses 
with very specific guidelines. Asked who would get the meal coupons and how do you 
hand them out? 
 
Sara Birkett suggested partnering with the Salvation Army. 
 
Joey Houde said currently any PGUSD student is provided a meal, and asked if it would 
cut down on cost to provide only to families who qualify? Suggested bringing in a volunteer 
organization like Nation Charity League to distribute meals. 
 
Karinne Gordon suggested using a volunteer pool to distribute food including PGUSD 
staff.  
 
Director Ani Silva suggested more volunteers are needed for food distribution. 
 
Heloisa Junqueira said it was a great idea to partner with local restaurants.  
 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 11



 

 

Irene Valdez thanked the District for providing meals and making a difference to families. 
 
Kristin Sells worried about how the money would stretch if using local restaurants.   
 
MOTION Crandell/Paff to approve the Summer Feeding program during COVID-
19 and directed Administration to come back to the Board for food distribution for 
July.  
Motion CARRIED by roll call vote 5 – 0 
 

D. Board Calendar/Future Meetings   
 
No action taken.  
Public comment:  none  
 

IX. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 
A. District Update on Response to COVID-19  
 

Superintendent Porras spoke about receiving information from Monterey County Office of 
Education, Monterey County Health Department; the amount of student that may be allowed 
per classroom (12); said students may be brought in as cohorts; creating a schedule that 
accommodates physical distancing (term replacing social distancing); cohorts are not allowed 
to mix; facial coverings and mask requirements; providing protective gear for teachers and 
students; no large gatherings such as multipurpose rooms, libraries, cafeterias, only small 
gatherings; no playgrounds or outdoor tables; staff safety is important; discussed options such 
as pure distance learning or blended learning; noted if there is a case of COVID, the Health 
Department will direct the District on how to proceed; advisory task force groups have 
formed and are meeting; reconfiguration was discussed; teachers are rising to the challenge.  
 
The Board discussed this item.  
 
More information will be provided and discussed at the Special Board Meeting on June 2, 
2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
 

Public comment:   
Kilene Brosseau asked if a blended program is adopted, will families be able to send their 
children to BASRP on days that their children are not physically in attendance at school? 

 
Tina Tavares said she agrees with Brosseau, asked what childcare options will be 
available for parents working full time? 

 
Brittany Brubaker asked if reconfiguration is being considered, what considerations are 
being taken surround the mental health ramifications this would have on the students? 
She said the students have already suffered so much loss this year, and fears the loss of 
the anchor to their school community, peers and staff would interrupt emotional healing 
and defer their ability to grow academically. How is the district prepared to handle this? 

 
From iPhone asked if the CDC and Monterey County Office of Education guidelines are 
being treated as mandates and not recommendations? Suggested Superintendent Porras 
was speaking as if the CDC guidelines are what must be followed until we hear 
otherwise. 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 12



 

 

Kristin Sells said teaching online is a novel skill for many teachers, some have excelled 
and some have struggled with this new medium. Suggested the District over estimate 
rather than underestimate time needed for teacher training. 

 
Jessica Thompson asked about the full day preschool/daycare program located at the 
adult school campus and plans for that? 

 
Kilene Brosseau said as a teacher in the District, she would prefer to have more training 
on distance learning options in June/July, as opposed to the week before school starts to 
work out any kinks and have time to play around with the programs. Will that be an 
option for teachers? 

 
Elliott said he is extremely concerned that teachers may have to teach distance and in 
person which seems like more than two jobs; agrees with a comment made earlier that 
there is need for standardization of platforms for distance learning which would be 
critical for sanity of all; if there is some form of blended learning, a lot of thought should 
go in to what is most important to prioritize for this face time. 

 
Joey Houde asked if the Board is discussing reconfiguration this evening? Said it is a big 
topic of concern among the community. 
 
Sarah Boyle asked the Board to consider giving each school site the autonomy to choose 
which platform will work best for their site and students. Google classroom may work 
well for High School and Middle but is far from ideal for our K‐5 students.  
 
Heloisa Junqueira said the District needs to develop back to school plans for students 
with special medical needs that put them in high risk of developing severe Covid‐19 
related disease. 

 
Kristy asked if there is a possibility of testing all students and staff before starting 
school? 
 
Nargess A said as a parent with elementary school kids, believes consistency and stability 
are on the forefront of what we are looking to our school for‐ and don't believe that any 
elementary school reconfigurations, AT THIS TIME, align with that nor would it address 
the pressing directive of physical social distancing schools need to comply with. 

 
Zee Smith asked how will elementary students be expected to wear masks? Suggested 
they will cause students to touch their faces or fidget all the time. Asked what would be 
the penalty if a child breaks social distance? How will staff offer students comfort with 
distance? How will students go to a new school if necessary when their whole worlds 
have been uprooted? Consistency is key. 

 
Jeannie Traback thanked Superintendent Porras and Trustee Walton; said there will need 
to be multiple options happening at the same time next year. Asked how to empower 
parents with their children’s education next year? Asked if it was possible to make 
PGUSD charter school option for parents who ultimately want to end up back at their 
local schools but choose homeschool? 

 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 13



 

 

Kirsten Raven agreed with some comments above, expressed gratitude to all teachers, 
staff and others who are working so hard in this very difficult time. Thanked the District 
for holding space for parents as we catch up in our minds to a whole new reality. 

 
Margaret Rice said as we look at cohorts and alternate schedules, it is critical the Distrcit 
address issues of equity in the groups. To meet that need, hard choices, such as 
adjusting/limiting the course offerings to provide for the greater good. 

 
Sara Birkett said we have many employees with children in the district, asked will the 
Reopening Task Forces also consider their unique situations? 

 
Dave Li agreed with Zee, asked how to keep kids wearing masks and avoid touching their 
faces, eyes and mouths. Said even with 12 kids in a class, still cannot keep social 
distance, how can we avoid those people might not have symptoms? 

 
Trustee Crandell encouraged the public to attend the virtual Special Board meeting on June 2, at 
5:30 p.m. 
 
B. Pacific Grove Unified School District Year-End Safety Update                                 
 

Director of Student Safety Barbara Martinez provided a review of suspension and expulsions 
for the current school year. 
 

Public comment:  none  
 

C. The Governor’s May Revision of the 2020-21 State Budget          
 

Assistant Superintendent Song Chin-Bendib presented information to the Board. The Board 
asked questions and discussed this item. 
 

Public comment:   
Jessica Thompson thank Assistant Superintendent Chin-Bendib for the budget review, 
said it was important to note that some of the largest cuts proposed by the Governor were 
a message to DC as they start negotiating the fourth relief package that is expected to 
contain significant support for states, hopefully a big chunk earmarked for education. The 
House of Reps put out a bill that spends $3T but US Senate leadership indicated today 
that they want to spend no more than $1T but ultimately know that the May Revise may 
be more severe at this point than it ends up.  
 
Jeannie Traback asked if parents do opt out of the District and into local charters for 
“homeschool” how will that affect the budget for next year? 

                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 14



 

 

D. Future Agenda Items   
• Re-Opening/ Distance Learning Update Special Meeting (Late May/Early June) 
• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (TBD) 
• Board requested teacher housing (TBD) 
• Board requested review of current District committees (Will be addressed through 

District Newsletter/Update) 
• A member of the public requested SELPA present on Special Education (Fall 2020) 
• Board requested utility bills costs (electric and water) by school site (2020-21) 
 

The Board added a Special Board Meeting regarding re-opening of schools and distance 
learning on Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
The summer food program will return at the regular Board meeting on Thursday, June 4, 
2020.  
 

Public comment:  none  
 

The Board thanked the 125 members of the public that joined the meeting virtually. 
 

Student Representative Adrian Clark made closing remarks including thanking the District for the 
graduation ceremony at Laguna Seca; discussed his experience on the Board and thanked the 
Board for allowing him to grow as a speaker, leader and listener.  
 

X.  ADJOURNED ____________________________ 
 

 Approved and submitted: 
 
 ______________________________ 
 
 Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 
 Secretary to the Board 

CONSENT A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 15



☒Consent  
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Action/Discussion 

 
SUBJECT: Certificated Assignment Order #18 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020            
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  

 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends adoption of Certificated Assignment Order #18. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 
Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 
for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 
announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 
websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 
the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 
confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 
religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  
 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Persons listed in the Certificated Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Funding has been approved and allocated for these items. 
 

CONSENT B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 16



 
PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT   

CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 18 
June 4, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
NEW HIRE: 
Lito Garcia, PGHS, Principal, full-time, 1.0 FTE, Management Salary Schedule Step 6, effective 
July 1, 2020 (replaces retiree Matt Bell) 
 
Valerie Hooper, PGMS, Math teacher, full time, 1.0 FTE, Column IV Step 2, + MA, effective 
July 31, 2020 (replaces retiree Elaine DeMarco) 
 
TEMPORARY NEW HIRE: 
Angelee Brockmeyer, RDE, Temporary Elementary (4th Grade), 1.0 FTE, Column IV, Step 8, + 
MA, effective July 31, 2020 through May 28, 2021 only (based on student enrollment) 
 
TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT RENEWAL/INCREASE IN ASSIGNMENT: 
Jenn Erickson, PGHS, CTE Culinary Teacher, from 1.0 FTE to 1.2 FTE, Column III, Step 7, 
effective August 2, 2020 through May 28, 2021 only (increase is CTEIG funded) 
 
Matt Kelly, PGHS, CTE Art Teacher, 0.60 FTE, Column VI, Step 27, effective August 2, 2020 
through May 28, 2021 only 
 
Tony Payan, PGHS, CTE Medical Occupations Teacher, Column VI/12 + MA, effective August 
2, 2020 through May 28, 2021 only 
 
Celia Lara, PGHS, CTE Photography Teacher, Column VI/9+MA, effective August 2, 2020 
through May 28, 2021 only 
 
2020 SUMMER SCHOOL STAFFING, June 4, 2020 through June 31, 2020 

EMPLOYEE POSITION HOURS FUNDING 
Revised; Patty 
Bloomer, Andrea 
Webb 

Shared Summer School 
Teaching Position 

.50 FTE 
2 weeks each 

Paid per time sheet at 
the hourly 
instructional rate, GF 

 
RETIREMENT: 
Linda Williams, RDE Teacher and former Principal, retires after 26 years of successful service 
with the Pacific Grove Unified School District, effective May 30, 2020 

CONSENT B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 17



☒Consent  
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Action/Discussion 

 
SUBJECT: Classified Assignment Order #16 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020   
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Billie Mankey, Director II, Human Resources  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

           Page 1 of 2 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The administration recommends adoption of Classified Assignment Order #16 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Under Board Policies #4200 and #4211, the Human Resource Office is directed by the 
Superintendent and the Board of Education to employ the most highly qualified person available 
for each position.  Recruitment and selection procedures include dissemination of vacancy 
announcements to newspapers, trade journals, the internet through the Pacific Grove Unified 
School District website, Monterey County Office of Education website and other recruitment 
websites in California.  The recommendation to hire a selected candidate is made after weighing 
the information obtained by the complete application package, the interview process, and 
confidential reference checks.  No inquiry is made with regard to the age, sex, race, color, 
religion, national origin, disability or sexual orientation.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Persons listed in the Classified Assignment Order are being recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment in the District.  No individual is recommended to the Board of 
Education for employment prior to receipt of the criminal background summary.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Funding has been approved and allocated for these items.  

CONSENT C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 18



PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ASSIGNMENT ORDER NO. 16 

June 4, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 
RETIREMENT: 
Maria Taschner, BASRP Recreation Attendant, 4 hrs./day/180-day work calendar and PGHS 
Food Service II, 3.25 hrs./day/180-day work calendar retires effective May 29, 2020 after 32 
successful years of service with the Pacific Grove Unified School District 

CONSENT C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 19



☒Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
 
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding with North Monterey County Unified School  

District for Independent Study Program 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE: Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the 2020-21 Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) with North Monterey County Unified School District (NMCUSD) for 
Independent Study Program. 
 
BACKGROUND and INFORMATION: 
 
For many years the district has housed the Independent Study Program which is under the 
direction of North Monterey County Unified.  This program currently meets in Room E-3 at the 
David Avenue site.  The lease payment is $1 per year, plus $100 per month for custodial 
services.   
 
In return for the nominal lease agreement, Pacific Grove students who wish to attend an 
independent study program may attend theirs by applying for an inter-district transfer.  In the 
2019-20 school year, there are four PGUSD students who have transferred to independent study 
for various reasons. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 

CONSENT D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 20



Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Between 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
and 

North Monterey County Unified School District 
 

A.  PURPOSE 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter called “MOU”) is to 
establish and document a relationship between Pacific Grove Unified School District 
(PGUSD) and North Monterey County Unified School District (NMCUSD), hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Parties,” for the purpose of creating a lease agreement to 
benefit students in the NMCUSD Independent Study Program.  The NMCUSD Independent 
Study Program agrees to accept students from PGUSD who meet the requirements agreed 
upon by both parties. 
 
B.  PREMISES 
For the purposes of this MOU, the premises are identified as Classroom #E-3 at the David 
Avenue School, 1004 David Avenue, Pacific Grove, CA  93950. 
 
C.  LEASE TERM 
The lease term shall be July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 
D.  LEASE DEPOSIT AND PAYMENT 
For use of the premises, NMCUSD will pay to PGUSD a lease deposit in the amount of 
$1,000 and a lease payment in the amount of $1 per year.  In addition, NMCUSD will pay 
PGUSD $100 per month for basic custodial services. 
 
E. USE OF PREMISES 
NMCUSD accepts full responsibility for the use of the premises during the term of this lease.  
PGUSD understands only that NMCUSD proposes to conduct an independent study program 
within the premises and takes no responsibility for said operation. 
 
F.  PREMISES CONDITION 
NMCUSD accepts the condition of the premises as is and in no way expects PGUSD to 
modify the existing condition of the premises as a condition of this lease agreement. 
 
G.  TERMINATION 
PGUSD shall, at its sole discretion, have the right to terminate this agreement subject to a  
90-day written notice, which must be provided to NMCUSD prior to April 1, of each year. 
 
H.  AUTHORIZED REPRESENATIVES 
Correspondence and communication regarding this agreement and use of the premises shall 
be conducted only through authorized representatives of PGUSD and NMCUSD and shall not 
be delegated to persons who are not employees of PGUSD or NMCUSD. 
 
I. INDEMNIFICATION 
PGUSD shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend North Monterey County Unified School 
District, Independent Study, and its trustees, officers, employees and agents from and against 
every claim, demand and/or liability which may be made by reason of the negligent acts or 
omission(s) of the Pacific Grove Unified School District in its performance of this MOU. 

CONSENT D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 21



 
North Monterey County Unified School District shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend 
PGUSD and its trustees, officers, employees and agents from and against every claim, 
demand and/or liability which may be made by reason of the negligent acts or omission(s) of 
North Monterey County Unified School District, Independent Study, and/or its employees or 
agents in their performance of this MOU. 
 
J. INSURANCE 
North Monterey County Unified School District shall at its sole cost and expense, procure 
and maintain throughout the term of this MOU policies of general liability insurance and 
property and casualty insurance during the performance of the MOU.  
 

1. Comprehensive General Liability insurance providing coverage against claims for 
Bodily Injury or Death, and Property Damage.  Such insurance shall provide 
protection to the limit of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for Bodily 
Injury and Property Damage. 

2. Workers’ Compensation insurance statutory coverage including Employers Liability 
with limits of not less than $1,000,000. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability with limits not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage, including 
coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles.  
 

North Monterey County Unified School District shall notify Pacific Grove Unified School 
District at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or non-renewal of any such insurance. 
 
 
 
Agreement to the above conditions and acceptance of this MOU is confirmed by the execution 
of the document by the authorized representatives below. 
 
 
Authorized Representative, PGUSD      Date 
 
 
Authorized Representative, NMCUSD     Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CONSENT D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 22



☐Consent
☒Action/Discussion
☐Information/Discussion
☐Public Hearing

SUBJECT:  Public Hearing of Tentative Agreements with Pacific Grove Teachers Association  

DATE:  June 4, 2020 

PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends that the Board hold a public hearing for the Tentative 
Agreements between the Pacific Grove Unified School District and the Pacific Grove Teachers 
Association (PGTA) 

BACKGROUND: 
All changes to contracts between the District and employee groups require a public hearing and approval 
by the Board. In addition, AB 1200 requires the District to submit details of all negotiated salary 
agreements to the Monterey County Office of Education (MCOE) for their review and approval ten days 
prior to the Board action. 

INFORMATION: 
MCOE has reviewed and approved the AB 1200 documents reflecting the compensation settlement 
agreement between Pacific Grove USD and PG TA. 

There are two Tentative Agreements: one is for non-compensation and the second one, compensation: 
1. An agreement effective for the 2019-20 school year, to the following changes in the Master

Contract Agreement between Pacific Grove Unified School District and Pacific Grove Teachers
Association July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2019:

a. VIII. Hours of Employment
b. VII. Organizational Security
c. V: Leaves

2. The Pacific Grove Unified School District (District) and the Pacific Grove Teachers Association (
PG TA) agree to resolve all issues regarding compensation for the 2019-2020 school year on the
following terms and conditions:

a. The District will increase the PG TA base salary schedules (Exhibits 4 and 5) by two
percent (2.00%) retroactive to July 1, 2019

b. In addition, the District will increase its contribution for health insurance premiums by
$350 per year for employee-only raising the amount of district contribution to $3,350
(from $3,000) and raising the amount of dependent coverage to $4,624 (from $4,274)

FISCAL IMPACT:  
2019-20  # 2.a. =  $353,667 
2019-20  #2.b. = $37,153 

Total for 2019-20 = $390,820 

PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 23



 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

In accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/1991), GC 3547.5 and 
CCR, Title V, Section 15449, the Pacific Grove Unified School 
District Governing Board will hold a public hearing on Thursday, 
June 4, 2020, regarding  

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS FOR 

PACIFIC GROVE TEACHERS 
ASSOCIATION (PGTA) 

The hearing will be held during the regular Board meeting, which 
begins at 6:30 p.m. Please visit our website at www.pgusd.org for the 
link to attend the meeting virtually. 

Copies of the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be available for 
public viewing beginning June 1, 2020, through June 4, 2020. For 
more information, please contact Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant 
Superintendent for Business Services at 646-6509. 

Posted: May 29, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue     Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

Ralph Gomez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520
Fax (831) 646-6500
rporras@pgusd.org

Song Chin-Bendib 
Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 
(831) 646-6509
schinbendib@pgusd.org www.pgusd.org 

PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 24

http://www.pgusd.org/


PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 25



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 26



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 27



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 28



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 29



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 30



PUBLIC HEARING A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 31



☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Tentative Agreements with Pacific Grove Teachers Association  
 
DATE:  June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the Tentative Agreements 
between the Pacific Grove Unified School District and the Pacific Grove Teachers Association (PGTA) 
 
BACKGROUND: 
All changes to contracts between the District and employee groups require a public hearing and approval 
by the Board. In addition, AB 1200 requires the District to submit details of all negotiated salary 
agreements to the Monterey County Office of Education (MCOE) for their review and approval ten days 
prior to the Board action. 
 
INFORMATION: 
MCOE has reviewed and approved the AB 1200 documents reflecting the compensation settlement 
agreement between Pacific Grove USD and PG TA. 
 
There are two Tentative Agreements: one is for non-compensation and the second one, compensation: 

1. An agreement effective for the 2019-20 school year, to the following changes in the Master 
Contract Agreement between Pacific Grove Unified School District and Pacific Grove Teachers 
Association July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2019: 

a. VIII. Hours of Employment 
b. VII. Organizational Security 
c. V: Leaves 

 
2. The Pacific Grove Unified School District (District) and the Pacific Grove Teachers Association ( 

PG TA) agree to resolve all issues regarding compensation for the 2019-2020 school year on the 
following terms and conditions: 

a. The District will increase the PG TA base salary schedules (Exhibits 4 and 5) by two 
percent (2.00%) retroactive to July 1, 2019 

b. In addition, the District will increase its contribution for health insurance premiums by 
$350 per year for employee-only raising the amount of district contribution to $3,350 
(from $3,000) and raising the amount of dependent coverage to $4,624 (from $4,274) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
2019-20  # 2.a. =  $353,667 
2019-20  #2.b. = $37,153 
 
Total for 2019-20 = $390,820 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 32



 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

In accordance with AB 1200 (Chapter 1213/1991), GC 3547.5 and 
CCR, Title V, Section 15449, the Pacific Grove Unified School 
District Governing Board will hold a public hearing on Thursday, 
June 4, 2020, regarding  

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS FOR 

PACIFIC GROVE TEACHERS 
ASSOCIATION (PGTA) 

The hearing will be held during the regular Board meeting, which 
begins at 6:30 p.m. Please visit our website at www.pgusd.org for the 
link to attend the meeting virtually. 

Copies of the Collective Bargaining Agreement will be available for 
public viewing beginning June 1, 2020, through June 4, 2020. For 
more information, please contact Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant 
Superintendent for Business Services at 646-6509. 

Posted: May 29, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue     Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

Ralph Gomez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520
Fax (831) 646-6500
rporras@pgusd.org

Song Chin-Bendib
Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 
(831) 646-6509
schinbendib@pgusd.org www.pgusd.org 

ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 33

http://www.pgusd.org/


ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 34



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 35



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 36



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 37



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 38



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 39



ACTION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 40



☐Consent
☒Action/Discussion
☐Information/Discussion
☐Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Public Hearing of the District General Fund Budget and All Other Funds for fiscal year 
2020-21 

DATE: June 4, 2020 

PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The District Administration recommends that the Board hold a public hearing for the District General 
Fund Budget and all other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21. 

BACKGROUND: 

The District Adopted Budget is a reflection of the education programs of the District expressed in terms 
of the allocation of financial resources. The General Fund Adopted Budget includes anticipated revenues 
and the distribution of those revenues among educational programs and support services. Assumptions are 
developed to ensure that the final budget documents, General Fund and Other Funds, are a complete and 
accurate reflection of the intent of the Board. 

INFORMATION: 

On April 23, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-56-20 focused on easing 
requirements, because of impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic, for local educational agencies (LEAs) 
to complete their Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAPs) for 2020-21. Under the Executive 
Order, the deadline for an LEA governing body to adopt their LCAP is extended from July 1, 2020 to 
December 15, 2020. The delay in adoption of the LCAP effectively uncouples the LCAP from the local 
adopted budget for 2020-21. The Executive Order does not waive the requirements for EC 52062 
specifically; however, the requirements to hold the public hearing and adopt the local district budget by 
July 1 in EC 42147(a) are still in effect. Because of the decoupling of the LCAP from the Budget 
approval process, local school districts have the discretion of holding the annual public hearing on the 
budget either within the same governing board meeting at which the budget is adopted or at a previous 
public meeting of the board. 

The attached budget documents include the most recent set of assumptions regarding enrollment, State 
Teacher Retirement System (STRS) and Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) employer 
contribution rates, property tax revenue, staffing and other pertinent factors (Budget Details) that were 
used in preparing the final 2020-21 Adopted Budget.  

Below are some key components of the 2020-21 Adopted Budget: 

1) Enrollment: District enrollment is projected at 1,968 students, a decrease of 7 students from 2019-
20. 

PUBLIC HEARING B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 41



2) STRS and PERS employer contribution rates:  
a. Current CalSTRS employer contribution rate that has been approved by the Legislature is 

18.40%. At the May Revision, the Governor has proposed a buy- down of 2.25% to 16.15%. 
Additionally, a reduction of 2.08% for 2021-22 from 18.10% to 16.02% has been proposed. 
These adjustments are subject to the state Legislature’s approval and have not been 
incorporated into the 2020-21 budge yet. 

b. Current CalPERS rate that has been approved by the CalPERS Board is 22.68%. At the May 
Revision, Governor Newsom proposed a reduction of 1.98% from 22.68% to 20.7% for 2020-
21, and 1.76% from 24.6% to 22.84% for 2021-22. These have not been incorporated into the 
budget yet subject to final approval 

3) Property Tax Revenue: Property tax revenue for 2020-21 is projected at $29,254,823 
• This represents an increase of 4% over the 2019-20 Second Interim property tax 

projections with actual receipts up to December 2019; since then the April 2020 property 
tax receipts came in much lower than projected 

• This same projected tax revenue represents a 6.01% over actual receipts up to May 2020; 
if the late collections and/or delinquencies do not materialize, there is over $550,000 in 
tax revenue that will need to be adjusted down. 
Note: The Assessor advised projecting a zero percent, “0 %”, increase for 2021-22 but 
the Administration is projecting a 2% at this point.  

4) Categorical Funding: In 2013-14, all of the state categoricals were combined into one LCFF line 
item, which was then reduced by the Fair Share deduction. 

5) Site Allocations: the pupil rate stays at $140, the same rate for the last two fiscal years. 
Preliminary distribution is at 97% of the projected enrollment data and will be adjusted to reflect 
actual CBEDs in October. 

6) General Fund: Operating surplus is projected at $804,647 while the Unrestricted Reserve level is 
projected at 14.8%. This has NOT incorporated the 2% plus $350 per eligible FTE settlement 
with PG TA due to the timing of the budget adoption timeline 

7) Other Funds for 2020-21: 
a) Adult Education Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $805,084 
b) Child Development Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $44,861 
c) Cafeteria Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $14,408 
d) Deferred Maintenance Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $101,565 
e) Postemployment Benefits Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $6,084 
f) Building Fund (Education Technology) – Projected Fund Balance is $1,578,671 
g) Capital Outlay Projects Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $176,596 

8) Salaries and Benefits: Salary negotiations with the Pacific Grove Teachers Association (PG TA) 
have been settled for 2019-20 but not with the following groups: 

• California School Employees Association (CSEA)  
• Management group 
• Confidential group 

Due to the timing of the production of the Adopted Budget and review of the AB 1200 documents 
for PG TA by the Monterey County Office of Education (MCOE), the compensation costs have 
not been incorporated into the 2020-21 Adopted Budget yet. 

  
Per Education Code Sections 42127(a)(2)(C) and 42127(c)(4), the District is required to complete a 
“Statement of Reasons for Excess Reserves” as part of the Adopted Budget documents. Although a school 
district reserve cap is not currently in effect, a provision of the law relating to reserves was implemented 
commencing with the 2015-16 fiscal year and continues to be in effect for budgets adopted each fiscal 
year thereafter. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 42



If the combined amounts in the Components of Ending Fund Balance exceed the District’s minimum 
reserve requirement of 3%, the District is required to present at the public hearing and Adoption Budget a 
statement of reasons for excess reserve.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Fiscal impact for each fund is contained within the Fund Balances. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 43



 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

 

Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520 
Fax (831) 646-6500 
rporras@pgusd.org 

Song Chin-Bendib 
Assistant Superintendent 
(831) 646-6509 
Fax (831) 646-6582 
schinbendib@pgusd.org 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

Pursuant to California Education Code § 42127 and § 42103, the 
Pacific Grove Unified School District Governing Board will hold 
a public hearing on Thursday, June 4, 2020 regarding 

 
ADOPTION OF THE 2020-21 BUDGET 

 
The hearing will be held during the regular Board meeting, which begins at 
6:30 p.m. Please visit our website at www.pgusd.org for the link to attend 
the meeting virtually. 

 
Copies of the Budget will be available for public viewing beginning 
June 1, 2020 through June 4, 2019 at the District Office. For more 
information, please contact Song Chin-Bendib, A s s i s t a n t  
Superintendent at 646-6509. 

 
 
 

Posted: May 21, 2020 

PUBLIC HEARING B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 44

mailto:rporras@pgusd.org
mailto:schinbendib@pgusd.org
http://www.pgusd.org/


☒Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of the District General Fund Budget and All Other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON RESPONSIBLE:  Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent for Business Services  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends that the Board review and adopt the District General Fund 
Budget and all other Funds for fiscal year 2020-21. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District Adopted Budget is a reflection of the education programs of the District expressed in terms 
of the allocation of financial resources. The General Fund Adopted Budget includes anticipated revenues 
and the distribution of those revenues among educational programs and support services. Assumptions are 
developed to ensure that the final budget documents, General Fund and Other Funds, are a complete and 
accurate reflection of the intent of the Board. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
On April 23, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-56-20 focused on easing 
requirements, because of impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic, for local educational agencies (LEAs) 
to complete their Local Control and Accountability Plans (LCAPs) for 2020-21. Under the Executive 
Order, the deadline for an LEA governing body to adopt their LCAP is extended from July 1, 2020 to 
December 15, 2020. The delay in adoption of the LCAP effectively uncouples the LCAP from the local 
adopted budget for 2020-21. The Executive Order does not waive the requirements for EC 52062 
specifically; however, the requirements to hold the public hearing and adopt the local district budget by 
July 1 in EC 42147(a) are still in effect. Because of the decoupling of the LCAP from the Budget 
approval process, local school districts have the discretion of holding the annual public hearing on the 
budget either within the same governing board meeting at which the budget is adopted or at a previous 
public meeting of the board. 
 
The attached budget documents include the most recent set of assumptions regarding enrollment, State 
Teacher Retirement System (STRS) and Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) employer 
contribution rates, property tax revenue, staffing and other pertinent factors (Budget Details) that were 
used in preparing the final 2020-21 Adopted Budget.  
 
Below are some key components of the 2020-21 Adopted Budget: 
 

1) Enrollment: District enrollment is projected at 1,968 students, a decrease of 7 students from 2019-
20. 

 
2) STRS and PERS employer contribution rates:  

ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 45



a. Current CalSTRS employer contribution rate that has been approved by the Legislature is 
18.40%. At the May Revision, the Governor has proposed a buy- down of 2.25% to 16.15%. 
Additionally, a reduction of 2.08% for 2021-22 from 18.10% to 16.02% has been proposed. 
These adjustments are subject to the state Legislature’s approval and have not been 
incorporated into the 2020-21 budge yet. 

b. Current CalPERS rate that has been approved by the CalPERS Board is 22.68%. At the May 
Revision, Governor Newsom proposed a reduction of 1.98% from 22.68% to 20.7% for 2020-
21, and 1.76% from 24.6% to 22.84% for 2021-22. These have not been incorporated into the 
budget yet subject to final approval 

3) Property Tax Revenue: Property tax revenue for 2020-21 is projected at $29,254,823 
• This represents an increase of 4% over the 2019-20 Second Interim property tax 

projections with actual receipts up to December 2019; since then the April 2020 property 
tax receipts came in much lower than projected 

• This same projected tax revenue represents a 6.01% over actual receipts up to May 2020; 
if the late collections and/or delinquencies do not materialize, there is over $550,000 in 
tax revenue that will need to be adjusted down. 
Note: The Assessor advised projecting a zero percent, “0 %”, increase for 2021-22 but 
the Administration is projecting a 2% at this point.  

4) Categorical Funding: In 2013-14, all of the state categoricals were combined into one LCFF line 
item, which was then reduced by the Fair Share deduction. 

5) Site Allocations: the pupil rate stays at $140, the same rate for the last two fiscal years. 
Preliminary distribution is at 97% of the projected enrollment data and will be adjusted to reflect 
actual CBEDs in October. 

6) General Fund: Operating surplus is projected at $804,647 while the Unrestricted Reserve level is 
projected at 14.8%. This has NOT incorporated the 2% plus $350 per eligible FTE settlement 
with PG TA due to the timing of the budget adoption timeline 

7) Other Funds for 2020-21: 
a) Adult Education Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $805,084 
b) Child Development Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $44,861 
c) Cafeteria Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $14,408 
d) Deferred Maintenance Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $101,565 
e) Postemployment Benefits Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $6,084 
f) Building Fund (Education Technology) – Projected Fund Balance is $1,578,671 
g) Capital Outlay Projects Fund – Projected Fund Balance is $176,596 

8) Salaries and Benefits: Salary negotiations with the Pacific Grove Teachers Association (PG TA) 
have been settled for 2019-20 but not with the following groups: 

• California School Employees Association (CSEA)  
• Management group 
• Confidential group 

Due to the timing of the production of the Adopted Budget and review of the AB 1200 documents 
for PG TA by the Monterey County Office of Education (MCOE), the compensation costs have 
not been incorporated into the 2020-21 Adopted Budget yet. 

  
Per Education Code Sections 42127(a)(2)(C) and 42127(c)(4), the District is required to complete a 
“Statement of Reasons for Excess Reserves” as part of the Adopted Budget documents. Although a school 
district reserve cap is not currently in effect, a provision of the law relating to reserves was implemented 
commencing with the 2015-16 fiscal year and continues to be in effect for budgets adopted each fiscal 
year thereafter. 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 46



If the combined amounts in the Components of Ending Fund Balance exceed the District’s minimum 
reserve requirement of 3%, the District is required to present at the public hearing and Adoption Budget a 
statement of reasons for excess reserve.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Fiscal impact for each fund is contained within the Fund Balances. 
 

ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 47



 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

 

Dr. Ralph Gómez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520 
Fax (831) 646-6500 
rporras@pgusd.org 

Song Chin-Bendib 
Assistant Superintendent 
(831) 646-6509 
Fax (831) 646-6582 
schinbendib@pgusd.org 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

Pursuant to California Education Code § 42127 and § 42103, the 
Pacific Grove Unified School District Governing Board will hold 
a public hearing on Thursday, June 4, 2020 regarding 

 
ADOPTION OF THE 2020-21 BUDGET 

 
The hearing will be held during the regular Board meeting, which begins at 
6:30 p.m. Please visit our website at www.pgusd.org for the link to attend 
the meeting virtually. 

 
Copies of the Budget will be available for public viewing beginning 
June 1, 2020 through June 4, 2019 at the District Office. For more 
information, please contact Song Chin-Bendib, A s s i s t a n t  
Superintendent at 646-6509. 

 
 
 

Posted: May 21, 2020 

ACTION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 48

mailto:rporras@pgusd.org
mailto:schinbendib@pgusd.org
http://www.pgusd.org/


  

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: COVID-19 Operations Written Report  
 
DATE:  June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the COVID-19 Operations 
Written Report. 
  
BACKGROUND:   
 
Executive Order N-56-20 requires that all Local Educational Agencies (LEA) complete a written report to 
explain the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures to address 
the COVID-19 emergency, the major impacts of such closures on students and families, and a description 
of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its unduplicated students.  
The COVID-19 Operations Written Report must be adopted by the local governing board in conjunction 
with the adopted annual budget by July 1, 2020. While the COVID-19 Operations Written Report does 
not need to be approved by the county superintendent of schools or the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction, the Written Report must be submitted in conjunction with the submission of the adopted 
annual budget. Once adopted, the COVID-19 Operations Written Report must be posted on the homepage 
of the LEA’s website. 
 
INFORMATION:  
 
The COVID-19 Operations Written Report must include: 
 • An overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school 
closures to address the COVID-19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and 
families. 
 • A description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth and low-income 
students. 
 • A description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering highquality distance 
learning opportunities.  
• A description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining 
social distancing practices.  
• A description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for supervision of students during 
ordinary school hours.  
The descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a 
broader understanding of the changes the LEA has put in place.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 49



COVID-19 Operations Written Report 
 

Local Educational 
Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone Date of Adoption 

Pacific Grove Unified 
School District 

Ani Silva, Director of 
Curriculum & Special 
Projects 

asilva@pgusd.org  
831-646-6526 June 4, 2020 

Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader 
understanding of the changes your LEA has put in place. LEAs are strongly encouraged to provide descriptions 
that do not exceed 300 words. 

Provide an overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures 
to address the COVID-19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and families. 

All schools in the district were closed as of March 16th resulting in  changes to the program offerings provided by the 
district. Teachers and staff were given two days to launch distance learning on Wednesday, March 18th. All 
extracurricular activities such as clubs, sports, drama, and the After School enrichment program were cancelled. All 
classes TK-12th grade implemented google classroom as the main platform for instruction and the posting of assignments 
along with curriculum to support online learning. Google meets was used to provide virtual contact with students as well 
as providing the opportunity for synchronous learning (live) along with other technology tools for asynchronous learning 
where students could watch the recorded version of a lesson at a time more convenient for students and parents.All 
teachers held office hours twice a day for students to receive one on one support from the teacher. 
Grading practices were adjusted to reflect a hold harmless approach, therefore a student could not earn a grade less than 
the grade earned in the third quarter. Students however had the opportunity to improve their third quarter grade for an 
improved final semester grade. Students also had the option to take all class grades as a Pass/Fail at the semester or 
they could keep all classes as graded. The CSU/UC systems will accept P/F grades in A-G coursework for this current 
semester only.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 50

mailto:asilva@pgusd.org


The district communicated all pertinent information from the Monterey County Health Office as well as important district 
information related to the school closures.with families and staff daily in the morning and the afternoon. All sites also sent 
daily updates to family and staff with information pertinent to their respective schools. Information was posted and 
updated daily via the district website and Facebook. The Superintendent, Dr. Porras met weekly to collaborate with all 
other county Superintendents and the Director of Curriculum and Special Projects, Ani Silva met weekly with all Monterey 
County Curriculum leaders to collaborate on distance learning and plans to reopen schools. A parent survey was sent out 
the week of March 16th to identify families who needed chromebooks as well as internet connectivity. The district then 
provided wifi hotspots at no cost to families who had no connectivity. All District and Site Administrators met daily to 
discuss the distance learning process, meal distribution, sanitation, and plans to reopen schools in the fall. Lastly, all site 
administrators met with their staff on a weekly basis to progress monitor the distance learning program and discuss 
student and staff needs.  
Counselors, support staff, and teachers worked diligently to connect with students who were not signing into the virtual 
classroom and provided both academic, social, and emotional support during these challenging times. All schools were 
sanitized to ensure the safety for those who might be coming back to sites and principals had sign in sheets to verify who 
was on campus. Memorandums of understanding regarding work conditions were agreed upon by both the Pacific Grove 
Teachers Association and the California School Employee Association during the mandated school closure to ensure 
safety for all employees and agree upon new working conditions during the mandated school closure.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 51



 

 

 

Provide a description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth and low-income students. 

At the elementary schools, English Learners were being served by the ELD Teacher and their classroom teachers. The 
English Language Development (ELD) teacher followed up with families to make sure they had access to technology 
necessary for distance learning and provide support accordingly. The classroom teachers built accommodations into 
online instruction and used small group instruction to address individual learning needs for our English learners. To meet 
the needs of our academically challenged, low income, and foster youth, the intervention specialists in concert with the 
classroom teachers and instructional aides, provided small group and one on one instruction providing targeted academic 
support. At the Middle and High Schools, the ELD teacher continued to provide one on one support for English Learners 
as they did before the closure of schools with all academic classes and designated language instruction. District-wide 
Intervention support for low-income and foster youth students continued with targeted academic support as well as 
counseling offered on a daily basis for these and any other student who was struggling with distance learning and/or 
social emotional issues.  
Services for our special education students was equally robust. Student Services Director, Clare Davies organized all 
services for students with IEPs providing whole group instruction and small group instruction with the teacher, instructional 
aide or paraprofessional. Resource specialists and instructional aides provided specialized academic instructions virtually 
to students via small group and one on one interactions. The Special Education SDC classes for students with 
mild/moderate and moderate to severe disabilities created a structured virtual day. All students were provided with an 
Ipad. Teachers and paraprofessionals created a shared library of videos and assignments to ensure program consistency 
with the delivery of instruction and services. Online data systems were used to document progress toward IEP goals. 
Music, Occupational, Physical, and Speech therapies were provided in group and individual online sessions. All Teacher 
and Therapist assignments were posted on Google Classrooms to support both parents and students at home. 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 52



 

 

 

 

 

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering high-quality distance learning 
opportunities. 

 
The district has taken the following steps to ensure that students are receiving high quality distance learning during school 
closure. 
 

● Launched a dedicated Distance Learning (DL) Resources for Teachers Website containing online learning tool 
recommendations, best practices, how-to video tutorials: 
https://sites.google.com/pgusd.org/remote-teaching-resources/home 

● Delivered formal training sessions on Distance Learning strategies and Best Practices to elementary teachers. 
● Ensured that any family/student in need of home technology received an adequate number of Chromebooks and/or 

wifi hotspot device for guaranteed internet connectivity and access to distance learning.  
● Provided optional weekly check-ins and follow-up coaching sessions to teachers as needed. 
● Distributed professional development webinar session dates each week to all teachers. 
●  Scheduled daily support calls/coaching sessions for teachers reaching out needing assistance on DL – including 

the use of Google Apps Suite for Education, screencasting tools, video recording, and delivery via teacher-created 
YouTube channels, interactive presentation/screen-sharing software such as FlipGrid, Pear Deck. 

●  Delivered just-in-time training and support to teachers for online test administration using Illuminate Education. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 53

https://sites.google.com/pgusd.org/remote-teaching-resources/home


● Each school’s IT tech facilitated on-call support sessions to teachers, staff, students, and parents to promptly 
resolve all technical issues as they surface. 

● Our “Tech Ninjas” (teacher tech leads at each school) offered one-on-one assistance to colleagues with DL 
strategies and the use of digital tools to support their delivery of instructions. 

● Administered two (2) separate parent opinion surveys - one after the first 2 weeks into DL/school closure  and 
another in the final two weeks of the school year -  to gauge the impact that DL has had on their child. Results were 
used to identify areas of strength and DL priority areas in planning future programs. 

● Started designing a dedicated Parent DL Education page on the district’s website to host training materials, 
learning resources, and DL help documents (currently under construction). 

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining social 
distancing practices. 

The Food & Nutrition Department began distributing meals on March 16 at three sites, implementing a drive-up and 
walk-up model to minimize contact between staff and community. Staff wear masks and gloves when preparing and 
distributing meals. Trays are used to pass out food to drive-up cars to minimize contact and the trays are then disinfected 
after each use. Families in line for walk-up meals are spaced out at least six feet apart. When one pick-up is completed, 
the table is disinfected afterwards before serving the next family. Meal distribution has moved to operating three days a 
week to minimize exposure. In deciding which sites to distribute meals from, we called free/reduced families to let them 
know about meal distribution at our sites. After hearing that there are transportation challenges, we generated a report to 
see where the majority of our free/reduced students live and included a distribution site at a major school bus stop where 
students can safely walk to.  

 

 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 54



Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for supervision of students during ordinary 
school hours. 

Pacific Grove Adult School provides free childcare to any student age 18 years and older who enrolls in English as a 
Second Language, High School Diploma, Career Technical Education or Parent Education programs.  District TK-12 
families are provided free childcare and services when they enroll in our Parent Engagement for Student Success 
program.May 2020 

 

California Department of Education 
May 2020 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION C

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 55



  

☐Consent  
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT:  Adoption of the Precalculus Textbook for 12th Grade Math, Pearson’s College 

Algebra and Trigonometry, 7th Edition (2021) 
  

DATE:  May 21, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ani Silva, Director of Curriculum and Special Projects 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and approve the 12th grade 
Precalculus course textbook: Pearson’s College Algebra and Trigonometry, 7th Edition (2021). 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
There is no current physical textbook for the Precalculus course. Online materials for the course 
are inappropriate for the redesigned course. Students have very limited remediation resources 
and rely solely on worksheets and lecture notes. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Criteria for new textbook: 

● Updated content that aligns with California Precalculus standards  
● Includes review of basic concepts of Algebra 
● Appropriate grade-level content for the 4th year of math, rather than an honors level 

course 
● Availability of an online textbook 
● Teacher and student resources available in online and alterable formats (so teachers 

may alter assignments/tests) 
● Availability of tracking student progress and mastery 

 
Several textbooks were reviewed, including College Algebra and Trigonometry from Pearson, 
Precalculus with Limits from Cengage Learning, Precalculus with Limits and a Graphing 
Approach from Cengage Learning, and Precalculus Mathematics for Calculus from Cengage 
Learning.  
 

 
College Algebra and Trigonometry by Margaret L. Lial, John Hornsby, David I. Schneider, and 
Callie Daniels, 7th edition, is the text that the math department selected. The other textbooks 
emphasized additional, superfluous mathematical concepts that are nonessential to student 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 56



  

success in Calculus. Moreover, these textbooks and their online tools did not provide adequate 
remediation and review of past concepts appropriate for the level of students anticipated to take 
this course. 
 
Pearson’s College Algebra and Trigonometry addresses all of California’s Precalculus Standards. 
It includes essential review and extension of basic Algebra 1 and 2 concepts and introduces 
Precalculus material in a manner appropriate for grade-level fourth year math students; enabling 
more students to access and succeed in a fourth year of math. The math department’s goal of 
creating an accessible senior level math class was in response to the proposed increased UC and 
CSU math requirements. The textbook is available in print and digital formats with online 
resources for teachers and students. In addition, Pearson provides a feature called Mylab Math 
that empowers each student by providing personalized learning pinpoints.  
 
With Mylab Math, each student is informed the precise areas he/she needs to practice to be 
successful. It monitors student performance on their homework, adapts to each student's needs, 
and provides assignment practice to help them improve their proficiency of key learning 
objectives. The feature also allows teachers to set pre- or post-assignments to help students 
practice just the concepts that they need to master. Mylab also gives teachers a comprehensive 
gradebook to understand which students are struggling, and with which topics they struggle 
most. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$7,453.79 funded by the 2020-21 Curriculum textbook budget.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 57



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 
 
The Pacific Grove Unified School District Governing Board will hold 
a public hearing on Thursday, May 21, 2020, pursuant to Education 
Code Section 60119 and 60422:  
 

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF 
PACIFIC GROVE HIGH SCHOOL College Algebra 
and Trigonometry by Margaret L. Lial, John Hornsby, 

David I. Schneider, and Callie Daniels, 6th edition 
 
The hearing will be held during the regular Board meeting, which 
begins at 6:30 p.m. Please visit our website at www.pgusd.org for the 
link to attend the meeting virtually. 
 
A copy of the Pacific Grove High School College Algebra and 
Trigonometry by Margaret L. Lial, John Hornsby, David I. 
Schneider, and Callie Daniels, 6th edition textbook will be available 
for public viewing beginning Thursday, May 7, 2020 through 
Thursday, June 4, 2020 at www.pgusd.org.   
 
For more information, please contact Ani Silva, Director of 
Curriculum and Special Projects at 831-646-6508 or 
asilva@pgusd.org.  
 
Posted: May 7, 2020 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
435 Hillcrest Avenue     Pacific Grove, CA  93950 

Ralph Gomez Porras 
Superintendent 
(831) 646-6520 
Fax (831) 646-6500 
rporras@pgusd.org 

Song Chin-Bendib 
Assistant Superintendent 
Business Services 
(831) 646-6509 
schinbendib@pgusd.org www.pgusd.org 

ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 58

http://www.pgusd.org/
http://www.pgusd.org/
mailto:asilva@pgusd.org


ACTION/DISCUSSION D

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 59



  

☐Consent  
☐Information/Discussion 
☒Action/Discussion 

 
SUBJECT: Options for July Feeding During COVID-19 Pandemic  
 
DATE:  June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Stephanie Lip, School Nutrition Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The District Administration recommends the Board review and provide direction on securing meals for 
families in July during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
  
BACKGROUND: 
 
As of March 16, 2020, the Pacific Grove Unified School District (PGUSD) has been operating under the 
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) waiver allowing meals to be served to any child aged 
18 or younger. These meals followed National School Lunch Program (NSLP) and School Breakfast 
Program (SBP) guidelines allowing each meal served to also be claimed for state and federal 
reimbursement. This waiver expires on June 30, 2020. 
 
At the previous Board meeting, the District Administration was asked to explore options within the 
community and beyond to secure meals / meal assistance in the month of July for PGUSD students. As of 
May 27, 2020, the average number of meals served daily is 388. 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
The District Administration explored two options to be purchased by the General Fund:  

Option 1: Purchasing meals from Monterey Peninsula Unified School District (MPUSD) or; 
Option 2: Providing meal vouchers for students to use to redeem a “prix fixe” meal at  

participating local restaurants. The District will pay the restaurant(s) $5.00 for each 
voucher received. 

 
After discussing with MPUSD’s Nutrition Services Director, MPUSD is unable to commit to selling 
meals for the month of July without having the chance to assess its operation and capacity when Summer 
Feeding begins. 
 
After discussing with local restaurants including Pavel’s Backerei, Bagel Bakery, Bagel Kitchen, 
Michael’s Grill & Taqueria, and Mountain Mike’s, the following was concluded as of May 27: 
 

• Pavel’s Backerie will continue offering breakfast brotchen rolls for free for PGUSD students, 
Monday – Saturday. 

• Bagel Bakery will not participate in meal voucher program. 
• Bagel Kitchen will offer options of bagel with cream cheese (any flavor), vegetarian bagel 

sandwich, turkey deli sandwich, or BLT sandwich, each served with a bag of chips. 
• Michael’s will offer options of a burrito, quesadilla, or hamburger with a fountain drink. 

Michael’s also offers to deliver meals to Arkwright Court Apartments. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 60



  

• Mountain Mike’s will offer a mini pizza with up to one additional topping with a fountain drink. 
 
The District Administration will continue reaching out to additional local restaurants to broaden the 
accessibility including, but not limited to, Subway, First Awakenings, and Grove Market. 
 
If recommended to proceed with Option 2, the District Administration seeks direction on the number of 
vouchers to provide.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Projection for 388 students (average daily meal count during school closure), assuming each student 
redeems a meal every weekday in July: 

$5.00 per meal voucher x 388 students = $1,940.00 per day 
$1,940 x 23 weekdays in July = $44,620.00 
 

If 300 students redeem a meal every weekday in July: 
$5.00 per meal voucher x 300 students = $1,500.00 per day 
$1,500 x 23 weekdays in July = $37,500.00 

 
  

ACTION/DISCUSSION E

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 61



  

☐Consent  
☐Information/Discussion 
☒Action/Discussion 

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Measure A Education Technology Expenditures  
 
DATE: June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Matthew Binder, Director or Educational Technology; 

Jonathan Mejia, Technology Systems Coordinator 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the current Measure 
A - Education Technology Bond expenditures.  
  
BACKGROUND: 
On November 4, 2014, the voters with the Pacific Grove Unified School District approved an 
$18 million General Obligation Bond to be used for Education Technology. Each property may 
be charged a maximum of $17.96 per $100,000 of assessed valuation over 18 years. Measure A 
was approved by voters with 59.79% of the vote. 
The bond measure was intended to pay technology improvements including: 

• Increasing student access to computer technology for both face-to-face/classroom-based 
instruction and to support remote/distance learning 

• Upgrading instructional hardware and educational software/digital curriculum  
• Supporting the implementation of a multiyear, district-wide educational technology plan 
• Improving classroom and campus security systems and safety 
• Implementing data and content management systems to facilitate improved student 

achievement and district operations 
 

The bond funds are released in six separate series, approximately $2 million every three years, 
over a period of 18 years. The first issuance, Series A, was released in the 2014-15 fiscal year. 
The district is currently working under the remainder of second series of funds - Series B. Series 
C will commence in late Summer/early Fall 2020. As the assessed valuations of the properties 
within the district’s attendance boundary increase or decreases, the maximum allowable funding 
for each series also increases or decreases. 
 
INFORMATION: 
Please see the attached spreadsheet – current list of Measure A expenditures and categorical/site 
distributions.  Prices are estimated and may vary slightly due to variations in tax and shipping 
costs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$317,203 of technology hardware, software, and/or services to be purchased from Fund 21 (Ed Tech 
Bond). $30,911 to be taken from the remaining Series B funds and $286,292 from the forthcoming Series 
C issuance.  

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 62



Measure A - Requests June/July 2020

15/28/2020

Ed-Tech/Measure A List - June/July 2020

Line Item Category Item Tech Type Request Site(s)
Tech Plan 
Connection Quantity Cost Per Unit

Est. Cost Incl. 
Tax; S/H

1 HST *Kajeet Wifi Hotspots and Data Plan
Network Infrastructure 
Hardware June/July 2020 District (all) 4i, 4m 25 $180.00 $4,500.00

2 HST *T-Mobile Wifi Hotspots and data plan
Network Infrastructure 
Hardware June/July 2020 District (all) 4i, 4m 25 $280.00 $7,000.00

3 HST Tablets w/Cases Tablet June/July 2020 RD, FG 1a, 4d, 4e 140 $285.00 $40,000
4 HSF Dell Laptops Laptop June/July 2020 District (all) 4i $10,000.00
5 HT Dell D3100 Docking Station Accessories June/July 2020 RD 4i 2 $150.00 $300.00
6 INT *Math 180 Curriculum Software June/July 2020 MS, HS 4f >>>>>>> $900.00
7 INT *READ 180, System 44 Curriculum Software June/July 2020 FG, RD, MS, HS 4f >>>>>>> $7,560.00
8 INT iRead Curriculum Software June/July 2020 FG, RD 4f >>>>>>> $1,860
9 SCC *Edmentum Online Curriculum Software June/July 2020 PGHS, CHS 4f >>>>>>> $5,702.00

10 SCC
*Scholastic Reading Inventory (SRI)  License 
Renewal Curriculum Software June/July 2020 FG, RD 4f 500 >>>>>>> $2,750.00

11 SCC *Mystery Science Curriculum Software June/July 2020 FG, RD 4f, 4g >>>>>>> $999.00
12 SCC Vista Higher Learning Curriculum Software June/July 2020 HS 4e, 4f >>>>>>> $6,396

13 SDI Network Upgrade Project - 2020 Payment
Network Infrastructure 
Hardware June/July 2020 District (all) 4a, 4b >>>>>>> $127,000.00

14 SDI MCOE Fiber Use
Tech Infrastructure 
Services/Maintenance June July 2020 District (all) 4i >>>>>>> $1,740.00

15 SDS
Harris School Solutions eTrition 3-Year 
Renewal

Data, Management 
Software June/July 2020 District (all) 4i >>>>>>> $2,000.00

16 SDS
SIS Replacement Project/Synergy 
Implementation (project kick-off phase) - Year 1

Data, Content 
Management Software June/July 2020 District (all) 1f, 4i >>>>>>> $60,889.00

17 SDS Illuminate DnA Renewal (1 year)
Data, Content 
Management Software June/July 2020 District (all) 1f >>>>>>> $15,952.00

18 SS *Log Me In Support Software June/July 2020 District Office 4i >>>>>>> $1,500.00
19 SSC A+ Question Bank Curriculum Software June/July 2020 PGHS 1f >>>>>>> $155.00

20 SSC
Distance Learning Digital Programs, Tools 
(TBD)

Data, Content 
Management Software June/July 2020 District (all) 4f, 4i >>>>>>> $20,000

Distribution by Category Total $317,203.00
$30,911.00 (*Series B Expenditures)

Hardware - Staff (HSF) $10,000 $286,292.00 (Series C Expenditures)
Hardware - Student (HST) $51,500
Hardware - Teacher (HT) $300
Software - Intervention (INT) $10,320.00
Repair Services (RS)
Software - Core Curriculum  (SCC) $15,847
Site/District Infrastructure (SDI) $128,740
Software - Data Systems (SDS) $78,841
Software - Other (SO)
Software Support (SS) $1,500
Software - Supplemental Curric (SSC) $20,155

Total $317,203

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 63



Measure A - Requests June/July 2020 Distribution by Category

5/28/2020

Distribution by Category

Hardware - Staff (HSF) $10,000
Hardware - Student (HST) $51,500
Hardware - Teacher (HT) $300
Software - Intervention (INT) $10,320.00
Repair Services (RS)
Software - Core Curriculum  (SCC) $15,847
Site/District Infrastructure (SDI) $128,740
Software - Data Systems (SDS) $78,841
Software - Other (SO)
Software Support (SS) $1,500
Software - Supplemental Curric (SSC) $20,155

Total $317,203

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 64



Measure A - Requests June/July 2020 Distribution by Site

5/28/2020

Distribution by Site
District (All) $249,081
DO $1,500
RD $24,995
FG $24,695
MS $2,340
HS $11,742
CHS $2,851
Adult Ed $0
Total $317,204

ACTION/DISCUSSION F

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 65



☐Consent
☐Information/Discussion
☒Action/Discussion

SUBJECT: Updates to Board Policies, Regulations and Exhibits from the Parents Rights 
Handbook 2020-21 

DATE: June 4, 2020 

PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE: Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The District Administration recommends that the Board review and approve the updates to Board 
Policies, Regulations and Exhibits from the Parents Rights Handbook.  

INFORMATION: 

The following is a brief summary of the recommended changes made to each Board Policy, Regulation 
and Exhibit: 

The following have revisions: 

1. BP 1312.3 (UCP)

Updated to reflect changes in the law regarding pregnant or parenting students pursuant to Assembly Bill 
(AB) 2289, which took effect on January 1, 2019; the District’s prohibition against retaliation; and 
clarification regarding non-UCP complaints.  

2. AR 1312.3 (UCP)

Updated to reflect notification requirements pursuant to Education Code section 234.1 and appeal rights 
pursuant to 5 CCR § 4632.  

3. Exhibit 1312.3 (UCP Complaint Form)

Updated to reflect UCP complaint categories consistent with BP 1312.3. 

4. AR 1312.4 Williams UCP

Updated to reflect guidelines for filing a complaint against California State Preschool Program pursuant 
to Education Code 8235.5.   

5. Exhibit 1312.4 Williams UCP (Complaint Form)

Updated to reflect clarification regarding teacher vacancies and to provide notice that complaints and 
responses pursuant to BP 1312.4 are public records pursuant to Education Code section 35186.   

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 66



6. BP 3513.3 Tobacco-Free School/Smoking

Updated legal citations. 

7. BP 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities

Updated to reflect notification requirements for parents/guardians who speak a language other than 
English pursuant to Education Code section 51101.1. 

8. AR 5020 Parent Rights and Responsibilities

Updated to reflect notification requirements for parents/guardians who speak a language other than 
English pursuant to Education Code section 51101.1 and updated legal citations.  

9. BP 5113 Absences and Excuses

Updated legal citations. 

10. AR 5113 Absences and Excuses

Updated to reflect reasons for excused absences pursuant to Education Code 48225.5 and updated legal 
citations.  

11. BP 5117 Interdistrict Attendance

Updated legal citations. 

12. BP 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process

Updated to clarify the Superintendent’s duties regarding discipline data pursuant to Education Code 
sections 48900.8 and 48916.1 and updated legal citations.  

13. BP 5145.3 Non-Discrimination/Harassment

Updated to include additional classifications of protected classes, clarification of “bullying” definition, 
and legal citations.  

14. BP 5145.7 Sexual Harassment

Updated legal citations. 

15. BP 6154 Homework/Make-up Work

Updated legal citations. 

ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 67



Page 1 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board recognizes that the District is responsible for ensuring that it complies 

with state and federall laws and regulations governing educational programs. 

The District uniform complaint procedures (UCP) will be used to investigate the following 

complaints: 

1. Discrimination Complaints. Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment,

intimidation, or bullying based on one or more of the following actual or perceived characteristics,

or association with a person or group with one or more of the following actual or perceived

characteristics: disability, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or

ethnicity, immigration status, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, marital,

pregnancy, parental or family status or any other characteristics identified in Education Code

sections 200 and 220, Government Code section 11135, or Penal Code section 422.55, in any

District program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial assistance.

2. Noncompliance Complaints. Complaints alleging failure to comply with state or federal

laws in adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career

technical and technical education programs, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, state

preschool program health and safety, foster and homeless youth services, lactating student

accommodations, pregnant and parenting student parental leave and educational rights, physical

education instructional minute requirements, educational content course requirements for grades 9-

12, graduation requirements exemptions for former juvenile court school students, school safety

planning, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education

programs. (Title 5, Sections 4610, 4620)

3. Student Fees Complaints. Any complaint alleging District violation of the prohibition

against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational

activities. (Title 5, Section 4610)

4. Local Control and Accountability Plan Noncompliance Complaints. Any complaint

alleging the District’s noncompliance with legal requirements related to the implementation of the

Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). (Ed. Code § 52075)

5. Rights of Homeless Students and Students in Foster Care. The District's uniform complaint

procedures cover complaints pertaining to the education of homeless students and students in foster

care, including, but not limited to rights related to: (1) school placement; (2) access to academic,

extracurricular and enrichment programs and activities; (3) educational services for students living in

emergency shelters; (4) assignment of an educational liaison and the carrying out of the liaison’s

duties; (5) transfer of the complete educational record and credits earned to the next educational

placement; (6) proper and timely transfer between schools of students in foster care; and (7) ensuring

that no lowering of grades occurs due to a foster youth’s absence due to a change in placement by a

court or placing agency, or due to a verified court appearance or related court activity.

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 68



Page 2 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations  Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

6. Graduation and Coursework Requirements for Foster Youth, Homeless Students, Former

Juvenile Court Students, Migratory and Newly Arrived Immigrant Students Participating in a

“Newcomer Program”, and Students Living in Active Duty Military Households The District’s

uniform complaint procedures cover complaints pertaining to the graduation and coursework rights of

foster youth, homeless students, former juvenile court students, migratory and newly arrived

immigrant students participating in a “newcomer program”, which is a program designed to meet the

academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant students, and students living in the

households of parents/guardians who are active duty members of the military. Those rights under

Education Code sections 54441, 51225.1 and 51225.2 include:

a) exemption from local graduation and coursework requirements that are in addition to the
statewide coursework requirements for graduation;

b) credit or partial credit for coursework completed while attending another school;

c) the option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the school district’s graduation

requirements; and

d) not being required to accept the exemption or be denied enrollment in, or the ability to

complete or retake, courses necessary to attend an institution of higher education, regardless of

whether those courses are required for statewide graduation requirements.

7. Lactation Accommodations for Parenting Students. School districts must provide reasonable

accommodations to lactating students on school campuses to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant

child or address other needs related to breastfeeding. A student may not incur an academic penalty as

a result of her use of reasonable lactation accommodations and must be provided an opportunity to

make up any work missed due to such use. (Ed. Code § 222(f).)

8. Assigning Students to Course Periods Without Educational Content. Beginning with the 2016-

2017 school year, school districts may not assign students in grades 9-12 to course periods without

educational content for more than one week in any semester without written parental consent and

related documentation. “Course periods without educational content” are defined to include course

periods where: (1) a student is released early from school; (2) the student is assigned to a service,

instructional work experience or to a course to assist a certificated employee, but is not expected to

complete curricular assignments; or (3) where the student is not assigned to any course during the

class period.

School districts are also prohibited, without written parental consent and related documentation, from 

enrolling 9-12th graders in classes they have previously completed and received a grade that is 

satisfactory to receive a high school diploma and to attend a California public institution of 

postsecondary education. (Ed. Code §§ 51228.1, 51228.2, and 51228.3.) 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 69



Page 3 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations  Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

9. Physical Education Instructional Minutes. Students in grades 1-6 are required to receive, at

minimum, 200 minutes of physical education instruction each 10 school days, exclusive of recesses

and lunch periods. Unless exempted pursuant to Education Code section 51241, students in grades

712 are required to receive at least 400 minutes of physical education instruction each 10 school

days. High school students may be excused from physical education classes during one of grades 10,

11 or 12 for up to 24 clock hours in order to participate in automobile driver training, but must still

attend a minimum of 7,000 minutes of physical education instruction during that school year.

Complaints regarding a school district’s failure to comply with these physical education instructional 

minute requirements may be filed under the District’s Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Ed. Code §§ 

51210 and 51222.) 

10. Juvenile Court School Student Graduation Requirements and Continuing Education

Options. School districts and county offices must exempt former juvenile court school students, who

have transferred into a school district from a juvenile court school after completion of their second

year of high school, from local graduation requirements that exceed state requirements and accept

coursework satisfactorily completed while attending the juvenile court school, even if the student did

not complete the entire course, and grant full or partial credit for courses earned while in juvenile

court school. Juvenile court students who have qualified for a diploma have additional rights related

to deferring or declining the issuance of a diploma in order to take additional coursework, continuing

their education upon release from the juvenile detention facility, and community college transfer

opportunities. Former and current juvenile court school students may file complaints of non-

compliance with these requirements under the District’s Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Ed. Code

§§48645.7 and 51225.2)

11. Pregnant or Parenting Students. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with

requirements to provide a pregnant or parenting student the accommodations specified in Education 

Code 46015, including those related to the provision of parental leave, right of return to the school of 

previous enrollment or to an alternative education program, if desired, and possible enrollment in 

school for a fifth year of instruction to enable the student to complete state and Board-imposed 

graduation requirements. (Education Code 46015) 

12. School Plan for Student Achievement or School Site Council.  Any complaint alleging

noncompliance with requirements related to the development of a school plan for student 

achievement or the establishment of a school site council, as required for the consolidated 

application for specified federal and/or state categorical funding. (Education Code 64000-64001, 

65000-65001) 

13. Retaliation for Filing UCP Complaint.  Any complaint alleging retaliation against a

complainant or other participant in the complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report 

a violation subject to this policy 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 70



Page 4 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations  Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

14. Other Complaints. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy

The Board encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints at the site level whenever possible. 

In the event that issues are not resolved informally, a written complaint of alleged noncompliance by 

the District may be filed using the District’s UCP Complaint form (Exhibit 1312.3(a)) and in 

accordance with Administrative Regulation 1312.3. 

Upon receipt of a written complaint from an individual, public agency or organization (Exhibit 

1312.3(a), uniform complaint procedures shall be initiated. The Superintendent or designee shall 

distribute full information about these procedures. 

The parties may utilize alternative methods to resolve the allegations in a complaint including, but not 

limited to, mediation. (Title 5, Section 4631) The Board recognizes that a neutral mediator can often 

suggest an early compromise that is agreeable to all parties in a dispute. In accordance with uniform 

complaint procedures, whenever all parties to a complaint agree to try resolving their problem 

through mediation, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate a mediation process before beginning 

a formal compliance investigation. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that mediation results 

are consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 

The Board acknowledges and respects student and employee rights to privacy. The district shall 

protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the parties 

involved shall be protected to the extent required by law. For any complaint alleging retaliation or 

unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), 

Discrimination complaints shall be investigated in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the 

parties and the facts. Confidentiality in an investigation includes keeping the identity of the 

complainant confidential except to the extent necessary to carry out the investigation or proceedings, 

as determined by the Superintendent or designee on a case-by-case basis. (Title 5, Section 4621) 

The Board prohibits retaliation in any form for the filing of a complaint, the reporting of instances of 

discrimination or participation in complaint procedures. Such participation shall not in any way affect 

the status, grades or work assignments of the complainant. 

When an allegation that is not subject to UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer 

the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency using the policy most appropriate for the 

non-UCP allegation. and The district shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related 

allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 

knowledge of current law and requirements related to UCP, including the steps and timelines specified 

in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 

actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 71



Page 5 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations  Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 

Non-UCP Complaints 

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified 

agency: (5 CCR 4611) 

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social

Services Protective Services Division and the appropriate law enforcement agency. 

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for

licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt 

facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 

3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance Branch of the

California Department of Education. 

4. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and

resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 

Employment, including the right to file the complaint with the California Department of Fair 

Employment and Housing. 

5. Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent

facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, teacher vacancies and 

mis-assignments, or health and safety violations in any license-exempt California State Preschool 

Program shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams 

Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 8235.5, 35186) 

6. Any complaint not defined as a uniform complaint per Policy 1312.3.

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.3 Prohibition of discrimination 
222 Lactation accommodations for parenting students 

8200-8498 Child care and development programs 
8500-8538 Adult basic education 

18100-18179 School libraries 

35146 Closed sessions 

35160 Authority of governing boards 

44670.1-44671.5 School personnel staff development and resource centers 

48645.5 and 48645.7 coursework, continuing education options and graduation deferral rights for 

former juvenile court school students 

48850, 48852.5, 48852.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 42 USC 11432 and 5 CCR § 

4622 Homeless students and students in foster care 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 72



Page 6 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations  Policy 1312.3  

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

48985 Notices in language other than English 

49013 Pupil fees 

49060-49079 Student records 

49490-49560 Child nutrition programs 
51210, 51222 and 51223 Physical education instructional minutes 

51225.1 and 51225.2 Graduation and coursework requirements for foster youth, homeless students, 

former juvenile court school student, and students living in active duty military households 

51228.1, 51228.2 and 51228.3 Assigning students to course periods without educational content 

51513 Personal beliefs 

52075 Local Control and Accountability Plan  

52160-52178 Bilingual education programs  

52300-52483 Vocational education 

52500-52616.24 Adult schools 

52800-52863 School-based coordinated programs  

54000-54041 Economic impact aid programs  

54100-54145 Miller-Unruh Basic Reading Act  

54400-54425 Compensatory education programs  

54440-54445 Migrant education 

54460-54529 Compensatory education programs 
56000-56885 Special education programs 

59000-59300 Special schools and centers 

64000 Consolidated application process 

65000-65001 School Site Council 
GOVERNMENT CODE 

54957-54957.8 Closed sessions 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

3080 Application of section 4600-4671 

4600 – 4671 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1221 – 1232g General Education Provisions Act 
1681 – 1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

100.1 – 100.13 Nondiscrimination 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 73



Page 1 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations       Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board recognizes that the District is responsible for ensuring that it complies 
with state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. 

The District uniform complaint procedures (UCP) will be used to investigate the following 
complaints: 

1. Discrimination Complaints. Any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying based on one or more of the following actual or perceived characteristics, 
or association with a person or group with one or more of the following actual or perceived 
characteristics: disability, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or 
ethnicity, immigration status, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, marital, 
pregnancy, parental or family status or any other characteristics identified in Education Code 
sections 200 and 220, Government Code section 11135, or Penal Code section 422.55, in any 
District program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial assistance. 

2. Noncompliance Complaints. Complaints alleging failure to comply with state or federal 
laws in adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career 
technical and technical education programs, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, state 
preschool program health and safety, foster and homeless youth services, lactating student 
accommodations, pregnant and parenting student parental leave and educational rights, physical 
education instructional minute requirements, educational content course requirements for grades 9-
12, graduation requirements exemptions for former juvenile court school students, school safety 
planning, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education 
programs. (Title 5, Sections 4610, 4620) 

3. Student Fees Complaints. Any complaint alleging District violation of the prohibition 
against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational 
activities. (Title 5, Section 4610) 

4. Local Control and Accountability Plan Noncompliance Complaints. Any complaint 
alleging the District’s noncompliance with legal requirements related to the implementation of the 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). (Ed. Code § 52075) 

5. Rights of Homeless Students and Students in Foster Care. The District's uniform complaint 
procedures cover complaints pertaining to the education of homeless students and students in foster 
care, including, but not limited to rights related to: (1) school placement; (2) access to academic, 
extracurricular and enrichment programs and activities; (3) educational services for students living in 
emergency shelters; (4) assignment of an educational liaison and the carrying out of the liaison’s 
duties; (5) transfer of the complete educational record and credits earned to the next educational 
placement; (6) proper and timely transfer between schools of students in foster care; and (7) ensuring 
that no lowering of grades occurs due to a foster youth’s absence due to a change in placement by a 
court or placing agency, or due to a verified court appearance or related court activity. 

 

 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 74



Page 2 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

6.  Graduation and Coursework Requirements for Foster Youth, Homeless Students, 
Former Juvenile Court Students, Migratory and Newly Arrived Immigrant Students 
Participating in a “Newcomer Program”, and Students Living in Active Duty Military 
Households The District’s uniform complaint procedures cover complaints pertaining to the 
graduation and coursework rights of foster youth, homeless students, former juvenile court students, 
migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a “newcomer program”, which is a 
program designed to meet the academic and transitional needs of newly arrived immigrant students, 
and students living in the households of parents/guardians who are active duty members of the 
military. Those rights under Education Code sections 54441, 51225.1 and 51225.2 include: 

a) exemption from local graduation and coursework requirements that are in addition to the 
statewide coursework requirements for graduation; 

b) credit or partial credit for coursework completed while attending another school; 

c) the option to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the school district’s graduation 
requirements; and 

d) not being required to accept the exemption or be denied enrollment in, or the ability to 
complete or retake, courses necessary to attend an institution of higher education, regardless of 
whether those courses are required for statewide graduation requirements. 

7.  Lactation Accommodations for Parenting Students. School districts must provide 
reasonable accommodations to lactating students on school campuses to express breast milk, 
breastfeed an infant child or address other needs related to breastfeeding. A student may not incur an 
academic penalty as a result of her use of reasonable lactation accommodations and must be provided 
an opportunity to make up any work missed due to such use. (Ed. Code § 222(f).) 

8.  Assigning Students to Course Periods Without Educational Content. Beginning with the 
20162017 school year, school districts may not assign students in grades 9-12 to course periods 
without educational content for more than one week in any semester without written parental consent 
and related documentation. “Course periods without educational content” are defined to include 
course periods where: (1) a student is released early from school; (2) the student is assigned to a 
service, instructional work experience or to a course to assist a certificated employee, but is not 
expected to complete curricular assignments; or (3) where the student is not assigned to any course 
during the class period. 

School districts are also prohibited, without written parental consent and related documentation, from 
enrolling 9-12th graders in classes they have previously completed and received a grade that is 
satisfactory to receive a high school diploma and to attend a California public institution of 
postsecondary education. (Ed. Code §§ 51228.1, 51228.2, and 51228.3.) 

 

 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 75



Page 3 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 

9. Physical Education Instructional Minutes. Students in grades 1-6 are required to receive, at 
minimum, 200 minutes of physical education instruction each 10 school days, exclusive of recesses 
and lunch periods. Unless exempted pursuant to Education Code section 51241, students in grades 
712 are required to receive at least 400 minutes of physical education instruction each 10 school 
days. High school students may be excused from physical education classes during one of grades 10, 
11 or 12 for up to 24 clock hours in order to participate in automobile driver training, but must still 
attend a minimum of 7,000 minutes of physical education instruction during that school year. 

Complaints regarding a school district’s failure to comply with these physical education instructional 
minute requirements may be filed under the District’s Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Ed. Code §§ 
51210 and 51222.) 

 
10.   Juvenile Court School Student Graduation Requirements and Continuing Education 
Options. School districts and county offices must exempt former juvenile court school students, who 
have transferred into a school district from a juvenile court school after completion of their second 
year of high school, from local graduation requirements that exceed state requirements and accept 
coursework satisfactorily completed while attending the juvenile court school, even if the student did 
not complete the entire course, and grant full or partial credit for courses earned while in juvenile 
court school. Juvenile court students who have qualified for a diploma have additional rights related 
to deferring or declining the issuance of a diploma in order to take additional coursework, continuing 
their education upon release from the juvenile detention facility, and community college transfer 
opportunities. Former and current juvenile court school students may file complaints of non-
compliance with these requirements under the District’s Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Ed. Code 
§§48645.7 and 51225.2) 
 
11.  Pregnant or Parenting Students. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with 
requirements to provide a pregnant or parenting student the accommodations specified in Education 
Code 46015, including those related to the provision of parental leave, right of return to the school of 
previous enrollment or to an alternative education program, if desired, and possible enrollment in 
school for a fifth year of instruction to enable the student to complete state and Board-imposed 
graduation requirements. (Education Code 46015) 

12.   School Plan for Student Achievement or School Site Council.  Any complaint alleging 
noncompliance with requirements related to the development of a school plan for student 
achievement or the establishment of a school site council, as required for the consolidated 
application for specified federal and/or state categorical funding. (Education Code 64000-64001, 
65000-65001) 

13.    Retaliation for Filing UCP Complaint.  Any complaint alleging retaliation against a 
complainant or other participant in the complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report 
a violation subject to this policy 

 

 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 76



Page 4 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 
 

14.   Other Complaints. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 

The Board encourages the early, informal resolution of complaints at the site level whenever possible. 
In the event that issues are not resolved informally, a written complaint of alleged noncompliance by 
the District may be filed using the District’s UCP Complaint form (Exhibit 1312.3(a)) and in 
accordance with Administrative Regulation 1312.3. 

Upon receipt of a written complaint from an individual, public agency or organization (Exhibit 
1312.3(a), uniform complaint procedures shall be initiated. The Superintendent or designee shall 
distribute full information about these procedures. 

The parties may utilize alternative methods to resolve the allegations in a complaint including, but not 
limited to, mediation. (Title 5, Section 4631) The Board recognizes that a neutral mediator can often 
suggest an early compromise that is agreeable to all parties in a dispute. In accordance with uniform 
complaint procedures, whenever all parties to a complaint agree to try resolving their problem 
through mediation, the Superintendent or designee shall initiate a mediation process before beginning 
a formal compliance investigation. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that mediation results 
are consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 

The Board acknowledges and respects student and employee rights to privacy. The district shall 
protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of the parties 
involved shall be protected to the extent required by law. For any complaint alleging retaliation or 
unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), complaints 
shall be investigated in a manner that protects the confidentiality of the parties and the facts. 
Confidentiality in an investigation includes keeping the identity of the complainant confidential 
except to the extent necessary to carry out the investigation or proceedings, as determined by the 
Superintendent or designee on a case-by-case basis. (Title 5, Section 4621) 

The Board prohibits retaliation in any form for the filing of a complaint, the reporting of instances of 
discrimination or participation in complaint procedures. Such participation shall not in any way affect 
the status, grades or work assignments of the complainant. 
When an allegation that is not subject to UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer 
the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency using the policy most appropriate for the 
non-UCP allegation. The district shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related 
allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 
knowledge of current law and requirements related to UCP, including the steps and timelines specified 
in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance  

 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 77



Page 5 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 
 

with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 

Non-UCP Complaints 

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified 
agency: (5 CCR 4611) 

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social 
Services Protective Services Division and the appropriate law enforcement agency. 

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for 
licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt 
facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 

3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance Branch of the 
California Department of Education. 

4. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and 
resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in 
Employment, including the right to file the complaint with the California Department of Fair 
Employment and Housing. 

5. Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent 
facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, teacher vacancies and 
mis-assignments, or health and safety violations in any license-exempt California State Preschool 
Program shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams 
Uniform Complaint Procedures. (Education Code 8235.5, 35186) 

6. Any complaint not defined as a uniform complaint per Policy 1312.3. 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.3 Prohibition of discrimination 
222 Lactation accommodations for parenting students 
8200-8498 Child care and development programs 
8500-8538 Adult basic education 
18100-18179 School libraries 
35146 Closed sessions 
35160 Authority of governing boards 
44670.1-44671.5 School personnel staff development and resource centers 
48645.5 and 48645.7 coursework, continuing education options and graduation deferral rights for 
former juvenile court school students 
48850, 48852.5, 48852.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 42 USC 11432 and 5 CCR § 
4622 Homeless students and students in foster care 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 78



Page 6 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations       Policy 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Policy 
 
48985 Notices in language other than English 
49013 Pupil fees 
49060-49079 Student records 
49490-49560 Child nutrition programs 
51210, 51222 and 51223 Physical education instructional minutes 
51225.1 and 51225.2 Graduation and coursework requirements for foster youth, homeless students, 
former juvenile court school student, and students living in active duty military households 
51228.1, 51228.2 and 51228.3 Assigning students to course periods without educational content 
51513 Personal beliefs 

52075 Local Control and Accountability Plan  
52160-52178 Bilingual education programs  
52300-52483 Vocational education 
52500-52616.24 Adult schools 
52800-52863 School-based coordinated programs  
54000-54041 Economic impact aid programs  
54100-54145 Miller-Unruh Basic Reading Act  
54400-54425 Compensatory education programs  
54440-54445 Migrant education 
54460-54529 Compensatory education programs 
56000-56885 Special education programs 
59000-59300 Special schools and centers 
64000 Consolidated application process 
65000-65001 School Site Council 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54957-54957.8 Closed sessions 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3080 Application of section 4600-4671 
4600 – 4671 Uniform Complaint Procedures 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1221 – 1232g General Education Provisions Act 
1681 – 1688 Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
100.1 – 100.13 Nondiscrimination 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 79



 

Page 1 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Community Relations Regulation        # 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

Compliance Officers 

The Governing Board designates the following compliance officer/s who shall be responsible for 

initially receiving all complaints, investigating as appropriate and/or delegating to the appropriate 

Program Administrator to investigate and ensure District compliance with law: (Title 5, Section 4621) 

Director, Human Resources  

435 Hillcrest Avenue 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
(831)-646-6507 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees designated to investigate complaints are 

knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible. Such employees may 

have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee. (Title 5, Section 4621) 

Notifications 

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and 

offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1) 

The Superintendent or designee shall meet the notification requirements of the Code of Regulations, 

Title 5, Section 4622, including the annual dissemination of District complaint procedures and 

information about available appeals, civil law remedies and conditions under which a complaint may 

be taken directly to the California Department of Education. The Superintendent or designee shall 

ensure that complainants understand that they may pursue other remedies, including actions before 

civil courts or other public agencies. 

The above notification shall state that complainants may seek help from agencies such as legal 

assistance agencies, local mediation centers or the county office of education. Local resources 

include: 

• Monterey County Office of Education 

• Department of Fair Employment and Housing 

• Office of Civil Rights 

• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students 

and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information 

provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP. 

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary 

language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP 

shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other 

instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for 

parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 80

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/460631/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/460631/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/1


 

Page 2 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation # 1 3 1 2 .3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

 

Procedures 

The following procedures shall be used to address only the complaints specified in Board Policy 

1312.3. Compliance officers shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 

actions, including all information required for compliance with the Code of Regulations, Title 5, 

Section 4633. 

All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint 

meeting or hearing is scheduled and when a decision or ruling is made. 

 
Filing of Complaint 

1. Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying may be filed by a 

person who alleges that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination or by a person who 

believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful 

discrimination. The complaint must be initiated no later than six months from the date when the 

alleged discrimination occurred or when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the 

alleged discrimination unless the time for filing is extended by the district superintendent or his or 

her designee, upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 

Such extension by the district superintendent or his or her designee shall be made in writing. The 

period for filing may be extended by the district superintendent or his or her designee for good cause 

for a period not to exceed 90 days following the expiration of the six month time period. The district 

superintendent shall respond immediately upon a receipt of a request for extension. (Title 5, Section 

4630) 

2. Complaints alleging violations of federal or state law governing certain programs 

A written complaint alleging District violation of applicable federal or state laws governing adult 

education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical 

education and training programs, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, child care and 

development programs, state preschool program health and safety, child nutrition programs, foster 

and homeless youth services, lactating student accommodations, pregnant and parenting student 

parental leave and educational rights, physical education instructional minute requirements, 

educational content course requirements for grades 9-12, former juvenile court school students’ 

graduation, coursework and continuing education options, graduation and coursework requirements 

for foster youth, homeless students, migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a 

“Newcomer Program” and students living in active duty military households, school safety planning 

or special education programs, may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization. 

(Education Code Sections 222, 51210, 51222, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.1, 51228.2, 51228.3, 

and Title 5, Sections 4610 and 4630) 

3. Complaints regarding pupil fees and LCAP violations 

 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 81



 

Page 3 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation # 1 3 1 2 .3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

 

Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against requiring students to 

pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP, may be filed 

anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an 

allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of 

unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school. However, those complaints must be 

filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code Sections 

49013, 52074: Title 5 Section 4630) 

The complaint shall be presented to the Compliance Officer who shall maintain a log of complaints 

received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 

If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as illiteracy or other 

disabilities, District staff shall help him or her to file the complaint. (Title 5, Section 4600) 

Mediation 

Within three days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with the 

complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees to mediation, the 

compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process. 

Before initiating the mediation of a discrimination complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that 

all parties agree to make the mediator a party to related confidential information. 

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance 

officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 

The use of mediation shall not extend the District’s timelines for investigating and resolving the  

complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. (Title 5, Section 

4631) 

Investigation of Complaint 

The compliance officer will hold an investigative meeting with the complainant within five school 

days of receiving the complaint. The complainant, and his or her representative, will have an  

opportunity to present the complaint(s) and evidence or information leading to support the allegations 

of non-compliance with state and federal laws and/or regulations. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Parties to the dispute may discuss the complaint and question each other or each other’s witnesses. If 

the complainant does not attend the meeting, the District representative will make a formal note of the 

occurrence and move forward in completing the investigation. 

The District will investigate the complaint and issue the complainant a written report within 60 days 

from the date of the receipt of the complaint, unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension 

of time. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 82



 

Page 4 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation # 1 3 1 2 .3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

 

Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to 

the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or 

engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint 

because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Refusal by the District to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information 

related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation 

or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding based onevidence 

collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the 

complainant. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Response 

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting 

convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered. The 

Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer’s decision is final. 

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board’s decision to the 

complainant within 60 days of the District’s initially receiving the complaint or within the time period 

that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Final Written Decision 

The report of the District’s decision shall be written in English and in the language of the complainant 

whenever feasible or required by law. If it is not feasible to write this report in the complainant’s 

primary language, the District shall arrange a meeting at which a community member will interpret it 

for the complainant. 

This written decision shall include: 

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered, 

2. Conclusions of law, 

3. Disposition of the complaint, 

4. The rationale for the disposition, 

5. Corrective actions, if they are warranted, including, with respect to a pupil fee complaint, a 

remedy that comports with Education Code sections 49013(d) and Title 5, Section 4600(u). 

6. Notice of the complainant’s right to appeal the District’s decision to the California Department of 

Education (CDE), and 

 

7. Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to the CDE.  

(Title 5, Section 4631) 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 83



 

Page 5 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation # 1 3 1 2 .3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

 

If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, this report shall simply state that effective 

action was taken and that the employee was informed of District expectations. The report shall not 

give any further information as to the nature of the disciplinary action. 

 
 

Appeals to the California Department of Education 

If dissatisfied with the District’s decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the California 

Department of Education within 15 days of receiving the District’s decision. For good cause, the 

Superintendent of Public Instruction may grant an extension for filing appeals. (Title 5, Section 4632) 

When appealing to the California Department of Education, the complainant must specify the 

reason(s) for appealing the District’s decision and must include a copy of the locally filed complaint 

and the District’s decision. (Title 5, Section 4632) 

Direct State Intervention 

Complainants may ask the California Department of Education to directly intervene without waiting 

for action by the District when certain conditions exist, including, but not limited to, the following: (1) 

the complaint alleges that the District has failed to comply with its Uniform Complaint Procedures, 

including, but not limited to, the failure or refusal to cooperate with an investigation; (2) the 

complainant requests anonymity due to the danger of retaliation and complainant would suffer 

immediate and irreparable harm if complainant files a complaint with the District; (3) complainant 

alleges a failure to comply with special education due process procedures pursuant to state and federal 

law or a due process hearing order; (4) the complaint is related to special education and alleges facts 

that indicate that one or more students may be in immediate physical danger or that the health, safety, 

or welfare of one or more students is threatened; or (6) complainant alleges that the District failed to 

follow a student’s individualized education plan. 

See Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 4650 for the full list of situations that may warrant direct 

state intervention. 

See Policy #1312.3  

CSBA Date – 10/97 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 84



Page 1 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Regulation 1312.3 

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

Compliance Officers 

The Governing Board designates the following compliance officer/s who shall be responsible for 
initially receiving all complaints, investigating as appropriate and/or delegating to the appropriate 
Program Administrator to investigate and ensure District compliance with law: (Title 5, Section 4621) 

Director, Human Resources  
435 Hillcrest Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 
(831)-646-6507 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees designated to investigate complaints are 
knowledgeable about the laws and programs for which they are responsible. Such employees may 
have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee. (Title 5, Section 4621) 

Notifications 
The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and 
offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms. (Education Code 234.1) 

The Superintendent or designee shall meet the notification requirements of the Code of Regulations, 
Title 5, Section 4622, including the annual dissemination of District complaint procedures and 
information about available appeals, civil law remedies and conditions under which a complaint may 
be taken directly to the California Department of Education. The Superintendent or designee shall 
ensure that complainants understand that they may pursue other remedies, including actions before 
civil courts or other public agencies. 

The above notification shall state that complainants may seek help from agencies such as legal 
assistance agencies, local mediation centers or the county office of education. Local resources 
include: 

• Monterey County Office of Education 
• Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
• Office of Civil Rights 
• Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students 
and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information 
provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP. 

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary 
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP 
shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other 
instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for 
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 

 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 85

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/460631/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/460631/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/1


Page 2 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation 1312.3 

 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

Procedures 

The following procedures shall be used to address only the complaints specified in Board Policy 
1312.3. Compliance officers shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including all information required for compliance with the Code of Regulations, Title 5, 
Section 4633. 

All parties involved in allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed, when a complaint 
meeting or hearing is scheduled and when a decision or ruling is made. 
 
Filing of Complaint 

1. Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying 

Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying may be filed by a 
person who alleges that he/she personally suffered unlawful discrimination or by a person who 
believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination. The complaint must be initiated no later than six months from the date when the 
alleged discrimination occurred or when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the 
alleged discrimination unless the time for filing is extended by the district superintendent or his or 
her designee, upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 
Such extension by the district superintendent or his or her designee shall be made in writing. The 
period for filing may be extended by the district superintendent or his or her designee for good cause 
for a period not to exceed 90 days following the expiration of the six month time period. The district 
superintendent shall respond immediately upon a receipt of a request for extension. (Title 5, Section 
4630) 

2. Complaints alleging violations of federal or state law governing certain programs 

A written complaint alleging District violation of applicable federal or state laws governing adult 
education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career technical 
education and training programs, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, child care and 
development programs, state preschool program health and safety, child nutrition programs, foster 
and homeless youth services, lactating student accommodations, pregnant and parenting student 
parental leave and educational rights, physical education instructional minute requirements, 
educational content course requirements for grades 9-12, former juvenile court school students’ 
graduation, coursework and continuing education options, graduation and coursework requirements 
for foster youth, homeless students, migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a 
“Newcomer Program” and students living in active duty military households, school safety planning 
or special education programs, may be filed by any individual, public agency, or organization. 
(Education Code Sections 222, 51210, 51222, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.1, 51228.2, 51228.3, 
and Title 5, Sections 4610 and 4630) 

 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 86



Page 3 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Regulation 1312.3 

 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

3. Complaints regarding pupil fees and LCAP violations 

Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against requiring students to 
pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP, may be filed 
anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an 
allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of 
unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school. However, those complaints must be 
filed no later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred. (Education Code Sections 
49013, 52074: Title 5 Section 4630) 

The complaint shall be presented to the Compliance Officer who shall maintain a log of complaints 
received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
If a complainant is unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as illiteracy or other 
disabilities, District staff shall help him or her to file the complaint. (Title 5, Section 4600) 

Mediation 

Within three days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer may informally discuss with the 
complainant the possibility of using mediation. If the complainant agrees to mediation, the 
compliance officer shall make all arrangements for this process. 

Before initiating the mediation of a discrimination complaint, the compliance officer shall ensure that 
all parties agree to make the mediator a party to related confidential information. 

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance 
officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 

The use of mediation shall not extend the District’s timelines for investigating and resolving the  

complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. (Title 5, Section 
4631) 

Investigation of Complaint 

The compliance officer will hold an investigative meeting with the complainant within five school 
days of receiving the complaint. The complainant, and his or her representative, will have an  

opportunity to present the complaint(s) and evidence or information leading to support the allegations 
of non-compliance with state and federal laws and/or regulations. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Parties to the dispute may discuss the complaint and question each other or each other’s witnesses. If 
the complainant does not attend the meeting, the District representative will make a formal note of the 
occurrence and move forward in completing the investigation. 

The District will investigate the complaint and issue the complainant a written report within 60 days 
from the date of the receipt of the complaint, unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension  
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 87



Page 4 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations        Regulation 1312.3 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

of time. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to 
the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or 
engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint 
because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations. (Title 5, Section 4631) 
Refusal by the District to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information 
related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation 
or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding based onevidence 
collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the 
complainant. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Response 

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting 
convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered. The 
Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer’s decision is final. 

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board’s decision to the 
complainant within 60 days of the District’s initially receiving the complaint or within the time period 
that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (Title 5, Section 4631) 

Final Written Decision 

The report of the District’s decision shall be written in English and in the language of the complainant 
whenever feasible or required by law. If it is not feasible to write this report in the complainant’s 
primary language, the District shall arrange a meeting at which a community member will interpret it 
for the complainant. 

This written decision shall include: 

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered, 

2. Conclusions of law, 

3. Disposition of the complaint, 

4. The rationale for the disposition, 

5. Corrective actions, if they are warranted, including, with respect to a pupil fee complaint, a 
remedy that comports with Education Code sections 49013(d) and Title 5, Section 4600(u). 

6. Notice of the complainant’s right to appeal the District’s decision to the California Department of 
Education (CDE), and 
 
7. Procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to the CDE.  
(Title 5, Section 4631) 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Community Relations        Regulation 1312.3 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 88



Page 5 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES Mandated Procedures 

If an employee is disciplined as a result of the complaint, this report shall simply state that effective 
action was taken and that the employee was informed of District expectations. The report shall not 
give any further information as to the nature of the disciplinary action. 
 
 

Appeals to the California Department of Education 

If dissatisfied with the District’s decision, the complainant may appeal in writing to the California 
Department of Education within 15 days of receiving the District’s decision. When appealing to the 
California Department of Education, the complainant must specify the reason(s) for appealing the 
District’s decision and must include a copy of the locally filed complaint and the District’s decision. 
(Title 5, Section 4632) 

Direct State Intervention 
Complainants may ask the California Department of Education to directly intervene without waiting 
for action by the District when certain conditions exist, including, but not limited to, the following: (1) 
the complaint alleges that the District has failed to comply with its Uniform Complaint Procedures, 
including, but not limited to, the failure or refusal to cooperate with an investigation; (2) the 
complainant requests anonymity due to the danger of retaliation and complainant would suffer 
immediate and irreparable harm if complainant files a complaint with the District; (3) complainant 
alleges a failure to comply with special education due process procedures pursuant to state and federal 
law or a due process hearing order; (4) the complaint is related to special education and alleges facts 
that indicate that one or more students may be in immediate physical danger or that the health, safety, 
or welfare of one or more students is threatened; or (6) complainant alleges that the District failed to 
follow a student’s individualized education plan. 

See Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 4650 for the full list of situations that may warrant direct 
state intervention. 

See Policy #1312.3  
CSBA Date – 10/97 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 89



 

 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Community Relations Exhibit #1312.3 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Uniform Complaint Form 

Please complete all information and return this form to: PGUSD Human Resource Office 

435 Hillcrest Avenue 

Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

If you need help filling out the form please contact the Human Resources Director at 646-6507. 

Date Name of Complainant School 

Address City State Zip 

Phone (Day) Phone (Evening) Phone (Cell) 

Name of Parent if not Complainant  

Please check the appropriate box(es):  

A. I am filing a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on one or more of the 

following actual or perceived characteristics, or association with a person or group with one or more of the following actual or 

perceived characteristics: disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, ethnic group 

identification, immigration status, color, age, religion, genetic information, sex or sexual orientation, marital, pregnancy, 

parental or family status or any other characteristics identified in Education Code sections 200 and 220, Government Code 

section 11135, or Penal Code section 422.55, in any District program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial 
assistance. 

B. I am filing a complaint alleging a violation of federal or state laws governing any of the following: adult education, consolidated 

categorical aid programs, career technical and technical education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, migrant 

education, child care and development programs, state preschool program health and safety, foster and homeless youth services, 

lactating student accommodations, pregnant and parenting student parental leave and educational rights, 

physical education instructional minute requirements, educational content course requirements for grades 9-12, former juvenile 

court school students’ graduation, coursework and continuing education options, graduation and coursework requirements for 
foster youth, homeless students, migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a “Newcomer Program,” and 

students living in active duty military households, child nutrition programs, special education or school safety planning. 

Please specify the program(s): _____________________________________________________ . 

C. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for 

participation in educational activities. 

D. I am filing a complaint alleging that the District has not complied with legal requirements related to the implementation of 
the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

E. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of rights of homeless students and students in foster care.  

F. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of student rights regarding graduation and coursework requirements for foster youth, 
homeless students, former juvenile court students, migratory and new arrived immigrant student participating in a “Newcomer Program”, and 

students living in active duty military households. 

G.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation of lactation accommodations for parenting students. 

H.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation by assigning students to course periods without educational content.  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 90



 

 

I.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation of required physical education instructional minutes.   

J. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of graduation requirements and continuing education options for juvenile court school 

students.  

K. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of rights of pregnant or parenting students. 

L. I am filing a complaint alleging schools plans for student achieve or school site council. 

M. I am filing a complaint alleging retaliation for filing a UCP complaint.  

Date and results of informal meeting and/or mediation (if applicable): 

 

(If you need additional space, you may attach a separate sheet of paper to this complaint form.) 

 

 (For Office Use Only)  

   Date Received Date Complainant was contacted 

 

Expected Date of Written Response (60 working days) 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 91



 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Community Relations Exhibit 

#1312.3 

For each box that you checked, please specifically describe the nature of your complaint. Be as factual and specific 

as possible. Discrimination complaints must be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged 

discrimination occurred or when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts supporting the alleged 

discrimination. Therefore, you must as least indicate the approximate date of the alleged violation. If the violation 

has occurred over a period of time or is continuing, please indicate the time period in question. 

Details of the complaint (attach appropriate supporting documents): 

 

 

Specific remedy sought: 

 

Within 60 calendar days following the receipt of the complaint a written report of the district’s investigation 

shall be completed.  

Signature of Complainant: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 92



 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Community Relations Exhibit #1312.3 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Uniform Complaint Form 

Please complete all information and return this form to: PGUSD Human Resource Office 
435 Hillcrest Avenue 
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

If you need help filling out the form please contact the Human Resources Director at 646-6507. 

Date Name of Complainant School 

Address City State Zip 

Phone (Day) Phone (Evening) Phone (Cell) 

Name of Parent if not Complainant  

Please check the appropriate box(es):  

A. I am filing a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying based on one or more of the 
following actual or perceived characteristics, or association with a person or group with one or more of the following actual or 
perceived characteristics: disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, ethnic group 
identification, immigration status, color, age, religion, genetic information, sex or sexual orientation, marital, pregnancy, 
parental or family status or any other characteristics identified in Education Code sections 200 and 220, Government Code 
section 11135, or Penal Code section 422.55, in any District program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial 
assistance. 

B. I am filing a complaint alleging a violation of federal or state laws governing any of the following: adult education, consolidated 
categorical aid programs, career technical and technical education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, migrant 
education, child care and development programs, state preschool program health and safety, foster and homeless youth services, 
lactating student accommodations, pregnant and parenting student parental leave and educational rights, 
physical education instructional minute requirements, educational content course requirements for grades 9-12, former juvenile 
court school students’ graduation, coursework and continuing education options, graduation and coursework requirements for 
foster youth, homeless students, migratory and newly arrived immigrant students participating in a “Newcomer Program,” and 
students living in active duty military households, child nutrition programs, special education or school safety planning. 

Please specify the program(s): _____________________________________________________ . 

C. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of the prohibition against requiring students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for 
participation in educational activities. 

D. I am filing a complaint alleging that the District has not complied with legal requirements related to the implementation of 
the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

E. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of rights of homeless students and students in foster care.  

F. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of student rights regarding graduation and coursework requirements for foster youth, 
homeless students, former juvenile court students, migratory and new arrived immigrant student participating in a “Newcomer Program”, and 
students living in active duty military households. 

G.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation of lactation accommodations for parenting students. 

H.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation by assigning students to course periods without educational content.  

I.  I am filing a complaint alleging violation of required physical education instructional minutes.   

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 93



J. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of graduation requirements and continuing education options for juvenile court school 
students.  

K. I am filing a complaint alleging violation of rights of pregnant or parenting students. 

L. I am filing a complaint alleging schools plans for student achieve or school site council. 

M. I am filing a complaint alleging retaliation for filing a UCP complaint.  

Date and results of informal meeting and/or mediation (if applicable): 

 

(If you need additional space, you may attach a separate sheet of paper to this complaint form.) 

 

 (For Office Use Only)  

   Date Received Date Complainant was contacted 

 

Expected Date of Written Response (60 working days) 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 94



Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Community Relations Exhibit 
#1312.3 

For each box that you checked, please specifically describe the nature of your complaint. Be as factual and specific 
as possible. Discrimination complaints must be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged 
discrimination occurred or when the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts supporting the alleged 
discrimination. Therefore, you must as least indicate the approximate date of the alleged violation. If the violation 
has occurred over a period of time or is continuing, please indicate the time period in question. 

Details of the complaint (attach appropriate supporting documents): 
 

 

Specific remedy sought: 

 

Within 60 calendar days following the receipt of the complaint a written report of the district’s investigation 

shall be completed.  

Signature of Complainant: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 95



 

Page 1 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 

WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  

Types of Complaints 

The district shall use the following procedures to investigate and resolve complaints when the 

complainant alleges that any of the following has occurred: (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR §§4680-

46834680-4687) 

1. Instructional materials 

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or 

instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required 

instructional materials to use in class. 

b. A student does not have access to instructional materials to use at home or after school 

in order to complete required homework assignments. This does not require two sets of 

textbooks or instructional materials for each student. 

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing 

pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 

instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment 

a. A semester begins and a certificated teacher is not assigned to teach the class. 

Vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not 

been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a 

one-semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has 

not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. (Education Code 

35186; 5 CCR § 4600) 

Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all 

students enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee 

assigned for the duration of the class, but not later than 20 working days after the first 

day students attend classes for that semester. (5 CCR § 4600) 

b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach 

a class with more than 20 percent English learner students in the class. 

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 

competency. 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 96



 

Page 2 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 

Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for 

which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a 

certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by 

statute to hold. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4600) 

3. Facilities 

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students or 

staff. 

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a 

threat to the health and safety of students or staff while at school, including 

but not limited to gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-

conditioning systems; electrical power failure; major sewer stoppage; major pest or vermin 

infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security 

risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat 

to students or staff; or structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition. 

(Education Code 17592.72) 

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance with 

Education Code 35292.5. 

Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or maintained 

regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, or paper 

towels or functional hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5) 

Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours when students 

are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when 

students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the restroom is 

necessary for student safety or to make repairs. (Education Code 35292.5) 

4.  Complaints regarding the noncompliance of a license-exempt California State Preschool 

Program (CSPP) with health and safety standards specified in Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and 

related state regulations, including any complaint alleging that: (Education Code 8235.5; Health and 

Safety Code 1596.7925) 

a. The preschool does not have outdoor shade that is safe and in good repair. 

b. Drinking water is not accessible and/or readily available throughout the day. 

c. The preschool does not provide safe and sanitary restroom facilities with one toilet and 

handwashing fixture for every 15 children. 

d. Restroom facilities are not available only for preschoolers and kindergartners. 

e. The preschool program does not provide visual supervision of children at all times. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 97

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1117693/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1


 

Page 3 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

f. Indoor or outdoor space is not properly contained or fenced or does not provide sufficient 

space for the number of children using the space at any given time. 

g. Playground equipment is not safe, in good repair, or age appropriate.  
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 
 

Filing of Complaint 

A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified above shall be filed with the principal or designee. The 

principal or designee shall forward a complaint about problems beyond his/her authority to the 

Superintendent or designee within 10 working days. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The principal or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his/her 

authority. He/she shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to exceed 30 

working days from the date the complaint was received. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4685) 

Complaints may be filed anonymously. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form that 

he/she would like a response to his/her complaint, the principal or designee shall report the resolution 

of the complaint to him/her within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint. At the same 

time, the principal or designee shall report the same information to the Superintendent or designee. 

(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR §§ 4680, 4685) 

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the 

response shall be written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 

(Education Code 35186) 

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of the complaint, he/she may describe the 

complaint to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled hearing. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 

§ 4686) 

For complaints concerning a facility condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or 

safety of students or staff as described in item #3 above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the 

resolution proffered by the principal or Superintendent or designee may file an appeal to the 

Superintendent of Public Instruction within 15 days of receiving the district’s response. The complainant 

shall comply with the appeal requirements specified in 5 CCR section 4632. (Education Code 35186; 5 

CCR § 4687) 

Complaints and written responses shall be public records. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4686) 

Reports 

The Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all 

complaints to the Board and the County Superintendent of Schools on a quarterly basis. The report shall 

include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved 

complaints. These summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled 

Board meeting. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4686) 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 98



 

Page 4 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 

Forms and Notices 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a complaint form is available at each school. However, 

complainants need not use the district's complaint form in order to file a complaint. (Education Code 

35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district’s complaint form contains a space to 

indicate whether the complainant desires a response to his/her complaint and specifies the location for  

filing a complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he/she wishes. 

(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a notice is posted in each classroom in each school 

containing the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 35186) 

EDUCATION CODE: 

234.1 Prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying 

1240 County superintendent of schools, duties 

8235-8239.1 California State Preschool Programs 
17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account 

33126 School accountability report card 
35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures 

35292.5 Restrooms, maintenance and cleanliness 

48985 Notice to parents in language other than English 

60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600–467087 Uniform complaint procedures 

4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

1596.792 California Child Day Care Act; general provisions and definitions 

1596.7925 California Child Day Care Act; health and safety regulations 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

6314 Title I schoolwide program 

 

Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org  

California Department of Education, Williams case: http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc  

State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 99

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/129344/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1096618/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/390295/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/390302/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/807513/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/302980/1
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.ccsesa.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc


Page 1 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 

WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  

Types of Complaints 

The district shall use the following procedures to investigate and resolve complaints when the 
complainant alleges that any of the following has occurred: (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR §§4680--
4687) 

1. Instructional materials 

a. A student, including an English learner, does not have standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials or state- or district-adopted textbooks or other required 
instructional materials to use in class. 

b. A student does not have access to instructional materials to use at home or after school 
in order to complete required homework assignments. This does not require two sets of 
textbooks or instructional materials for each student. 

c. Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing 
pages, or are unreadable due to damage. 

d. A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or 
instructional materials to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment 

a. A semester begins and a certificated teacher is not assigned to teach the class. 

Vacancy means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not 
been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a 
one-semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has 
not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. (Education Code 
35186; 5 CCR § 4600) 

Beginning of the year or semester means the first day classes necessary to serve all 
students enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee 
assigned for the duration of the class, but not later than 20 working days after the first 
day students attend classes for that semester. (5 CCR § 4600) 

b. A teacher who lacks credentials or training to teach English learners is assigned to teach 
a class with more than 20 percent English learner students in the class. 

c. A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter 
competency. 

 
 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 100



Page 2 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 
 
Misassignment means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for 
which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a 
certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by 
statute to hold. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4600) 
 
3. Facilities 

a. A condition poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of students or 
staff. 

Emergency or urgent threat means structures or systems that are in a condition that poses a 
threat to the health and safety of students or staff while at school, including 
but not limited to gas leaks; nonfunctioning heating, ventilation, fire sprinklers, or air-
conditioning systems; electrical power failure; major sewer stoppage; major pest or vermin 
infestation; broken windows or exterior doors or gates that will not lock and that pose a security 
risk; abatement of hazardous materials previously undiscovered that pose an immediate threat 
to students or staff; or structural damage creating a hazardous or uninhabitable condition. 
(Education Code 17592.72) 

b. A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained, or kept open in accordance with 
Education Code 35292.5. 

Clean or maintained school restroom means a school restroom has been cleaned or maintained 
regularly, is fully operational, or has been stocked at all times with toilet paper, soap, or paper 
towels or functional hand dryers. (Education Code 35292.5) 

Open restroom means the school has kept all restrooms open during school hours when students 
are not in classes and has kept a sufficient number of restrooms open during school hours when 
students are in classes. This does not apply when the temporary closing of the restroom is 
necessary for student safety or to make repairs. (Education Code 35292.5) 

 

4.  Complaints regarding the noncompliance of a license-exempt California State Preschool 
Program (CSPP) with health and safety standards specified in Health and Safety Code 1596.7925 and 
related state regulations, including any complaint alleging that: (Education Code 8235.5; Health and 
Safety Code 1596.7925) 

a. The preschool does not have outdoor shade that is safe and in good repair. 

b. Drinking water is not accessible and/or readily available throughout the day. 

c. The preschool does not provide safe and sanitary restroom facilities with one toilet and 
handwashing fixture for every 15 children. 

d. Restroom facilities are not available only for preschoolers and kindergartners. 

e. The preschool program does not provide visual supervision of children at all times. 

 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 101

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1117693/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1


Page 3 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 
 

f. Indoor or outdoor space is not properly contained or fenced or does not provide sufficient 
space for the number of children using the space at any given time. 
g. Playground equipment is not safe, in good repair, or age appropriate.  

 
Filing of Complaint 

A complaint alleging any condition(s) specified above shall be filed with the principal or designee. The 
principal or designee shall forward a complaint about problems beyond his/her authority to the 
Superintendent or designee within 10 working days. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The principal or designee shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his/her 
authority. He/she shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period not to exceed 30 
working days from the date the complaint was received. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4685) 

Complaints may be filed anonymously. If the complainant has indicated on the complaint form that 
he/she would like a response to his/her complaint, the principal or designee shall report the resolution 
of the complaint to him/her within 45 working days of the initial filing of the complaint. At the same 
time, the principal or designee shall report the same information to the Superintendent or designee. 
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR §§ 4680, 4685) 

When Education Code 48985 is applicable and the complainant has requested a response, the 
response shall be written in English and in the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 
(Education Code 35186) 

If a complainant is not satisfied with the resolution of the complaint, he/she may describe the 
complaint to the Governing Board at a regularly scheduled hearing. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR 
§ 4686) 

For complaints concerning a facility condition that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or 
safety of students or staff as described in item #3 above, a complainant who is not satisfied with the 
resolution proffered by the principal or Superintendent or designee may file an appeal to the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction within 15 days of receiving the district’s response. The complainant 
shall comply with the appeal requirements specified in 5 CCR section 4632. (Education Code 35186; 5 
CCR § 4687) 

Complaints and written responses shall be public records. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4686) 

Reports 

The Superintendent or designee shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all 
complaints to the Board and the County Superintendent of Schools on a quarterly basis. The report shall 
include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved 
complaints. These summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled 
Board meeting. (Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4686) 

 
PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Regulation #1312.4 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 102



Page 4 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Forms and Notices 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure a complaint form is available at each school. However, 
complainants need not use the district's complaint form in order to file a complaint. (Education Code 
35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district’s complaint form contains a space to 
indicate whether the complainant desires a response to his/her complaint and specifies the location for  

filing a complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he/she wishes. 
(Education Code 35186; 5 CCR § 4680) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a notice is posted in each classroom in each school 
containing the components specified in Education Code 35186. (Education Code 35186) 

EDUCATION CODE: 
234.1 Prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying 
1240 County superintendent of schools, duties 
8235-8239.1 California State Preschool Programs 
17592.72 Urgent or emergency repairs, School Facility Emergency Repair Account 
33126 School accountability report card 
35186 Williams uniform complaint procedures 
35292.5 Restrooms, maintenance and cleanliness 
48985 Notice to parents in language other than English 
60119 Hearing on sufficiency of instructional materials 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600–4670 Uniform complaint procedures 
4680-4687 Williams uniform complaint procedures 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1596.792 California Child Day Care Act; general provisions and definitions 
1596.7925 California Child Day Care Act; health and safety regulations 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6314 Title I schoolwide program 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://www.ccsesa.org  
California Department of Education, Williams case: http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc  
State Allocation Board, Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 

 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 103

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/129344/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1096618/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/390295/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/390302/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/807513/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150213/1
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/302980/1
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.ccsesa.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/eo/ce/wc


 

Page 1 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

NOTICE TO PARENTS/GUARDIANS:  

COMPLAINT RIGHTS 

Parents/Guardians: 

Education Code 35186 requires that the following notice be posted in your child’s classroom: 

1. There should be sufficient textbooks and instructional materials. For there to be sufficient 

textbooks and instructional materials, each student, including English learners, must have a 

textbook or instructional material, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete required 

homework assignments. 

2. School facilities must be clean, safe, and maintained in good repair. 

3. There should be no teacher vacancies or misassignments. There should be a teacher assigned 

to each class and not a series of substitutes or other temporary teachers. The teacher should have 

the proper credential to teach the class, including the certification required to teach English 

learners, if present. “Misassignment” means the placement of a certificated employee in a 

teaching or services position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized 

certificate or credential, or placement in a teaching or services position for which the 

employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold. 

“Teacher Vacancy” means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not 

been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-

semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been 

assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. 

To file a complaint regarding the above matters, complaint forms can be obtained at the   principal’s 

office, district office, or can be downloaded from the school district’s or California Department of 

Education’s website.: http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/cp/uc. However, a complaint need not be filed using 

either the district’s complaint form or the form from the California Department of Education.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 104

http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/cp/uc


 

Page 2 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

COMPLAINT FORM: WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Complaints may be filed anonymously. However, if you wish to receive a response to your  
complaint, you must provide your contact information below. 

Response requested? U Yes U No 
Date: ______________________________   
Name: 

Address: ________________________________________   

 PhoneNumber: Day: ___________________  Evening: 

 Email: __________________________________________   

Issue(s) of the complaint: Please check all that apply: 

1. Textbooks and instructional materials: 

 U A student lacks textbooks or instructional materials to use in class. 
 U A student does not have access to instructional materials to use at home or after school to 

complete homework assignments. 
 U Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages,  

or are unreadable due to damage. 
U A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 

material to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment: 

 U A semester begins and a certificated teacher is not assigned to teach the class. 
 U A teacher lacks credentials or training to teach English learners or is assigned to teach a 

class with more than 20% English learners in the class. 

 U A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter  

competency. 

3. Facility conditions: 

U A condition exists that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of 
students or staff as defined in Administrative Regulation 1312.4. 

A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained or kept open in accordance with 

Education Code 35292.5. 

Please describe the subject(s) of your complaint in detail, including the date of the problem and specific 

location where the problem occurred (school, room number). You may attach additional pages if 

necessary to fully describe the situation: 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 105



 

Page 3 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

Please file this complaint with the person specified below at the following location: 

Director II, Human Resources  
Pacific Grove Unified School District  

435 Hillcrest Avenue  
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

Please provide a signature below. If you wish to remain anonymous, a signature is not required. 

However, all complaints, even anonymous ones, should be dated.  Please note that all 

complaints and response are public records.  

 

Signature 

 

Date  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 106



Page 1 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

NOTICE TO PARENTS/GUARDIANS:  
COMPLAINT RIGHTS 

Parents/Guardians: 

Education Code 35186 requires that the following notice be posted in your child’s classroom: 

1. There should be sufficient textbooks and instructional materials. For there to be sufficient 
textbooks and instructional materials, each student, including English learners, must have a 
textbook or instructional material, or both, to use in class and to take home to complete required 
homework assignments. 

2. School facilities must be clean, safe, and maintained in good repair. 

3. There should be no teacher vacancies or misassignments. There should be a teacher assigned 
to each class and not a series of substitutes or other temporary teachers. The teacher should have 
the proper credential to teach the class, including the certification required to teach English 
learners, if present. “Misassignment” means the placement of a certificated employee in a 
teaching or services position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized 
certificate or credential, or placement in a teaching or services position for which the 
employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold. 

“Teacher Vacancy” means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not 
been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-
semester course, a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been 
assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester. 

To file a complaint regarding the above matters, complaint forms can be obtained at the   principal’s 
office, district office, or can be downloaded from the school district’s or California Department of 
Education’s website.: http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/cp/uc. However, a complaint need not be filed using 
either the district’s complaint form or the form from the California Department of Education.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 107

http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/cp/uc


Page 2 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

COMPLAINT FORM: WILLIAMS UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Complaints may be filed anonymously. However, if you wish to receive a response to your 
complaint, you must provide your contact information below. 
Response requested? U Yes U No 
Date: ______________________________   
Name: 

Address: ________________________________________   

 PhoneNumber: Day: ___________________  Evening: 

 Email: __________________________________________   

Issue(s) of the complaint: Please check all that apply: 

1. Textbooks and instructional materials: 
 U A student lacks textbooks or instructional materials to use in class. 
 U A student does not have access to instructional materials to use at home or after school to 

complete homework assignments. 
 U Textbooks or instructional materials are in poor or unusable condition, have missing pages,  

or are unreadable due to damage. 
U  A student was provided photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 

material to address a shortage of textbooks or instructional materials. 

2. Teacher vacancy or misassignment: 
 U A semester begins and a certificated teacher is not assigned to teach the class. 
 U A teacher lacks credentials or training to teach English learners or is assigned to teach a 

class with more than 20% English learners in the class. 
 U A teacher is assigned to teach a class for which the teacher lacks subject matter  

competency. 

3. Facility conditions: 
U A condition exists that poses an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of 

students or staff as defined in Administrative Regulation 1312.4. 
U A school restroom has not been cleaned, maintained or kept open in accordance with 

Education Code 35292.5. 

Please describe the subject(s) of your complaint in detail, including the date of the problem and specific 
location where the problem occurred (school, room number). You may attach additional pages if 
necessary to fully describe the situation: 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 108



Page 3 of 3 . Issued: March 3, 2005 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

PACIFIC GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Community Relations Exhibit # 1312.4 

Please file this complaint with the person specified below at the following location: 

Director II, Human Resources  
Pacific Grove Unified School District  

435 Hillcrest Avenue  
Pacific Grove, CA 93950 

Please provide a signature below. If you wish to remain anonymous, a signature is not required. 
However, all complaints, even anonymous ones, should be dated.  Please note that all 
complaints and response are public records.  

 

Signature 

 

Date  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 109



 

Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Business Policy #3513.3  

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS/SMOKING Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board recognizes that the health hazards associated with smoking and the use of tobacco 

products, including the breathing of second-hand smoke, are inconsistent with its goal to provide a 

healthy environment for students and staff. 

The Board further prohibits the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased buildings, 

on district property, and in district vehicles. (Health and Safety Code 104420 and 104559; Labor Code 

6404.5; 20 USC 6083). This prohibition applies to all employees, students, and visitors at any school-

sponsored instructional program, activity or athletic event on or off district property. Any written joint 

use agreement governing community use of district facilities or grounds shall include notice of the 

district's tobacco-free schools policy and consequences for violations of the policy. 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, pipe, 

tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation, whether natural or synthetic, in any manner or in any 

form and includes the use of an electronic smoking device that creates an aerosol or vapor or of any oral 

smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking. (Business and Professions 

Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901) 

Tobacco products include: (Business and Professions Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901)  

1. Any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for 

human consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, 

snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to, cigarettes, 

cigars, little cigars, chewing tobacco, pipe tobacco, or snuff 

2. An electronic device that delivers nicotine or other vaporized liquids to the person inhaling 

from the device, including, but not limited to, an electronic cigarette, cigar, pipe, or hookah 

3. Any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco product, whether or not sold separately 

This policy does not prohibit the use or possession of prescription products and other cessation aids 

that have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug 

Administration, such as nicotine patch or gum. 

Smoking or use of any tobacco-related product or disposal of any tobacco-related waste is prohibited 

within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet of the 

playground. In addition, any form of intimidation, threat, or retaliation against a person for attempting 

to enforce this policy is prohibited. (Health and Safety Code 104495)  

Legal Reference 

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
22950.5 Stop Tobacco Access to Kids Enforcement Act 

EDUCATION CODE 

48900 Grounds for suspension/expulsion 

48901 Prohibition against tobacco use by students 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 110

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132225/3
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/273980/3


 

Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Business Policy #3513.3  

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS/SMOKING Mandated Policy 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
39002 Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources 

104350-104495 Tobacco use prevention, especially: 

104495 Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds 

PENAL CODE 
308 Unlawful to sell or furnish tobacco products to minors 

LABOR CODE 

3300 Employer, definition 
6304 Safe and healthful workplace 

6404.5 Occupational safety and health; use of tobacco products 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

6083 Nonsmoking policy for children's services 
7111-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21 

1140.1-1140.34 Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors 
PERB RULINGS 

Eureka Teachers Assn. v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC 23168) 

CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School District 
(1989) PERB Order #750 (13 PERC 20147) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 111



Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Business Policy #3513.3  

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS/SMOKING Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board recognizes that the health hazards associated with smoking and the use of tobacco 
products, including the breathing of second-hand smoke, are inconsistent with its goal to provide a 
healthy environment for students and staff. 

The Board further prohibits the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased buildings, 
on district property, and in district vehicles. (Health and Safety Code 104420 and 104559; Labor Code 
6404.5; 20 USC 6083). This prohibition applies to all employees, students, and visitors at any school-
sponsored instructional program, activity or athletic event on or off district property. Any written joint 
use agreement governing community use of district facilities or grounds shall include notice of the 
district's tobacco-free schools policy and consequences for violations of the policy. 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, pipe, 
tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation, whether natural or synthetic, in any manner or in any 
form and includes the use of an electronic smoking device that creates an aerosol or vapor or of any oral 
smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking. (Business and Professions 
Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901) 

Tobacco products include: (Business and Professions Code 22950.5; Education Code 48901)  

1. Any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for 
human consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, 
snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to, cigarettes, 
cigars, little cigars, chewing tobacco, pipe tobacco, or snuff 

2. An electronic device that delivers nicotine or other vaporized liquids to the person inhaling 
from the device, including, but not limited to, an electronic cigarette, cigar, pipe, or hookah 

3. Any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco product, whether or not sold separately 

This policy does not prohibit the use or possession of prescription products and other cessation aids 
that have been approved by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug 
Administration, such as nicotine patch or gum. 

Smoking or use of any tobacco-related product or disposal of any tobacco-related waste is prohibited 
within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet of the 
playground. In addition, any form of intimidation, threat, or retaliation against a person for attempting 
to enforce this policy is prohibited. (Health and Safety Code 104495)  

Legal Reference 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
22950.5 Stop Tobacco Access to Kids Enforcement Act 
EDUCATION CODE 
48900 Grounds for suspension/expulsion 
48901 Prohibition against tobacco use by students 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 112

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132225/3
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/273980/3


Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Business Policy #3513.3  

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS/SMOKING Mandated Policy 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
39002 Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources 
104350-104495 Tobacco use prevention, especially: 
104495 Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds 
PENAL CODE 
308 Unlawful to sell or furnish tobacco products to minors 
LABOR CODE 
3300 Employer, definition 
6304 Safe and healthful workplace 
6404.5 Occupational safety and health; use of tobacco products 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6083 Nonsmoking policy for children's services 
7111-7122 Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21 
1140.1-1140.34 Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors 
PERB RULINGS 
Eureka Teachers Assn. v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC 23168) 
CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School District 
(1989) PERB Order #750 (13 PERC 20147) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 113



 

Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: March 16, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students         Policy # 5 0 2 0 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Policy 

Parent Rights 

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of District students have certain rights as well 
as responsibilities related to the education of their children. 

Parents/guardians shall have the opportunity to work with schools in a mutually supportive and 
respectful partnership and to help their children succeed in school. (Education Code 51100) 

The Board believes that the education of the District's students is a shared responsibility. The 
Superintendent or designee shall work with parents/guardians to determine appropriate roles and 
responsibilities of parents/guardians, school staff and students for continuing the intellectual, physical, 
emotional and social development and well-being of students at each school site, including the means 
by which the schools and parents/guardians can help students achieve academic and other standards of 
the school. 

Within this framework, the school's primary responsibility shall be to provide a high-quality curriculum 
and instructional program in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables all students to 
meet the academic expectations of the school. 

The District encourages parents/guardians to support the learning environment of their children by 

monitoring attendance. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district staff understand the rights of 

parents/guardians afforded by law and Board policy and follow acceptable practices that respect those 

rights. 

The Superintendent or designee shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that all parents/guardians who 

speak a language other than English are properly notified in English, and in their home language of the 

rights and opportunities available to them pursuant to Education Code 48985. (Education 

Code 51101.1) 

 

Parent Responsibilities 

Parents/guardians may support the learning environment of their children by: 

1. Monitoring attendance of their children 

2. Ensuring that homework is completed and turned in on time 

3. Encouraging their children to participate in extracurricular and co-curricular activities 

4. Monitoring and regulating the television viewed by their children 

5. Working with their children at home in learning activities that extend the classroom learning 

6. Volunteering in their children's classroom(s) or for other school activities 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 114

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288559/5


 

Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: March 16, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Policy # 5 0 2 0 

 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Policy 

 

7. Participating in decisions related to the education of their own children or the total school 

program as appropriate 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
49091.10-49091.19 Parental review of curriculum and instruction 

51100-51102 Parent/guardian right 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 115



Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: March 16, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  
Students         Policy # 5 0 2 0 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Policy 

Parent Rights 

The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of District students have certain rights as well 
as responsibilities related to the education of their children. 

Parents/guardians shall have the opportunity to work with schools in a mutually supportive and 
respectful partnership and to help their children succeed in school. (Education Code 51100) 

The Board believes that the education of the District's students is a shared responsibility. The 
Superintendent or designee shall work with parents/guardians to determine appropriate roles and 
responsibilities of parents/guardians, school staff and students for continuing the intellectual, physical, 
emotional and social development and well-being of students at each school site, including the means 
by which the schools and parents/guardians can help students achieve academic and other standards of 
the school. 

Within this framework, the school's primary responsibility shall be to provide a high-quality curriculum 
and instructional program in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables all students to 
meet the academic expectations of the school. 

The District encourages parents/guardians to support the learning environment of their children by 
monitoring attendance. 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that district staff understand the rights of 
parents/guardians afforded by law and Board policy and follow acceptable practices that respect those 
rights. 

The Superintendent or designee shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that all parents/guardians who 
speak a language other than English are properly notified in English, and in their home language of the 
rights and opportunities available to them pursuant to Education Code 48985. (Education 
Code 51101.1) 

Parent Responsibilities 

Parents/guardians may support the learning environment of their children by: 

1. Monitoring attendance of their children 

2. Ensuring that homework is completed and turned in on time 

3. Encouraging their children to participate in extracurricular and co-curricular activities 

4. Monitoring and regulating the television viewed by their children 

5. Working with their children at home in learning activities that extend the classroom learning 

6. Volunteering in their children's classroom(s) or for other school activities 
 

Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 116

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288559/5


Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: March 16, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Students Policy # 5 0 2 0 
PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES   Mandated Policy 

 

7. Participating in decisions related to the education of their own children or the total school 

program as appropriate 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
49091.10-49091.19 Parental review of curriculum and instruction 
51100-51102 Parent/guardian right 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 117



 

Page 1 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students         Regulation 5020 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Regulation  

The rights of parents/guardians of District students include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1.  To observe, within a reasonable period of time after making the request, the classroom(s) in which 
their child is enrolled or for the purpose of selecting the school in which their child will be enrolled 
(Education Code 51101) 

Parents/guardians may observe instructional and other school activities that involve their child in 
accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations adopted to ensure the safety of students 
and staff, prevent undue interference with instruction or harassment of school staff, and provide 
reasonable accommodation to parents/guardians. Upon written request by parents/ guardians, the 
Superintendent or designee shall arrange for parental observation of a class or activity in a 
reasonable time frame and in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations. 
(Education Code 49091.10) 

Parents may observe their child as described above, via a webcam placed in the child’s classroom, 
from a separate location at the school site, as long as the following has been completed: 

a. Parent has provided written consent 

b. The site principal and the classroom teacher have been notified and provide their consent 

c. The webcam images and feed are not recorded and the District ensures that they will not be 
broadcast to other than the identified, on-site location 

d. The site principal or designee is present during the viewing of the live feed 

e. The observation is limited to a pre-determined timeframe agreed-upon by all parties 

f. A note is posted outside the classroom door, alerting all who enter that the live feed is 
occurring, including the designated timeframe 

2. To meet, within a reasonable time of their request, with their child's teacher(s) and the principal of 
the school in which their child is enrolled (EC 51101) 

3.  Under the supervision of District employees, to volunteer their time and resources for the 
improvement of school facilities and school programs, including, but not limited to, providing 
assistance in the classroom with the approval, and under the direct supervision, of the teacher (EC 
51101) 

4.  To be notified on a timely basis if their child is absent from school without permission (Education 
Code 51101) 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 118



 

Page 2 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students         Regulation 5020 

 
 
PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Regulation 

 

5. To receive the results of their child's performance and the school's performance on standardized 

tests and statewide tests (Education Code 51101) 

 

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to receive the results of 

their child's performance on the English language development test. (Education Code 51101.1) 

 

6. To request a particular school for their child and to receive a response from the District (Education 

Code 51101) 

7. To have a school environment for their child that is safe and supportive of learning (Education 
Code 51101) 

8. To examine the curriculum materials of the class(es) in which their child is enrolled (Education 
Code 51101; 20 USC 1232h) 

Parents/guardians may inspect, in a reasonable time frame, all primary supplemental instructional 
materials and assessments stored by the classroom teacher, including textbooks, teacher's manuals, 
films, tapes and software. (EC 49091.10) 

Each school site shall make available to parents/guardians and others, upon request, a copy of the 
prospectus for each course, including the titles, descriptions and instructional aims of the course. 
(Education Code 49091.14) 

The school may charge an amount not to exceed the cost of duplication. (Education Code 49091.14) 

9. To be informed of their child's progress in school and of the appropriate school personnel whom     
they should contact if problems arise with their child (Education Code 51101 

10. To have access to the school records of their child (Education Code 51101) 

11. To receive information concerning the academic performance standards, proficiencies or skills their 
child is expected to accomplish (EC 51101) 

12. To be informed in advance about school rules, including disciplinary rules and procedures in 

accordance with Education Code 48980, attendance policies, dress codes and procedures for 
visiting the school (Education Code 51101) 

13. To receive information about any psychological testing the school does involving their child and to 
deny permission to give the test (EC 51101) 

14. To refuse to submit or to participate in any assessment, analysis, evaluation or monitoring of the 
quality or character of the student's home life; any form of parental screening or testing; any 
nonacademic home-based counseling program; parent training; or any prescribed family education 
service plan and to inspect any survey collecting personal information, as defined in 20 USC 
1232h . (Education Code 49091.18; 20 USC 1232hH)] 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 119



 

Page 3 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students        Regulation # 5 0 2 0 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Regulation  

15. To participate as a member of a parent advisory committee, school site council or site-based 
management leadership team in accordance with any rules and regulations governing membership 
in these organizations (EC 51101) 

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to participate in school 
and district advisory bodies in accordance with federal and state law and regulations. (Education 
Code 51101.1) 

16. To question anything in their child's record that the parent/guardian feels is inaccurate or misleading 
or is an invasion of privacy and to receive a response from the school (Education Code 51101) 

17. To provide prior written consent before their student participates in a survey containing the 
mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family, the sexual behavior or attitudes 
or personal beliefs and practices in family life. (20 U.S.C. § 1232h; Education Code 51513) 

18. To be provided written notice and given an opportunity to request that their child not participate in 
district administered anonymous and voluntary surveys regarding health risks and behaviors, 
relating to student’s attitudes or practices related to sex in grades 7-12. (20 U.S.C. § 1232h; 
Education Code 51513 and 51938) 

19. The Superintendent or designee shall obtain informed written parental consent before testing any 
student for a behavioral, mental or emotional evaluation. A general consent, including medical 
consent used to approve admission to or involvement in, a special education or remedial program or 
regular school activity, shall not constitute written consent for these purposes. (EC 49091.12) 

20. Students in grades 7 to 12 shall have the right to obtain confidential medical care or confidential 
counseling related to the diagnosis or treatment of a drug or alcohol-related problem, or mental 
health treatment or counseling, without the consent of his/her parent/guardian. (Education Code 
46010.1; 49091.12) 

21. For parents/guardians of English Learners, to support their child’s advancement towards literacy 
(Education Code 51101.1) 

22. For parents/guardians of English learners, to be informed, through the school accountability report 
card, about statewide and local academic standards, testing programs, accountability measures, and 
school improvement efforts (Education Code 51101.1) 

23. To be notified, as early in the school year as practicable pursuant to Education Code 48070.5, if 
their child is identified as being at risk of retention and of their right to consult with school 
personnel responsible for a decision to promote or retain their child and to appear such a decision 
(Education Code 51101) 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 120



 

Page 4 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students        Regulation 5020 

 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES Mandated Regulation 

The Superintendent or designee may make available, to the extent possible, surplus or undistributed 
instructional materials to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 60510. (Education Code 
51101.1) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that District staff understand the rights of 
parents/guardians afforded by law and Board policy and follow acceptable practices that respect 
those rights. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians receive notification regarding their 
rights in accordance with law. 

School officials or law enforcement officials have the authority to investigate or intervene in cases of 
suspected child abuse, (Education Code 49091.12) 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 121



Page 1 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  
Students         Regulation 5020 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES   Mandated Regulation  

The rights of parents/guardians of District students include, but are not limited to, the following: 

1.  To observe, within a reasonable period of time after making the request, the classroom(s) in which 
their child is enrolled or for the purpose of selecting the school in which their child will be enrolled 
(Education Code 51101) 

Parents/guardians may observe instructional and other school activities that involve their child in 
accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations adopted to ensure the safety of students 
and staff, prevent undue interference with instruction or harassment of school staff, and provide 
reasonable accommodation to parents/guardians. Upon written request by parents/ guardians, the 
Superintendent or designee shall arrange for parental observation of a class or activity in a 
reasonable time frame and in accordance with Board policy and administrative regulations. 
(Education Code 49091.10) 

Parents may observe their child as described above, via a webcam placed in the child’s classroom, 
from a separate location at the school site, as long as the following has been completed: 

a. Parent has provided written consent 

b. The site principal and the classroom teacher have been notified and provide their consent 

c. The webcam images and feed are not recorded and the District ensures that they will not be 
broadcast to other than the identified, on-site location 

d. The site principal or designee is present during the viewing of the live feed 

e. The observation is limited to a pre-determined timeframe agreed-upon by all parties 

f. A note is posted outside the classroom door, alerting all who enter that the live feed is 
occurring, including the designated timeframe 

2. To meet, within a reasonable time of their request, with their child's teacher(s) and the principal of 
the school in which their child is enrolled (EC 51101) 

3.  Under the supervision of District employees, to volunteer their time and resources for the 
improvement of school facilities and school programs, including, but not limited to, providing 
assistance in the classroom with the approval, and under the direct supervision, of the teacher (EC 
51101) 

4.  To be notified on a timely basis if their child is absent from school without permission (Education 
Code 51101) 

 

 
Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 122



Page 2 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Students         Regulation 5020 
 
 
PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  Mandated Regulation 
 
5. To receive the results of their child's performance and the school's performance on standardized 

tests and statewide tests (Education Code 51101) 
 

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to receive the results of 
their child's performance on the English language development test. (Education Code 51101.1) 
 

6. To request a particular school for their child and to receive a response from the District (Education 
Code 51101) 

7. To have a school environment for their child that is safe and supportive of learning (Education 
Code 51101) 

8. To examine the curriculum materials of the class(es) in which their child is enrolled (Education 
Code 51101; 20 USC 1232h) 

Parents/guardians may inspect, in a reasonable time frame, all primary supplemental instructional 
materials and assessments stored by the classroom teacher, including textbooks, teacher's manuals, 
films, tapes and software. (EC 49091.10) 

Each school site shall make available to parents/guardians and others, upon request, a copy of the 
prospectus for each course, including the titles, descriptions and instructional aims of the course. 
(Education Code 49091.14) 

The school may charge an amount not to exceed the cost of duplication. (Education Code 49091.14) 

9. To be informed of their child's progress in school and of the appropriate school personnel whom     
they should contact if problems arise with their child (Education Code 51101 

10. To have access to the school records of their child (Education Code 51101) 

11. To receive information concerning the academic performance standards, proficiencies or skills their 
child is expected to accomplish (EC 51101) 

12. To be informed in advance about school rules, including disciplinary rules and procedures in 
accordance with Education Code 48980, attendance policies, dress codes and procedures for 
visiting the school (Education Code 51101) 

13. To receive information about any psychological testing the school does involving their child and to 
deny permission to give the test (EC 51101) 

14. To refuse to submit or to participate in any assessment, analysis, evaluation or monitoring of the 
quality or character of the student's home life; any form of parental screening or testing; any 
nonacademic home-based counseling program; parent training; or any prescribed family education 
service plan and to inspect any survey collecting personal information, as defined in 20 USC 
1232h  (Education Code 49091.18; 20 USC 1232h)] 

Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 123



Page 3 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Students         Regulation 5020 
 
PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  Mandated Regulation 

15. To participate as a member of a parent advisory committee, school site council or site-based 
management leadership team in accordance with any rules and regulations governing membership 
in these organizations (EC 51101) 

For parents/guardians of English learners, this right shall include the right to participate in school 
and district advisory bodies in accordance with federal and state law and regulations. (Education 
Code 51101.1) 

16. To question anything in their child's record that the parent/guardian feels is inaccurate or misleading 
or is an invasion of privacy and to receive a response from the school (Education Code 51101) 

17. To provide prior written consent before their student participates in a survey containing the 
mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family, the sexual behavior or attitudes 
or personal beliefs and practices in family life. (20 U.S.C. § 1232h; Education Code 51513) 

18. To be provided written notice and given an opportunity to request that their child not participate in 
district administered anonymous and voluntary surveys regarding health risks and behaviors, 
relating to student’s attitudes or practices related to sex in grades 7-12. (20 U.S.C. § 1232h; 
Education Code 51513 and 51938) 

19. The Superintendent or designee shall obtain informed written parental consent before testing any 
student for a behavioral, mental or emotional evaluation. A general consent, including medical 
consent used to approve admission to or involvement in, a special education or remedial program or 
regular school activity, shall not constitute written consent for these purposes. (EC 49091.12) 

20. Students in grades 7 to 12 shall have the right to obtain confidential medical care or confidential 
counseling related to the diagnosis or treatment of a drug or alcohol-related problem, or mental 
health treatment or counseling, without the consent of his/her parent/guardian. (Education Code 
46010.1; 49091.12) 

21. For parents/guardians of English Learners, to support their child’s advancement towards literacy 
(Education Code 51101.1) 

22. For parents/guardians of English learners, to be informed, through the school accountability report 
card, about statewide and local academic standards, testing programs, accountability measures, and 
school improvement efforts (Education Code 51101.1) 

23. To be notified, as early in the school year as practicable pursuant to Education Code 48070.5, if 
their child is identified as being at risk of retention and of their right to consult with school 
personnel responsible for a decision to promote or retain their child and to appear such a decision 
(Education Code 51101) 

 

 

 

Pacif ic  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 124



Page 4 of 4 . Issued: March 6, 2003 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Students        Regulation 5020 
 

PARENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES  Mandated Regulation 

The Superintendent or designee may make available, to the extent possible, surplus or undistributed 
instructional materials to parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 60510. (Education Code 
51101.1) 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that District staff understand the rights of 
parents/guardians afforded by law and Board policy and follow acceptable practices that respect 
those rights. 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians receive notification regarding their 
rights in accordance with law. 

School officials or law enforcement officials have the authority to investigate or intervene in cases of 
suspected child abuse, (Education Code 49091.12) 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 125



 

Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students         Policy # 5 1 1 3 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES   Mandated 

The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays a key role in student achievement. The 
Board recognizes its responsibility under the law to ensure that students attend school regularly. 
Parents/guardians of children aged 6 years to 18 years are obligated to send their children to school 
unless otherwise provided by law. The Board shall abide by all state attendance laws and may use 
appropriate legal means to correct the problems of excessive absence or truancy. 

Excused Absences 

Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies and justifiable 
personal reasons, (listed in the regulation) as permitted by law, Board policy and administration 
regulations. (EC 46010, 48205) 

Insofar as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences, parents/guardians and 
students shall be encouraged to schedule medical appointments during nonschool hours. 

Students should not be absent from school without their parents’/guardians' knowledge or consent except 
in cases of medical emergency or as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1 for a confidential 
medical appointment. 

Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school 
property may be considered excused subject to administrative regulations and law. (Education Code 
46014) 

Unexcused Absences/Truancy 

The Board desires to emphasize the importance of school attendance. The Superintendent or designee 
shall implement positive steps to reduce truancy, such as communication with parents/guardians and the 
use of student study teams. 

Students who are habitual truants or habitually insubordinate or disorderly during attendance at 
school may be referred to the District attorney’s office or to the county probation department. 

When the student's attendance problems cannot be resolved or the student and parent/guardian have 

failed to respond to directives to correct the problem, a student who has been classified as truant may be 
referred to the District attorney or probation officer for truancy mediation. 

A student's grades may be affected by excessive unexcused absences in accordance with Board policy. 
Students with excessive unexcused absences (25% of the school days in a quarter) may receive a failing 
grade and may not receive credit for the class(es). 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
37201 School month 

37223 Weekend classes 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 126



 

Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students Policy # 5 1 1 3 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated 

41601 Reports of average daily attendance 

42238-42251 Apportionments 
46000 Records (attendance) 
46010-46014 Absences 
46100-46119 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 
46140-46147 Attendance in junior high and high schools 

48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance 
48225.5 Work Permits 
48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273 Truants 

48292 Filing complaint against parent 
48320-48325 School attendance review boards 
48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance 

48980 Parental notifications 
49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 
ELECTIONS CODE 

12302 Student participation on precinct boards 
FAMILY CODE 
6920-6929 Consent by minor 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.7 Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
601-601.4 Habitually truant minors 
11253.5 Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306 Explanation of absence 

420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 245, 249 (1983) 
COURT DECISIONS 
American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 

Management Resources: 
CDE MANAGEMENT ADVISORIES 
0114.98 School Attendance and CalWORKS, Management Bulletin 98-01 
CSBA ADVISORIES 

0520.97 Welfare Reform and Requirements for School Attendance 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
 
 
 
 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 127

http://www.csba.org/


Page 1 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 
Students         Policy # 5 1 1 3 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES   Mandated 

The Governing Board believes that regular attendance plays a key role in student achievement. The 
Board recognizes its responsibility under the law to ensure that students attend school regularly. 
Parents/guardians of children aged 6 years to 18 years are obligated to send their children to school 
unless otherwise provided by law. The Board shall abide by all state attendance laws and may use 
appropriate legal means to correct the problems of excessive absence or truancy. 

Excused Absences 

Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies and justifiable 
personal reasons, (listed in the regulation) as permitted by law, Board policy and administration 
regulations. (EC 46010, 48205) 

Insofar as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences, parents/guardians and 
students shall be encouraged to schedule medical appointments during nonschool hours. 

Students should not be absent from school without their parents’/guardians' knowledge or consent except 
in cases of medical emergency or as authorized pursuant to Education Code 46010.1 for a confidential 
medical appointment. 

Student absence for religious instruction or participation in religious exercises away from school 
property may be considered excused subject to administrative regulations and law. (Education Code 
46014) 

Unexcused Absences/Truancy 

The Board desires to emphasize the importance of school attendance. The Superintendent or designee 
shall implement positive steps to reduce truancy, such as communication with parents/guardians and the 
use of student study teams. 

Students who are habitual truants or habitually insubordinate or disorderly during attendance at 
school may be referred to the District attorney’s office or to the county probation department. 

When the student's attendance problems cannot be resolved or the student and parent/guardian have 
failed to respond to directives to correct the problem, a student who has been classified as truant may be 
referred to the District attorney or probation officer for truancy mediation. 

A student's grades may be affected by excessive unexcused absences in accordance with Board policy. 
Students with excessive unexcused absences (25% of the school days in a quarter) may receive a failing 
grade and may not receive credit for the class(es). 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
1740 Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
37201 School month 
37223 Weekend classes 
 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 128



Page 2 of 2 . Adopted: July 16, 1996 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Students Policy # 5 1 1 3 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated 

41601 Reports of average daily attendance 
42238-42251 Apportionments 
46000 Records (attendance) 
46010-46014 Absences 
46100-46119 Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 
46140-46147 Attendance in junior high and high schools 
48200-48208 Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48210-48216 Exclusions from attendance 
48225.5 Work Permits 
48240-48246 Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273 Truants 
48292 Filing complaint against parent 
48320-48325 School attendance review boards 
48340-48341 Improvement of student attendance 
48980 Parental notifications 
49067 Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 
ELECTIONS CODE 
12302 Student participation on precinct boards 
FAMILY CODE 
6920-6929 Consent by minor 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.7 Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
601-601.4 Habitually truant minors 
11253.5 Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306 Explanation of absence 
420-421 Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 245, 249 (1983) 
COURT DECISIONS 
American Academy of Pediatrics et al v. Lungren et al (1997) 16 Cal.4th 307 

Management Resources: 
CDE MANAGEMENT ADVISORIES 
0114.98 School Attendance and CalWORKS, Management Bulletin 98-01 
CSBA ADVISORIES 
0520.97 Welfare Reform and Requirements for School Attendance 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 129

http://www.csba.org/


 

Page 1 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

Excused Absences 

A student's absence shall be excused for the following reasons, and the student shall be allowed to 
make up work for full credit, as assigned by the classroom teacher (additionally Ed Code 46010, 
48205): 

1. Personal illness 

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer 

3. Medical, dental, optometric, or chiropractic appointments 

4. Attendance at funeral services for a member of the immediate family 

a. Excused absence in this instance shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted in 
California or three days if the service is conducted out of state. 

b. "Immediate family" shall be defined as the parent or guardian, brother or sister, grandparent, 
or any other relative living in the household of the student. 

5. Jury duty in the manner provided by law 

6. Participation in religious instruction or exercises in accordance with District policy (Ed Code 46014) 

a. In such instances, the student shall attend at least the minimum school day. 

b. The student shall be excused for this purpose on no more than four school days per month. 

 . The student's parent/guardian shall provide written consent for the absence. 

7. The illness or medical appointment during school hours of a child to whom the student is the custodial 
parent, including absences to care for a sick child for which the school shall not require a doctor’s 
note. (Education Code 48205) 

8. Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12303 (Education 
Code 48205) 

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed 
services, as defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for deployment to a 
combat zone or a combat support position or is on leave from or has immediately returned from 
such deployment (Education Code 48205).  

 

Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the 

Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 48205)  
 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 130

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/600235/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5


 

Page 2 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 
 
10. To attend his/her naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education Code 48205) 

 
11. Work in the entertainment or allied industry (Education Code 48225.5) 

Such absence shall be excused provided that the student holds a work permit authorizing such 

work and is absent for a period of not more than five consecutive days and up to five absences 

per school year. (Education Code 48225.5) 

12. Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school 

audience (Education Code 48225.5) 

A student may be excused for up to five such absences per school year provided that the student's 

parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school. (Education 

Code 48225.5) 

13. Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the student's 

specific circumstances (Education Code 48205, 48260) 

In addition, a student's absence shall be excused for justifiable personal reasons. Advance written request 
by the parent/guardian and approval of the principal or designee shall be required for absences for: 
(additionally Ed Code 48205) 

1. Appearance in court 

2. Attendance at a funeral service for a person other than a member of the student's immediate family 

3. Observation of a holiday or ceremony of his/her religion 

4. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than four hours during a semester 

5. Attendance at an employment conference 

1. Attendance at an education conference offered by a nonprofit organization on the legislative or 
judicial process 

The Board desires to emphasize the importance of school attendance. Therefore, students with excessive 
unexcused absences (25% of the school days in a grading period) may receive a failing grade and may 
not receive credit for the class(es). 

Allowable Credit Due to Unexcused Absences 

Parents or guardians may be allowed, on a limited basis, to have students submit pre-approved class 
work or assignments for partial or full credit due to an unexcused absence 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 131

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132113/5


 

Page 3 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

a. The parent/guardian must request approval from the site principal in advance of the absence. 
Parents are strongly discouraged from scheduling non-medical appointments, business or 
vacation travel during times when school is in session, as these are considered unexcused 
absences. Any parent contemplating family travel during school must contact the school at least 
two weeks prior to the absence to ascertain its probable impact on their child’s academic and 
credit situation. 

b. Approval for allowable credit due to an unexcused absence may be granted for up to ten (10) 
days per school year if the absence is due to business or travel that has demonstrable educational 
value and the student’s academic progress will not be impeded as a result. 

c. Teacher or Administrative pre-approved students absences for school sponsored events may be 

eligible for full credit outside of the allowable days noted in (b) above. 

d. The maximum number of days of allowable credit shall be ten (10) days per school year, except 
in unusual circumstances. 

e. Make-up work and/or tests will not be provided for unexcused absences in excess of the 
established limits. 

Method of Verification 

When students who have been absent return to school, they must present a satisfactory explanation 
verifying the reason for the absence. The following methods may be used to verify student absences: 

1. Written note from parent/guardian, parent representative, or student if 18 or older (EC 46012) 

2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's 
parent/guardian or parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the following: 

a. Name of student 
b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative 

c. Name of verifying employee 
d. Date or dates of absence 
e. Reason for absence 

3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method that establishes 
the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. A written recording shall be made, 
including information outlined above. 

4. Physician's verification 

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, 
District staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may contact a medical office 
to confirm the time of the appointment. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 132



 

Page 4 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

 
b. When a student has had 14 absences in the school year for illness verified by methods listed in 

1 through 3 above, any further absences for illness must be verified by a physician. 

Explanation of Student Absences 

A. Procedure for Parents to Explain Absences: 

1. Absence from School 

If a student is absent from school, the parent or guardian should call the school that morning to 
report the absence or the student will be required to bring a note from the parent to the office 
upon returning to school within two (2) days of return to school. 

2. Tardiness to School 
If a student will be late to school, parents are requested to call the school office prior to 9:30 
a.m. to inform the school. Regardless of this call, the tardy will remain unexcused unless it 
qualifies as a justifiable or excused absence. 

3. Early Dismissal from School 

If a parent wishes to have a student dismissed from school early, the parent shall sign the 
student out of school at the school office prior to leaving. Students are not permitted to leave 
the building or school grounds without prior approval. 

B. The Board of Education treats all students equally regardless of age. Students who are 18 
or older are responsible for abiding by all attendance regulations including absences, dismissal, 
tardiness and class cutting. 

C. Failure to account for absences as described above will result in the absence being treated in the 
same manner as truancies. 

Truancy 

1. Students shall be classified as truant if absent from school without a valid excuse three full days 
in one school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day 
without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof. Such 
students shall be reported to the Superintendent or designee. (Ed Code 48260) 

The parent/guardian of a student classified as a truant shall be notified of the following (EC 
48260.5) 

a. The student is truant 

b. The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend school 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 133



 

Page 5 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

 

c. The parent/guardian who fails to meet this obligation may be guilty of an infraction of the law 
and subject to prosecution pursuant to EC 48290-48297 

d. The parent/guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school personnel to discuss 
solutions to the student's truancy 

e. Alternative educational programs are available in the District 

f. The student may be subject to arrest by a probation officer, a peace officer, a school 
administrator, an attendance supervisor or his/her designee under Ed Code 48264 if found 
away from home and absent from school without a valid excuse 

g. The student may be subject to suspension, restriction or delay of his/her driving privilege 
pursuant to Vehicle Code 13202.7 

h. It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to school and attend 
classes with the student for one day 

2. Upon his/her first truancy, the student and, as appropriate, the parent or legal guardian, may be 
requested to attend a meeting with a school counselor or other school designee to discuss the root 
causes of the attendance issue and develop a joint plan to improve the student’s attendance. 

3. Upon his/her second truancy within the same school year, a student may be given a written warning 

by a peace officer. A record of this warning may be kept at school for at least two years or until the 
student graduates or transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the record may be forwarded 
to the new school. The student may also be assigned to an after-school or weekend study program 
within the county. If the student fails to successfully complete this study program, he/she shall be 
subject to item #5 below. 

4. Upon his/her first or second truancy within the same school year, an appropriate District staff member 
shall make every effort to hold at least one conference with the student and parent/guardian and 
may discuss resources available for achieving regular school attendance, which may include: 

a. Program changes 
b. Referral of family to community agency 
c. Referral to school psychologist or student study team 
d. Modified day 
e. Independent study 
f. Special school projects, special programs 
g. School furlough 
h. Work-experience education 
i. Alternative education 
j. Referral for health checkup, medical examination 
 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 134



 

Page 6 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 
 

5. Upon his/her third truancy within the same school year, the student shall be classified a habitual truant 
as defined in Education Code 48262 and may be referred to, and required to attend, an attendance 
review board, a truancy mediation program established by the District attorney or the probation 
officer, or a comparable program deemed acceptable by the Superintendent or designee. If the 
student does not successfully complete the truancy mediation program or other similar program, 
he/she shall be subject to item #6 below. 

6. Upon his/her fourth truancy within the same school year, the student may be within the jurisdiction 
of the juvenile court that may adjudge the student to be a ward of the court pursuant to Section 601 
of the Welfare and Institutions Code. If the student is adjudged a ward of the court, the student will 
be required to do one or more of the following: 

(1) Performance at court-approved community services sponsored by either a public or private 
nonprofit agency for not less than 20 hours but not more than 40 hours over a period not to 
exceed 90 days, during a time other than the student's hours of school attendance or 
employment. The probation officer shall report to the court the failure of the student to comply 
with this paragraph. 
 
(2) Payment of a fine by the student of not more than fifty dollars ($50) for which a parent or 
legal guardian of the student may be jointly liable. The fine described in this paragraph shall not 
be subject to the assessments of Section 1464 of the Penal Code or any other applicable section. 

(3) Attendance of a court-approved truancy prevention program. 

(4) Suspension or revocation of driving privileges pursuant to Section 13202.7 of the Vehicle 
Code. This subsection shall apply only to a student who has attended a school attendance review 
board program, a program operated by a probation department acting as a school attendance 
review board, or a truancy mediation program. (Ed Code 48264.5) 

A habitual truant may be referred to a school attendance review board or to the probation department. 
(Ed Code 48263) 

When a student is referred to a school attendance review board or to the probation department, the 
Superintendent or designee shall provide the student and parent/ guardian, in writing, the name and 
address of the school attendance review board or probation department and the reason for the referral. 
This notice shall indicate that the student and parent/guardian will be required, along with a District 
staff member, to meet with the school attendance review board or probation officer to consider a proper 
disposition of the referral. (Ed Code 48263) 

The Superintendent or designee shall gather and transmit to the County Superintendent of Schools the 

number of referrals and types of referrals made to the school attendance review board and the number 
of requests for petitions made to the juvenile court. (Ed Code 48273) 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 135



 

Page 7 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

Parental Notifications 

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall: 

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate in 
religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at other 
suitable places away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or denomination. 
(Education Code 46014, 48980)  

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students that school authorities may 
excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of the 
student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 46010.1)  

3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have his/her grade reduced or lose academic 
credit for any excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are 
satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time, and include the full text of Education 
Code 48205 in the notice. (Education Code 48980)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 136

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131974/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131967/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/5


Page 1 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

Excused Absences 

A student's absence shall be excused for the following reasons, and the student shall be allowed to 
make up work for full credit, as assigned by the classroom teacher (additionally Ed Code 46010, 
48205): 

1.  Personal illness 

2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer 

3.  Medical, dental, optometric, or chiropractic appointments 

4. Attendance at funeral services for a member of the immediate family 

a. Excused absence in this instance shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted in 
California or three days if the service is conducted out of state. 

b. "Immediate family" shall be defined as the parent or guardian, brother or sister, grandparent, 
or any other relative living in the household of the student. 

5.  Jury duty in the manner provided by law 

6.  Participation in religious instruction or exercises in accordance with District policy (Ed Code 
46014) 

a. In such instances, the student shall attend at least the minimum school day. 

b. The student shall be excused for this purpose on no more than four school days per month. 

c.   The student's parent/guardian shall provide written consent for the absence. 

7.  The illness or medical appointment during school hours of a child to whom the student is the 
custodial parent, including absences to care for a sick child for which the school shall not require 
a doctor’s note. (Education Code 48205) 

8.  Service as a member of a precinct board for an election pursuant to Elections Code 12303 
(Education Code 48205) 

9. To spend time with an immediate family member who is an active duty member of the uniformed 
services, as defined in Education Code 49701, and has been called to duty for deployment to a 
combat zone or a combat support position or is on leave from or has immediately returned from 
such deployment (Education Code 48205).  
 
Such absence shall be granted for a period of time to be determined at the discretion of the 
Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 48205) 
 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 137

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/600235/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5


Page 2 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 
 
10.  To attend his/her naturalization ceremony to become a United States citizen (Education Code 

48205) 
 

11.  Work in the entertainment or allied industry (Education Code 48225.5) 
Such absence shall be excused provided that the student holds a work permit authorizing such 
work and is absent for a period of not more than five consecutive days and up to five absences 
per school year. (Education Code 48225.5) 

12.  Participation with a nonprofit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school 
audience (Education Code 48225.5) 

A student may be excused for up to five such absences per school year provided that the student's 
parent/guardian provides a written explanation of such absence to the school. (Education 
Code 48225.5) 

13.  Other reasons authorized at the discretion of the principal or designee based on the student's 
specific circumstances (Education Code 48205, 48260) 

In addition, a student's absence shall be excused for justifiable personal reasons. Advance written request 
by the parent/guardian and approval of the principal or designee shall be required for absences for: 
(additionally Ed Code 48205) 

1. Appearance in court 

2. Attendance at a funeral service for a person other than a member of the student's immediate family 

3. Observation of a holiday or ceremony of his/her religion 

4. Attendance at religious retreats for no more than four hours during a semester 

5. Attendance at an employment conference 

6.  Attendance at an education conference offered by a nonprofit organization on the legislative or 
judicial process 

The Board desires to emphasize the importance of school attendance. Therefore, students with excessive 
unexcused absences (25% of the school days in a grading period) may receive a failing grade and may 
not receive credit for the class(es). 

Allowable Credit Due to Unexcused Absences 

Parents or guardians may be allowed, on a limited basis, to have students submit pre-approved class 
work or assignments for partial or full credit due to an unexcused absence 

 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 138

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137573/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132113/5


Page 3 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

a. The parent/guardian must request approval from the site principal in advance of the absence. 
Parents are strongly discouraged from scheduling non-medical appointments, business or 
vacation travel during times when school is in session, as these are considered unexcused 
absences. Any parent contemplating family travel during school must contact the school at least 
two weeks prior to the absence to ascertain its probable impact on their child’s academic and 
credit situation. 

b. Approval for allowable credit due to an unexcused absence may be granted for up to ten (10) 
days per school year if the absence is due to business or travel that has demonstrable educational 
value and the student’s academic progress will not be impeded as a result. 

c. Teacher or Administrative pre-approved students absences for school sponsored events may be 
eligible for full credit outside of the allowable days noted in (b) above. 

d. The maximum number of days of allowable credit shall be ten (10) days per school year, except 
in unusual circumstances. 

e.  Make-up work and/or tests will not be provided for unexcused absences in excess of the 
established limits. 

Method of Verification 

When students who have been absent return to school, they must present a satisfactory explanation 
verifying the reason for the absence. The following methods may be used to verify student absences: 

1. Written note from parent/guardian, parent representative, or student if 18 or older (EC 46012) 

2.  Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the student's 
parent/guardian or parent representative. The employee shall subsequently record the following: 

a. Name of student 
b. Name of parent/guardian or parent representative 
c. Name of verifying employee 
d. Date or dates of absence 
e. Reason for absence 

3.  Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method that 
establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. A written recording shall be 
made, including information outlined above. 

4.     Physician's verification 

a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such appointments, 
District staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may contact a medical office 
to confirm the time of the appointment. 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 139



Page 4 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

 
b. When a student has had 14 absences in the school year for illness verified by methods listed in 

1 through 3 above, any further absences for illness must be verified by a physician. 

Explanation of Student Absences 

A.    Procedure for Parents to Explain Absences: 

1. Absence from School 

If a student is absent from school, the parent or guardian should call the school that morning to 
report the absence or the student will be required to bring a note from the parent to the office 
upon returning to school within two (2) days of return to school. 

2. Tardiness to School 
If a student will be late to school, parents are requested to call the school office prior to 9:30 
a.m. to inform the school. Regardless of this call, the tardy will remain unexcused unless it 
qualifies as a justifiable or excused absence. 

3.  Early Dismissal from School 

If a parent wishes to have a student dismissed from school early, the parent shall sign the 
student out of school at the school office prior to leaving. Students are not permitted to leave 
the building or school grounds without prior approval. 

B. The Board of Education treats all students equally regardless of age. Students who are 18 
or older are responsible for abiding by all attendance regulations including absences, dismissal, 
tardiness and class cutting. 

C. Failure to account for absences as described above will result in the absence being treated in the 
same manner as truancies. 

Truancy 

1. Students shall be classified as truant if absent from school without a valid excuse three full days 
in one school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day 
without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof. Such 
students shall be reported to the Superintendent or designee. (Ed Code 48260) 

The parent/guardian of a student classified as a truant shall be notified of the following (EC 
48260.5) 

a. The student is truant 

b. The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend school 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 140



Page 5 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

 

c. The parent/guardian who fails to meet this obligation may be guilty of an infraction of the law 
and subject to prosecution pursuant to EC 48290-48297 

d. The parent/guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school personnel to discuss 
solutions to the student's truancy 

e. Alternative educational programs are available in the District 

f. The student may be subject to arrest by a probation officer, a peace officer, a school 
administrator, an attendance supervisor or his/her designee under Ed Code 48264 if found 
away from home and absent from school without a valid excuse 

g. The student may be subject to suspension, restriction or delay of his/her driving privilege 
pursuant to Vehicle Code 13202.7 

h. It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to school and attend 
classes with the student for one day 

2.  Upon his/her first truancy, the student and, as appropriate, the parent or legal guardian, may be 
requested to attend a meeting with a school counselor or other school designee to discuss the root 
causes of the attendance issue and develop a joint plan to improve the student’s attendance. 

3.  Upon his/her second truancy within the same school year, a student may be given a written warning 
by a peace officer. A record of this warning may be kept at school for at least two years or until the 
student graduates or transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the record may be forwarded 
to the new school. The student may also be assigned to an after-school or weekend study program 
within the county. If the student fails to successfully complete this study program, he/she shall be 
subject to item #5 below. 

4.  Upon his/her first or second truancy within the same school year, an appropriate District staff 
member shall make every effort to hold at least one conference with the student and parent/guardian 
and may discuss resources available for achieving regular school attendance, which may include: 
a. Program changes 
b. Referral of family to community agency 
c. Referral to school psychologist or student study team 
d. Modified day 
e. Independent study 
f. Special school projects, special programs 
g. School furlough 
h. Work-experience education 
i. Alternative education 
j. Referral for health checkup, medical examination 

 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 141



Page 6 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 
 

5.  Upon his/her third truancy within the same school year, the student shall be classified a habitual 
truant as defined in Education Code 48262 and may be referred to, and required to attend, an 
attendance review board, a truancy mediation program established by the District attorney or the 
probation officer, or a comparable program deemed acceptable by the Superintendent or designee. 
If the student does not successfully complete the truancy mediation program or other similar 
program, he/she shall be subject to item #6 below. 

6.  Upon his/her fourth truancy within the same school year, the student may be within the jurisdiction 
of the juvenile court that may adjudge the student to be a ward of the court pursuant to Section 601 
of the Welfare and Institutions Code. If the student is adjudged a ward of the court, the student will 
be required to do one or more of the following: 

(1) Performance at court-approved community services sponsored by either a public or private 
nonprofit agency for not less than 20 hours but not more than 40 hours over a period not to 
exceed 90 days, during a time other than the student's hours of school attendance or 
employment. The probation officer shall report to the court the failure of the student to comply 
with this paragraph. 
 
(2) Payment of a fine by the student of not more than fifty dollars ($50) for which a parent or 
legal guardian of the student may be jointly liable. The fine described in this paragraph shall not 
be subject to the assessments of Section 1464 of the Penal Code or any other applicable section. 

(3) Attendance of a court-approved truancy prevention program. 

(4) Suspension or revocation of driving privileges pursuant to Section 13202.7 of the Vehicle 
Code. This subsection shall apply only to a student who has attended a school attendance review 
board program, a program operated by a probation department acting as a school attendance 
review board, or a truancy mediation program. (Ed Code 48264.5) 

A habitual truant may be referred to a school attendance review board or to the probation department. 
(Ed Code 48263) 

When a student is referred to a school attendance review board or to the probation department, the 
Superintendent or designee shall provide the student and parent/ guardian, in writing, the name and 
address of the school attendance review board or probation department and the reason for the referral. 
This notice shall indicate that the student and parent/guardian will be required, along with a District 
staff member, to meet with the school attendance review board or probation officer to consider a proper 
disposition of the referral. (Ed Code 48263) 

The Superintendent or designee shall gather and transmit to the County Superintendent of Schools the 
number of referrals and types of referrals made to the school attendance review board and the number 
of requests for petitions made to the juvenile court. (Ed Code 48273) 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 142



Page 7 of 7 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Regulation #5113 

ABSENCES AND EXCUSES Mandated Regulation 

Parental Notifications 

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall: 

1. Notify parents/guardians of the right to excuse a student from school in order to participate in 
religious exercises or to receive moral and religious instruction at their places of worship, or at other 
suitable places away from school property designated by a religious group, church, or denomination. 
(Education Code 46014, 48980)  

2. Notify students in grades 7-12 and the parents/guardians of all students that school authorities may 
excuse any student from school to obtain confidential medical services without the consent of the 
student's parent/guardian. (Education Code 46010.1)  

 
3. Notify parents/guardians that a student shall not have his/her grade reduced or lose academic 
credit for any excused absence if missed assignments and tests that can reasonably be provided are 
satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time, and include the full text of Education 
Code 48205 in the notice. (Education Code 48980)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 143

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131974/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131967/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/5


 

Page 1 of 2 . Issued: November 6, 1997 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students Policy # 5 1 1 7 

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 

Because the Pacific Grove Unified School District is a “basic aid” district, the State does not provide 

funding to educate children who reside in other school districts. As a result, enrollment of students whose 

parents or guardians reside in other school districts reduces the educational resources available for resident 

students and increases class size. It is therefore the District’s general policy not to accept interdistrict 

transfer students who might otherwise be allowed to enroll under Education Code sections 46600 et seq. or 

subdivision (b) section 48204 of the Education Code. 

School District of Choice 

The District elects not to be a “school district of choice” as defined in Education Code 48300 through 

48316, and no transfers will be accepted pursuant to Education Code 48300 et seq. 

Interdistrict Attendance Agreements 

The Board may enter an agreement with any other school district, for a term not to exceed five school 

years, for the interdistrict attendance of students who are residents of the Districts. The agreement shall 

specify the terms and conditions under which interdistrict attendance shall be permitted or denied. It may 

also contain standards agreed to by both districts for reapplication and/or revocation of the student’s 

permit. (Education Code 46600) 

Interdistrict Attendance Permits 

The Board of Education delegates to the Superintendent or designee the authority to grant or deny 

interdistrict attendance permit requests. The Superintendent or designee may make exceptions to the 

District's general policy of denying interdistrict attendance permit requests under those circumstances set 

forth in this policy and Administrative Regulation #5117. 

Victims of Bullying 

In accordance with law, students who have been determined to be victims of bullying as defined in 

Education Code section 48900, subdivision (r), shall be given priority consideration for an interdistrict 

transfer permit as set forth in Administrative Regulation #5117. 

Annual Reapplication Required 

Once a student is admitted to a school on the basis of an interdistrict attendance permit, he/she shall not 

be required to reapply for an interdistrict transfer and shall be allowed to continue to attend the school in 

which he/she is enrolled, unless reapplication standards are otherwise specified in the interdistrict 

attendance agreement. Existing interdistrict attendance permits shall not be rescinded for students 

entering grade 11 or 12 in the subsequent school year. (Education Code 46600) 

Updated and Accurate Information 

Any student enrolled in the District pursuant to this policy shall immediately notify the District of any 

change in circumstances which would affect the student’s eligibility for admittance under this policy. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 144



 

Page 2 of 2 . Issued: November 6, 1997 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students  Policy # 5 1 1 7 

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 

Failure to provide such notification may result in disenrollment and/or disqualification from future 

enrollment under this policy. 

Falsification of Information 

In no event shall interdistrict attendance be approved, and any such permission for attendance previously 

approved shall be immediately revoked, if false information has been provided to the District in a 

student’s interdistrict attendance application or in any initial or subsequent residency claim or 

documentation provided to the District. 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

8151 Apprentices, exemption from interdistrict attendance agreement 

41020 Annual district audits 

46600-466101 Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48204 Residency requirements for school attendance 

48209-48209.1648317 Student attendance alternatives 

48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion; definition of bullying 

48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances 
48915.1 Expelled individuals: enrollment in another district 

48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures 

48980 Notice at beginning of term 

48985 Notice to parents in language other than English 

52317 Admission of persons including nonresidents to attendance area; workers' compensation for pupils. 

Exceptions to General Policy 

The Superintendent or designee may make exceptions to the District’s general policy of denying 
interdistrict attendance permits only if capacity is available and only for the following students: 

1. Students Moving Into the District in the Immediate Future. Interdistrict attendance permits 

may be approved for students whose parent(s) or guardian(s) provides written evidence that 

the family will be moving into the District in the immediate future and would like to the 

student to start the school year in the District. 

2. Students of District Employees Living Outside the District Boundaries. Interdistrict attendance 

permits may be approved for students of District employees (certificated, classified, 

confidential or management) living outside of District boundaries and who are employed by 

the District for a minimum of 20 hours per week or 0.5 FTE. District employees whose 

children have been admitted under this policy must apply for readmission annually, and 

permits will only be approved for so long as the parent or guardian continues to be employed 

by the District for a minimum of 20 hours per week or 0.5 FTE. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 145



Page 1 of 2 . Issued: November 6, 1997 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy # 5 1 1 7 

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 

Because the Pacific Grove Unified School District is a “basic aid” district, the State does not provide 
funding to educate children who reside in other school districts. As a result, enrollment of students whose 
parents or guardians reside in other school districts reduces the educational resources available for resident 
students and increases class size. It is therefore the District’s general policy not to accept interdistrict 
transfer students who might otherwise be allowed to enroll under Education Code sections 46600 et seq. or 
subdivision (b) section 48204 of the Education Code. 

School District of Choice 

The District elects not to be a “school district of choice” as defined in Education Code 48300 through 
48316, and no transfers will be accepted pursuant to Education Code 48300 et seq. 

Interdistrict Attendance Agreements 

The Board may enter an agreement with any other school district, for a term not to exceed five school 
years, for the interdistrict attendance of students who are residents of the Districts. The agreement shall 
specify the terms and conditions under which interdistrict attendance shall be permitted or denied. It may 
also contain standards agreed to by both districts for reapplication and/or revocation of the student’s 
permit. (Education Code 46600) 

Interdistrict Attendance Permits 

The Board of Education delegates to the Superintendent or designee the authority to grant or deny 
interdistrict attendance permit requests. The Superintendent or designee may make exceptions to the 
District's general policy of denying interdistrict attendance permit requests under those circumstances set 
forth in this policy and Administrative Regulation #5117. 

Victims of Bullying 

In accordance with law, students who have been determined to be victims of bullying as defined in 
Education Code section 48900, subdivision (r), shall be given priority consideration for an interdistrict 
transfer permit as set forth in Administrative Regulation #5117. 

Annual Reapplication Required 

Once a student is admitted to a school on the basis of an interdistrict attendance permit, he/she shall not 
be required to reapply for an interdistrict transfer and shall be allowed to continue to attend the school in 
which he/she is enrolled, unless reapplication standards are otherwise specified in the interdistrict 
attendance agreement. Existing interdistrict attendance permits shall not be rescinded for students 
entering grade 11 or 12 in the subsequent school year. (Education Code 46600) 

Updated and Accurate Information 

Any student enrolled in the District pursuant to this policy shall immediately notify the District of any 
change in circumstances which would affect the student’s eligibility for admittance under this policy. 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 146



Page 2 of 2 . Issued: November 6, 1997 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD     Revision: June 4, 2020 

 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students  Policy # 5 1 1 7 

INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 

Failure to provide such notification may result in disenrollment and/or disqualification from future 
enrollment under this policy. 

Falsification of Information 

In no event shall interdistrict attendance be approved, and any such permission for attendance previously 
approved shall be immediately revoked, if false information has been provided to the District in a 
student’s interdistrict attendance application or in any initial or subsequent residency claim or 
documentation provided to the District. 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
8151 Apprentices, exemption from interdistrict attendance agreement 
41020 Annual district audits 
46600-46610 Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48204 Residency requirements for school attendance 
48209-48317 Student attendance alternatives 
48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion; definition of bullying 
48915 Expulsion; particular circumstances 
48915.1 Expelled individuals: enrollment in another district 
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48980 Notice at beginning of term 
48985 Notice to parents in language other than English 
52317 Admission of persons including nonresidents to attendance area; workers' compensation for pupils. 

Exceptions to General Policy 

The Superintendent or designee may make exceptions to the District’s general policy of denying 
interdistrict attendance permits only if capacity is available and only for the following students: 

1. Students Moving Into the District in the Immediate Future. Interdistrict attendance permits 
may be approved for students whose parent(s) or guardian(s) provides written evidence that 
the family will be moving into the District in the immediate future and would like to the 
student to start the school year in the District. 

2. Students of District Employees Living Outside the District Boundaries. Interdistrict attendance 
permits may be approved for students of District employees (certificated, classified, 
confidential or management) living outside of District boundaries and who are employed by 
the District for a minimum of 20 hours per week or 0.5 FTE. District employees whose 
children have been admitted under this policy must apply for readmission annually, and 
permits will only be approved for so long as the parent or guardian continues to be employed 
by the District for a minimum of 20 hours per week or 0.5 FTE. 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 147



 

Page 1 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in an 

orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-

being, and promotes their learning and development. The Superintendent shall develop rules and 

regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 

processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 

expulsion. 

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or 

implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law and the accompanying 

administrative regulation. 

Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when his/her 

behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or 

other school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following: 

(Education Code 48900(s)) 

1. While on school grounds 

2. While going to or coming from school 

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school-related extra-curricular activities 

during the period of suspension or expulsion. 

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 
consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 

Appropriate Use of Suspension and Expulsion 

Except when a student commits an act that violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e) or his/her presence 

causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of correction have failed 

to bring about proper conduct. 

Except when a student commits an act listed in Education Code 48915(c), the Superintendent or 

designee shall have the discretion to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the student 

be expelled. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 148

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135958/index.html


 

Page 2 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

To correct the behavior of any student who is subject to discipline, the Superintendent or designee 

shall, to the extent allowed by law, and consistent with the requirements of school safety and security, 

first use alternative disciplinary strategies specified in AR 5144 - Discipline. (Education 

Code 48900.5, 48900.6)  

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion shall also be used with students who are truant, tardy, or 

otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 

District staff shall not suspend any student in kindergarten through third grade for disruption or 

willful defiance. This limitation shall not apply to the right of a classroom teacher to suspend a 

student from the teacher's own classroom pursuant to Education Code 48910. (Education Code 

48900(k)) 

No student in grades kindergarten through 12 shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance. 

(Education Code 48900(k)) 

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern 

of misbehavior that could lead to classroom or school removal. 

A student who reports to school authorities that another student has made a threat of violence involving 

a dangerous weapon may not be held liable for defamation unless the report was knowingly false. (Civil 

Code 48.8) 

Due Process 

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and 

expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent or designee 

shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and administrative 

regulation. (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)  

Supervised Suspension Classroom 

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the 

reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or 

threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the 

Superintendent or designee may establish a supervised suspension classroom program which meets 

the requirements of law. (Education Code 48911.1) 

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised 

suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper 

conduct. (Education Code 48900.5)  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 149

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132224/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226352/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132236/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135958/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137528/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137967/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132221/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132224/index.html


 

Page 3 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

 

 

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order 

Upon voting to expel a student, the Board may suspend enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant 

to the requirements of law and administrative regulation. (Education Code 48917)  

Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome data which 

the district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including the 

number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the 

actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the 

students after the expulsion period. For any expulsion that involves the possession of a firearm, such 

data shall include the name of the school and the type of firearm involved, as required pursuant to 20 

USC 7961. Suspension and expulsion data shall be reported to the Board annually and to the 

California Department of Education when so required. 

 

In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data on 

suspensions and expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, including, but 

not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students 

with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. Based on the data, the Board shall address any 

identified disparities in the imposition of student discipline and shall determine whether and how the 

district is meeting its goals for improving school climate as specified in its local control and 

accountability plan. 

 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

212.5 Sexual harassment 
233 Hate violence 

1981 Enrollment of students in community school 

8239.1 Prohibition against expulsion of preschool student 

17292.5 Program for expelled students 
32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 

35145 Open board meetings 

35146 Closed sessions (regarding suspensions) 

35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 
35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline 

48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system 

48660-48666 Community day schools 
48853.5 Foster youth 

48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion 

48950 Speech and other communication 
48980 Parental notifications 
 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 150

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132248/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137737/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135957/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138759/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226219/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135942/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1096618/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/136856/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/721433/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131392/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131394/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131451/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131452/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132211/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132213/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132215/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/315649/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/286488/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132263/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/index.html


 

Page 4 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 
SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

 

49073-49079 Privacy of student records 

52052 Numerically significant student subgroups 

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 

64000-64001 Consolidated application 

CIVIL CODE 

47 Privileged communication 

48.8 Defamation liability 

CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11455.20 Contempt 

54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 

11014.5 Drug paraphernalia 

11053-11058 Standards and schedules 

LABOR CODE 

230.7 Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf 

of a child 

PENAL CODE 

31 Principal of a crime, defined 

240 Assault defined 

241.2 Assault fines 

242 Battery defined 
243.2 Battery on school property 

243.4 Sexual battery 

245 Assault with deadly weapon 
245.6 Hazing 

261 Rape defined 

266c Unlawful sexual intercourse 
286 Sodomy defined 

288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14  

288a Oral copulation 

289 Penetration of genital or anal openings 
417.27 Laser pointers 

422.55 Hate crime defined 

422.6 Interference with exercise of civil rights 
422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment 

422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes 

626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 

626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 
626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 

868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 151

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132291/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226085/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899522/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899612/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899537/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133932/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133933/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/122366/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/249104/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/369496/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/369530/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/250682/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145061/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288575/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150418/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/149830/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/149833/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/156117/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/250705/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169313/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169315/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169318/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169319/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169626/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169323/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/421010/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169326/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226067/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169686/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169700/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169687/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169688/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/204121/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/352313/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169695/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169368/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169689/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169384/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169652/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169382/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169584/index.html


 

Page 5 of 6 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 
 

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 

729.6 Counseling 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 

921 Definitions, firearm 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1415(K) Placement in alternative educational setting 

7961Gun-free schools 

COURT DECISIONS 

T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267 

Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421 

Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of 
Education and Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 

Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 

Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182 

John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 347 (1997) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 

Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov  

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov  

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil 

Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf  
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: 

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs  

(3/12 11/12) 4/14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 152

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/194846/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/364374/index.html
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs


Page 1 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in an 
orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-
being, and promotes their learning and development. The Superintendent shall develop rules and 
regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 
processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or 
expulsion. 

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or 
implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law and the accompanying 
administrative regulation. 

Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when his/her 
behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or 
other school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following: 
(Education Code 48900(s)) 

1. While on school grounds 

2. While going to or coming from school 

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school-related extra-curricular activities 
during the period of suspension or expulsion. 

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 
consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 

Appropriate Use of Suspension and Expulsion 

Except when a student commits an act that violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e) or his/her presence 
causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of correction have failed 
to bring about proper conduct. 

Except when a student commits an act listed in Education Code 48915(c), the Superintendent or 
designee shall have the discretion to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the student 
be expelled. 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 153

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135958/index.html


Page 2 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 

To correct the behavior of any student who is subject to discipline, the Superintendent or designee 
shall, to the extent allowed by law, and consistent with the requirements of school safety and security, 
first use alternative disciplinary strategies specified in AR 5144 - Discipline. (Education 
Code 48900.5, 48900.6)  

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion shall also be used with students who are truant, tardy, or 
otherwise absent from assigned school activities. 

District staff shall not suspend any student in kindergarten through third grade for disruption or 
willful defiance. This limitation shall not apply to the right of a classroom teacher to suspend a 
student from the teacher's own classroom pursuant to Education Code 48910. (Education Code 
48900(k)) 

No student in grades kindergarten through 12 shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance. 
(Education Code 48900(k)) 

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern 
of misbehavior that could lead to classroom or school removal. 

A student who reports to school authorities that another student has made a threat of violence involving 
a dangerous weapon may not be held liable for defamation unless the report was knowingly false. (Civil 
Code 48.8) 

Due Process 

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and 
expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent or designee 
shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and administrative 
regulation. (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)  

Supervised Suspension Classroom 

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the 
reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or 
threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the 
Superintendent or designee may establish a supervised suspension classroom program which meets 
the requirements of law. (Education Code 48911.1) 

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised 
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper 
conduct. (Education Code 48900.5)  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 154

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132224/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226352/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132236/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135958/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137528/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137967/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132221/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132224/index.html


Page 3 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 
 
 
Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order 

Upon voting to expel a student, the Board may suspend enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant 
to the requirements of law and administrative regulation. (Education Code 48917)  

Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome data which 
the district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including the 
number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the 
actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the 
students after the expulsion period. For any expulsion that involves the possession of a firearm, such 
data shall include the name of the school and the type of firearm involved, as required pursuant to 20 
USC 7961. Suspension and expulsion data shall be reported to the Board annually and to the 
California Department of Education when so required. 
 
In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data on 
suspensions and expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, including, but 
not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students 
with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. Based on the data, the Board shall address any 
identified disparities in the imposition of student discipline and shall determine whether and how the 
district is meeting its goals for improving school climate as specified in its local control and 
accountability plan. 

 

Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
212.5 Sexual harassment 
233 Hate violence 
1981 Enrollment of students in community school 
8239.1 Prohibition against expulsion of preschool student 
17292.5 Program for expelled students 
32261 Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 
35145 Open board meetings 
35146 Closed sessions (regarding suspensions) 
35291 Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 
35291.5 Rules and procedures on school discipline 
48645.5 Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system 
48660-48666 Community day schools 
48853.5 Foster youth 
48900-48927 Suspension and expulsion 
48950 Speech and other communication 
48980 Parental notifications 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 155

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132248/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137737/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135957/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138759/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226219/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/135942/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1096618/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/136856/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/721433/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131392/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131394/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131451/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/131452/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132211/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132213/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132215/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/315649/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/286488/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132263/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/index.html


Page 4 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 
SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 
 
49073-49079 Privacy of student records 
52052 Numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 
64000-64001 Consolidated application 
CIVIL CODE 
47 Privileged communication 
48.8 Defamation liability 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
1985-1997 Subpoenas; means of production 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11455.20 Contempt 
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
11014.5 Drug paraphernalia 
11053-11058 Standards and schedules 
LABOR CODE 
230.7 Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf 
of a child 
PENAL CODE 
31 Principal of a crime, defined 
240 Assault defined 
241.2 Assault fines 
242 Battery defined 
243.2 Battery on school property 
243.4 Sexual battery 
245 Assault with deadly weapon 
245.6 Hazing 
261 Rape defined 
266c Unlawful sexual intercourse 
286 Sodomy defined 
288 Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14  
288a Oral copulation 
289 Penetration of genital or anal openings 
417.27 Laser pointers 
422.55 Hate crime defined 
422.6 Interference with exercise of civil rights 
422.7 Aggravating factors for punishment 
422.75 Enhanced penalties for hate crimes 
626.2 Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 
626.9 Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 
626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 
868.5 Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 156

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132291/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226085/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899522/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899612/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/899537/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133932/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133933/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/122366/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/249104/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/369496/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/369530/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/250682/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/145061/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288575/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/150418/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/149830/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/149833/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/156117/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/250705/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169313/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169315/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169318/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169319/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169626/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169323/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/421010/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169326/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226067/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169686/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169700/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169687/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169688/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/204121/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/352313/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169695/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169368/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169689/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169384/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169652/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169382/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/169584/index.html


Page 5 of 5 . Adopted: July 16, 1998 
All Rights Reserved by PGUSD      Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy #5144.1 

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS Mandated Policy 
 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
729.6 Counseling 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 
921 Definitions, firearm 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1415(K) Placement in alternative educational setting 
7961Gun-free schools 
COURT DECISIONS 
T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267 
Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421 
Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of 
Education and Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 
Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 
Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182 
John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 347 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014 

WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
California Attorney General's Office: http://www.oag.ca.gov  
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov  
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil 
Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf  
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: 
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs  
(3/12 11/12) 4/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 157

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/194846/index.html
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/364374/index.html
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.oag.ca.gov/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs


 

Page 1 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students         Policy 5145.3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

Philosophy 

Students have the fundamental right to a safe and secure environment. Students and parents place 

their trust in school officials to take all reasonable steps to provide a setting that is free of 

humiliation, intimidation and threat. Accordingly, the district and staff shall not tolerate any 

incidents of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying. To this end, 

the administration has the duty to implement programs that encourage students to behave with 

civility and common decency, and to establish and enforce codes of conduct that hold students 

accountable should they violate this policy. 

Definitions 

For purposes of this policy, harassment consists of verbal or physical conduct relating to an 

individual's race, color, religion, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnicity, 

ethnic group identification, marital or parental status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, age, 

economic status sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic 

information, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability,  or any 

other legally protected category or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual 

or perceived characteristics when: 

1. The harassing conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive that it affects a 

student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity or 

creates an intimidating, threatening or abusive educational environment; or 

2. The harassing conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with 

an individual's academic performance; or 

3. The harassing conduct otherwise adversely affects an individual's learning opportunities. 

For the purposes of this policy, bullying occurs when a student is intimidated by verbal, written,  or 

physical conduct or actions by one or more persons, as defined in Board Policy 5131.3 i.e., "picked 

on." Bullying includes assault; extortion; oral or written threats; teasing; putdowns; name-calling; 

threatening looks, gestures, or actions; cruel rumors; false accusations; social isolation; and hazing, 

which is defined as ritualistic behavior that subjects persons to abusive or humiliating tasks and 

ridicule. Intimidation refers to actions that would inflict or attempt to inflict fear, humiliation, or 

injury. 

Application 

This policy shall apply to all academic programs and extracurricular activities, including school-

sponsored events away from school and while traveling to and from any school activity. 

The Board of Education prohibits unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or 

bullying of any student by any employee, student or other person in the district. Staff shall be alert 

and immediately responsive to any individual's conduct, which may interfere with a student's ability 

to participate in or benefit from school services, activities or privileges. Upon witnessing an act of 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 158



 

Page 2 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying, staff members are expected 

to immediately intervene, unless intervention would pose a threat to the staff member's safety. All 

incidents of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying are to be 

reported to the school principal for investigation. 

Any student who feels that he/she is being or has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, including 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying shall immediately report the incident to a school employee. Any 

student who has witnessed unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying is 

expected to immediately report the incident to a school employee. Parents and/or guardians, on behalf 

of their child, are similarly expected to immediately report incidents of unlawful discrimination, 

including harassment, intimidation, or bullying to the principal. A school employee to whom a 

complaint is made shall report it to the principal or designee immediately. If the alleged offender is 

the principal or designee, the person reporting the complaint shall report the incident to the 

Superintendent or designee. Any student who retaliates against another for reporting unlawful 

discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be subject to disciplinary action 

as defined in this policy. 

In addition, the student, parent, or employee may file a formal complaint with the Superintendent or 

designee in accordance with the district's uniform complaint procedures (BP 1312.3). 

Investigation 

An investigation shall be conducted by school district officials or by a third party designated by the 

school district. The investigation shall include interviews of all students directly involved and contact 

with the parent(s) of the involved students. The investigation may include interviews with students, 

parents, and staff; review of school records; and identification of parent and family issues. 

In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes a violation of this policy, the investigator should 

consider the surrounding circumstances, the nature of the behavior, past incidents or continuing 

patterns of behavior, the relationships between the parties involved and the context in which the 

alleged incidents occurred. Whether a particular action or incident constitutes a violation of this 

policy requires a determination based on all of the facts and surrounding circumstances. The 

investigation will be completed thoroughly and as soon as practicable. 

The administration shall take appropriate steps to protect the privacy of accusers and/or victims and to 

assure that they are not subjected to retaliation for making a complaint. 

Disciplinary Action/Intervention 

Any student who engages in unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying 

will be subject to disciplinary action and/or intervention including, but not limited to, warning, 

counseling, parent contact, detention, restriction of activities, exclusion, suspension, involuntary 

transfer, and expulsion (BP 5144). Depending on the severity of the incident, the principal may also 

take additional steps to ensure student safety. These may include, but are not limited to, implementing 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 159



 

Page 3 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

a safety plan; separating and supervising the students involved; providing staff support for students; 

and developing a supervision plan with the parents. Any employee who permits or engages in 

harassment or bullying may be subject to disciplinary action including, but not limited to, warning, 

suspension, transfer, and dismissal. Consequences shall be commensurate with the findings of the 

investigation. Any student or employee who engages in unlawful discrimination, including 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying of a student may also be subject to criminal prosecution. 

Documentation 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of reported cases of unlawful discrimination, 

including harassment, intimidation, or bullying to enable the district to monitor, address and prevent 

repetitive harassing behavior in its schools. 

Communication Of Policy 

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students’ access to the educational program by 

publicizing the District’s nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 

parents/guardians, and employees. The Superintendent or designee shall provide training and 

information on the scope and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures 

designed to increase the school community’s understanding of the requirements of law related to 

discrimination. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the 

district’s nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 

identified barrier to student access to or participation in the educational program. The Superintendent 

or designee shall report his or her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. Each 

school site administrator shall be responsible for implementing programs that are designed to promote 

positive social interactions and to inform students of their rights and responsibilities under this policy. 

School Discipline Plans shall prohibit unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or 

bullying . All parents and/or guardians will receive a copy of the School Discipline Plan upon 

registering their child at any school site in the District. Students in grades 6 through 12 will also 

receive a copy of the School Discipline Plan each year. School Discipline Plans shall be articulated 

among the district's schools sites to encourage consistent and developmentally appropriate application 

of this policy. 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex, especially: 

221.5 Prohibited sex discrimination 

221.7 School-sponsored athletic programs; prohibited sex discrimination 
48900.3 Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 

48900.4 Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 

48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 160

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138754/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138778/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138751/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138752/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132222/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132223/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132228/5


 

Page 4 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

48907 Student exercise of free expression 
48950 Freedom of speech 

48985 Translation of notices 
49020-49023 Athletic programs 

51006-51007 Equitable access to technological education programs 
51500 Prohibited instruction or activity 

51501 Prohibited means of instruction 

60044 Prohibited instructional materials 
CIVIL CODE 

1714.1 Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4621 District policies and procedures 
4622 Notice requirements 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
PENAL CODE 

422.55 Interference with constitutional right or privilege 

422.6 Crimes, harassment 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

432 Student record 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
12101-12213 Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 

794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 

35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 

2000d-2000e-17 Title VI & VII Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 

99.31 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 
100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 

106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 

106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 

110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 

 
COURT DECISIONS 
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 161

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132232/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132263/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132272/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132275/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132635/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132636/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132720/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132721/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133840/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/122408/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187024/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187025/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144547/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/352313/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/169695/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/186827/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/187020/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/187041/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/189980/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191053/0
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/222057/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191934/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191943/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191961/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/274437/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/274461/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/191260/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/191218/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/274453/2
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/734607/5


 

Page 5 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 

Pacific Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-  
Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 

Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014 

Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 

FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 

Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 
Ground, 2006 

NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 

Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students’ Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 

Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov  

California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org  
First Amendment Center: http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org  

National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org  

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr  

 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 162

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/
http://www.casafeschools.org/
http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org/
http://www.nsba.org/
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr


Page 1 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  
Students         Policy 5145.3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

Philosophy 

Students have the fundamental right to a safe and secure environment. Students and parents place 
their trust in school officials to take all reasonable steps to provide a setting that is free of 
humiliation, intimidation and threat. Accordingly, the district and staff shall not tolerate any 
incidents of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying. To this end, 
the administration has the duty to implement programs that encourage students to behave with 
civility and common decency, and to establish and enforce codes of conduct that hold students 
accountable should they violate this policy. 

Definitions 

For purposes of this policy, harassment consists of verbal or physical conduct relating to an 
individual's race, color, religion, ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnicity, 
ethnic group identification, marital or parental status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, age, 
economic status sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic 
information, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability,  or any 
other legally protected category or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual 
or perceived characteristics when: 

1. The harassing conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive that it affects a 
student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity or 
creates an intimidating, threatening or abusive educational environment; or 

2. The harassing conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with 
an individual's academic performance; or 

3. The harassing conduct otherwise adversely affects an individual's learning opportunities. 

For the purposes of this policy, bullying occurs when a student is intimidated by verbal, written, or 
physical conduct or actions by one or more persons, as defined in Board Policy 5131.3 Bullying 
includes assault; extortion; oral or written threats; teasing; putdowns; name-calling; threatening looks, 
gestures, or actions; cruel rumors; false accusations; social isolation; and hazing, which is defined as 
ritualistic behavior that subjects persons to abusive or humiliating tasks and ridicule. Intimidation 
refers to actions that would inflict or attempt to inflict fear, humiliation, or injury. 

Application 

This policy shall apply to all academic programs and extracurricular activities, including school-
sponsored events away from school and while traveling to and from any school activity. 

The Board of Education prohibits unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying of any student by any employee, student or other person in the district. Staff shall be alert 
and immediately responsive to any individual's conduct, which may interfere with a student's ability 
to participate in or benefit from school services, activities or privileges. Upon witnessing an act of 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 163



Page 2 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying, staff members are expected 
to immediately intervene, unless intervention would pose a threat to the staff member's safety. All 
incidents of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying are to be 
reported to the school principal for investigation. 

Any student who feels that he/she is being or has been subjected to unlawful discrimination, including 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying shall immediately report the incident to a school employee. Any 
student who has witnessed unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying is 
expected to immediately report the incident to a school employee. Parents and/or guardians, on behalf 
of their child, are similarly expected to immediately report incidents of unlawful discrimination, 
including harassment, intimidation, or bullying to the principal. A school employee to whom a 
complaint is made shall report it to the principal or designee immediately. If the alleged offender is 
the principal or designee, the person reporting the complaint shall report the incident to the 
Superintendent or designee. Any student who retaliates against another for reporting unlawful 
discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying may be subject to disciplinary action 
as defined in this policy. 

In addition, the student, parent, or employee may file a formal complaint with the Superintendent or 
designee in accordance with the district's uniform complaint procedures (BP 1312.3). 

Investigation 

An investigation shall be conducted by school district officials or by a third party designated by the 
school district. The investigation shall include interviews of all students directly involved and contact 
with the parent(s) of the involved students. The investigation may include interviews with students, 
parents, and staff; review of school records; and identification of parent and family issues. 

In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes a violation of this policy, the investigator should 
consider the surrounding circumstances, the nature of the behavior, past incidents or continuing 
patterns of behavior, the relationships between the parties involved and the context in which the 
alleged incidents occurred. Whether a particular action or incident constitutes a violation of this 
policy requires a determination based on all of the facts and surrounding circumstances. The 
investigation will be completed thoroughly and as soon as practicable. 

The administration shall take appropriate steps to protect the privacy of accusers and/or victims and to 
assure that they are not subjected to retaliation for making a complaint. 

Disciplinary Action/Intervention 

Any student who engages in unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or bullying 
will be subject to disciplinary action and/or intervention including, but not limited to, warning, 
counseling, parent contact, detention, restriction of activities, exclusion, suspension, involuntary 
transfer, and expulsion (BP 5144). Depending on the severity of the incident, the principal may also 
take additional steps to ensure student safety. These may include, but are not limited to, implementing 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 164



Page 3 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

a safety plan; separating and supervising the students involved; providing staff support for students; 
and developing a supervision plan with the parents. Any employee who permits or engages in 
harassment or bullying may be subject to disciplinary action including, but not limited to, warning, 
suspension, transfer, and dismissal. Consequences shall be commensurate with the findings of the 
investigation. Any student or employee who engages in unlawful discrimination, including 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying of a student may also be subject to criminal prosecution. 

Documentation 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of reported cases of unlawful discrimination, 
including harassment, intimidation, or bullying to enable the district to monitor, address and prevent 
repetitive harassing behavior in its schools. 

Communication Of Policy 

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students’ access to the educational program by 
publicizing the District’s nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 
parents/guardians, and employees. The Superintendent or designee shall provide training and 
information on the scope and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures 
designed to increase the school community’s understanding of the requirements of law related to 
discrimination. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the 
district’s nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 
identified barrier to student access to or participation in the educational program. The Superintendent 
or designee shall report his or her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. Each 
school site administrator shall be responsible for implementing programs that are designed to promote 
positive social interactions and to inform students of their rights and responsibilities under this policy. 

School Discipline Plans shall prohibit unlawful discrimination, including harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying . All parents and/or guardians will receive a copy of the School Discipline Plan upon 
registering their child at any school site in the District. Students in grades 6 through 12 will also 
receive a copy of the School Discipline Plan each year. School Discipline Plans shall be articulated 
among the district's schools sites to encourage consistent and developmentally appropriate application 
of this policy. 

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex, especially: 
221.5 Prohibited sex discrimination 
221.7 School-sponsored athletic programs; prohibited sex discrimination 
48900.3 Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 
48900.4 Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 
48904 Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 165

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138754/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138778/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138751/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138752/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132222/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132223/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132228/5


Page 4 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

Pacific  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

48907 Student exercise of free expression 
48950 Freedom of speech 
48985 Translation of notices 
49020-49023 Athletic programs 
51006-51007 Equitable access to technological education programs 
51500 Prohibited instruction or activity 
51501 Prohibited means of instruction 
60044 Prohibited instructional materials 
CIVIL CODE 
1714.1 Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4621 District policies and procedures 
4622 Notice requirements 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135 Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
PENAL CODE 
422.55 Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
422.6 Crimes, harassment 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
432 Student record 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
12101-12213 Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794 Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107 Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000e-17 Title VI & VII Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6 Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
6101-6107 Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.31 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 
100.3 Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 
104.7 Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
106.8 Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 
106.9 Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 
COURT DECISIONS 
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 
Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 166

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132232/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132263/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132268/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132272/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132275/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132635/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132636/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132720/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132721/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/133840/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/122408/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187024/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187025/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144547/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/352313/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/169695/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/186827/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/187020/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/187041/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/189980/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191053/0
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/222057/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191934/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191943/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191961/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/274437/5
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/274461/1
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/191260/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/191218/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/DisplayPolicy/274453/2
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/734607/5


Page 5 of 5 . Adopted: September 15, 2011 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

 
Pacific  Grove Unified School  Distr ict  

Students Board Policy # 5 1 4 5 .3 

NONDISCRIMINATION/ HARASSMENT 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-  
Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 
Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014 
Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 
FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 
Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 
Ground, 2006 
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students’ Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 
Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org  
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov  
California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org  
First Amendment Center: http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org  
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org  
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr  
 

FINALREDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 167

http://www.csba.org/
http://www.cde.ca.gov/
http://www.casafeschools.org/
http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org/
http://www.nsba.org/
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr


 

Page 1 of 4 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 

T he  G o ver n i n g  B o ard  i s  co mmi t t ed  to  ma i n ta i n i n g  a  l e a r n i n g  e n v i ro n me n t  t ha t  i s  f r e e  

o f  ha r a s s me n t .  T he  B o ard  p ro h ib i t s  t he  u n l a wfu l  se x u a l  ha r a s s me n t  o f  a n y  s t ud e n t  b  y  

an y  e mp lo ye e ,  s t ud e n t ,  o r  o t h e r  p e r so n  a t  s c h o o l  o r  a t  a n y  s c ho o l - r e l a t ed  a c t i v i t y .  

T h e  P r i n c i p a l  o r  d e s i g n e e  s h a l l  e n s u r e  t h a t  s t u d e n t s  r e c e i v e  a g e -a p p r o p r i a t e  

i n fo r m a t i o n  r e l a t e d  t o  s e x u a l  h a r a s s me n t .  S t u d e n t s  s h a l l  b  e  a s s u r e d  t h a t  t h e y  n e e d  

n o t  e n d u r e  a n y  fo r m  o f  s e x u a l  b e h a v i o r  o r  c o m mu n i c a t i o n ,  i n c l u d i n g  h a r a s s me n t  

b e c a u s e  o f  s e x u a l  o r i e n t a t i o n .  T h e y  s h a l l  f u r t h e r  b  e  a s s u r e d  t h a t  t h e y  n e e d  n o t  

e n d u r e ,  f o r  a n y  r e a s o n ,  a n y  h a r a s s me n t  t h a t  i mp a i r s  t h e  e d u c a t i o n a l  e n v i r o n me n t  o r  

a  s tudent ' s  emot iona l  wel l -be ing a t  school .  

An y  s t ud e n t  wh o  e n ga ge s  i n  t h e  se x u a l  h a r a s s me n t  o f  a n yo ne  a t  sc ho o l  o r  a  sc ho o l -

r e l a t ed  ac t i v i t y  s h a l l  b  e  s u b j ec t  t o  d i sc ip l i n a r y  ac t io n .  Fo r  s t ud e n t s  i n  g r ad e s  K -3  ,  

t h i s  d i s c i p l i na r y  ac t i o n  s ha l l  d ep e n d  o n  t he  ma t ur i t y  o f  t h e  s t u d e n t s  a nd  t h e  

c i r c u ms t a nc es  i n v o l v ed .  Fo r  s t u d e n t s  i n  g r a d e s  4  t h r o u g h  1  2  ,  t h e  d i sc ip l i n a r y  ac t io n  

ma y  i nc l ud e  s u sp e n s io n  a nd / o r  e x p ul s io n .  

An y e mp lo yee  who  engages  in  ,  p ermi t s  o r  fa i l s  to  r epor t  sexua l  ha rassment  sha l l  b  e  

sub j ec t  to  d i sc ip l ina ry ac t io n u  p  to  and  inc lud ing  d i smissa l .  I n  add i t io n,  c r imina l  o r  

c iv i l  charges  ma y b  e  b ro ught  aga ins t  t he  a l l eged  hara sser ;  sexual  hara ssment  a l so  may  

b  e  considered a  vio la t ion of  laws re la t ing to  chi ld  abuse .  

S tud e nt s  s ha l l  b  e  in fo rmed  t ha t  t he y  s ho u ld  i mmed ia te l y  co n tac t  a  s t a f f  me mb er  i f  t he y  

fee l  t he y a r e  b e in g  ha ra ssed .  W i th i n  2  4  ho ur s ,  s t a f f  sha l l  r ep o r t  comp la in t s  o f  sex ua l  

ha r a ss me nt  to  t he  p r inc ip a l  o r  d es ignee  o r  to  ano the r  D i s t r i c t  ad min i s t r a to r .  S t a f f  sha l l  

s i mi l a r l y  r ep o r t  an y  s u ch  i n c id en t s  the y  ma y  o b se rve ,  even  i f  t he  ha r a ssed  s t ud en t  has  

no t  co mp la ined .  (EC 2  1  2  . 6  )  

T h e  p r i n c i p a l  o r  d e s ig n e e  s h a l l  i mme d i a t e l y  i n v e s t i g a t e  a n y  r e p o r t  o f  t h e  s e x u a l  

h a r a s s me n t  o f  a  s t u d e n t .  U p o n  v e r i fy i n g  t h a t  s e x u a l  h a r a s s me n t  o c c u r r e d ,  h  e /  s h e  

s h a l l  e n s u r e  t h a t  a p p r o p r i a t e  a c t i o n  i s  p r o mp t l y  t a k e n  t o  e n d  t h e  h a r a s s me n t ,  a d d r e ss  

i t s  e f f e c t s  o n  t h e  p e r s o n  s u b j e c t ed  to  t h e  h a r a ss me n t ,  a n d  p r e v e n t  a n y  fu r t h e r  i n s t a n c e s  

o f  t h e  h a r a s s me n t .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  s t u d e n t  ma y  f i l e  a  f o r ma l  c o mp l a i n t  w i t h  t h e  

S u p e r i n t e n d e n t  o r  d e s i g n e e  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  wi t h  t h e  D i s t r i c t ' s  u n i fo r m c o mp l a i n t  

p r o c e d u r e s .  

T he  Dis t r i c t  p ro h ib i t s  r e t a l i a to ry b e hav io r  ag a ins t  a n y  co mp la i nan t  o r  an y p a r t i c ip an t  

in  t he  co mp la i n t  p ro cess .  I n fo r ma t io n  r e l a t ed  t o  a  co mp la i n t  o f  se x ua l  ha r a ss me nt  s ha l l  

b  e  co nf id en t i a l  t o  t he  ex ten t  p o ss ib le ,  and  in d iv id ua l s  in vo lved  i n  t he  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 168



 

Page 2 of 4 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 

invest iga t io n of  such a  co mpla in t  sha l l  no t  d i scuss  re l a ted  in format ion out s ide  the  

invest iga t io n process .  

Legal Reference:  

EDUCATION CODE 

2 0 0 -2 6 2 .4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex  

48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion 

4 8 9  0  0  .2  Addi t ional  grounds for  suspension or  expu lsion;  sexual  harassment  

4 8 9 0 4 Liability of p ar en t/ gu ar d ian for willful student misconduct  

4 8 9 8 0 Notice at beginning of term  

CIVIL CODE 

5  1  .9  Liab i l i ty fo r  sexual  harassment ;  business ,  se rvice and  profess ional  re la t ionships  

1 7 1 4 .1 Liability of p ar en ts/ gu ar d ian s for willful misconduct o f m in or  

GOVERNMENT CODE 

12950.1 Sexual harassment training 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 

4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 

4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 2 0 

1221 Application of laws 

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 

1 6 8 1 - 1 6 8 8 Title IX, Discrimination  

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 4 2 

1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights 

2 0 0 0 d - 2 0 0 0 d -7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1 9 6 4 

2 0 0 0 e - 2 0 0 0 e-1 7 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1 9 6 4 as amended  

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 3 4 

99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 

1 0 6 .1 - 1 0 6 .7 1 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs  

COURT DECISIONS 

Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1 9 9 9 ) No. 9 7 -8 4 3 , 1 9 9 9 U.S. Lexis 3 4 5 2 ,  

-- U.S.--  

Geb ser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1 9 9 8 ) 1 1 8 S.Ct. 1 9 8 9  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 169

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/376750/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187020/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187039/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187041/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/244922/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/189929/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/189959/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191103/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191132/5


 

Page 3 of 4 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

Nab ozn y v. Pod lesn y (1 9 9 6 , 7 th Cir .) 9 2 F.3 d 4 4 6  

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 

 

Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1 9 9 5 , 9 th Cir .) 5 4 F.3 d 1 4 4 7  

Oon a R.-S. etc. v. Santa Rosa City Schools et al (1 9 9 5 ) 8 9 0 F.Su p p . 1 4 5 2  

Rosa H. v. San Elizar io Ind. School District, (W.D. Tex. 1 9 9 5 ) 8 8 7 F. Su p p . 1 4 0 , 1 4 3  

Clyde K. v. Puyallup School District # 3 (1 9 9 4 ) 3 5 F.3 d 1 3 9 6  

Patricia H. v. Berkeley Unified School District (1 9 9 3 ) 8 3 0 F.Su p p . 1 2 8 8  

Franklin v. Gwin n et County Schools (1 9 9 2 ) 1 1 2 S. Ct. 1 0 2 8  

Kelson v. City of Springfield, Oregon (1 9 8 5 , 9 th Cir .) 7 6 7 F.2 d 6 5 1 

Management  Reso urces :  

OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL  

Pro tec t ing  Stud ent s  f rom Harassment  and  Ha te  Cr ime :  A Guid e  for  Scho ol s ,  J anuary  

1 9 9 9 

OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS 

Sexual Harassment Guidance, 6 2 FR 4 9 , 1 9 9 7 

WEB SITES 

OCR: h ttp :/ / www.ed .gov/ offices/ OCR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

] 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 170



Page 1 of 3 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 

T he  G o ve r n i n g  B o a rd  i s  co m mi t t ed  to  ma i n ta i n i n g  a  l e a r n i n g  e n v i ro n me n t  t ha t  i s  f r e e  
o f  h a r a s s me n t .  T he  B o a rd  p ro h ib i t s  t h e  u n l a wfu l  se x u a l  h a r a s s me n t  o f  a n y  s t ud e n t  b y  
an y  e mp lo ye e ,  s t ud e n t ,  o r  o t h e r  p e r so n  a t  s c h o o l  o r  a t  a n y  s c ho o l - r e l a t ed  a c t i v i t y .  

T h e  P r i n c i p a l  o r  d e s i g n e e  s h a l l  e n s u r e  t h a t  s t u d e n t s  r e c e i v e  a g e - a p p r o p r i a t e  
i n fo r m a t i o n  r e l a t e d  t o  s e x u a l  h a r a s s m e n t .  S t u d e n t s  s h a l l  b e  a s s u r e d  t h a t  t h e y  n e e d  
n o t  e n d u r e  a n y  fo r m  o f  s e x u a l  b e h a v i o r  o r  c o m m u n i c a t i o n ,  i n c l u d i n g  h a r a s s m e n t  
b e c a u s e  o f  s e x u a l  o r i e n t a t i o n .  T h e y  s h a l l  f u r t h e r  b e  a s s u r e d  t h a t  t h e y  n e e d  n o t  e n d u r e ,  
f o r  a n y  r e a s o n ,  a n y  h a r a s s m e n t  t h a t  i m p a i r s  t h e  e d u c a t i o n a l  e n v i r o n m e n t  o r  
a  s tudent ' s  emot iona l  wel l -be ing a t  school .  

An y  s t ud e n t  wh o  e n ga ge s  i n  t h e  se x u a l  h a r a s s me n t  o f  a n yo ne  a t  sc ho o l  o r  a  sc ho o l -
r e l a t ed  a c t i v i t y  s ha l l  b e  s ub j e c t  t o  d i sc ip l i na r y  ac t io n .  Fo r  s t ud e n t s  i n  g r ad e s  K -3 ,  t h i s  
d i sc i p l i na r y  ac t io n  s h a l l  d e p e nd  o n  t h e  ma t ur i t y  o f  t h e  s t ud e n t s  a nd  t he  c i r c u ms t a nc e s  
i n vo l v ed .  Fo r  s t ud e n t s  i n  g r ad e s  4  t h ro u g h  1 2 ,  t he  d i s c ip l i na r y  a c t io n  ma y  i nc l ud e  
s u sp e n s io n  a nd /o r  e xp u l s io n .  

An y e mp lo yee  who  engages  in ,  p ermi t s  o r  fa i l s  to  rep or t  sexual  har a ssment  sha l l  b e 
sub j ec t  to  d i sc ip l inary ac t io n  up  to  and  inc lud ing  d i smissa l .  I n  add i t io n ,  c r imina l  o r  c iv i l  
cha rges  may b e  b ro ught  aga ins t  t he  a l l eged  hara sse r ;  sexua l  ha ra ssment  a l so  may  
b  e  considered a  vio la t ion o f  laws re la t ing to  chi ld  abuse .  

S tud e n t s  s ha l l  b e  in fo rmed  tha t  t he y s ho u ld  im med ia t e l y  co n tac t  a  s t a f f  me mb er  i f  t he y  
fee l  t he y a r e  b e in g  ha r a ssed .  W i th i n  2  4  ho ur s ,  s t a f f  sha l l  r ep o r t  comp la in t s  o f  sex ua l  
ha r a ss me nt  t o  t he  p r inc ip a l  o r  d e s ignee  o r  t o  ano the r  D i s t r i c t  ad min i s t r a to r .  S t a f f  sha l l  
s i mi l a r l y  r ep o r t  an y  s u ch  i nc id en t s  t he y  ma y  o b se rve ,  even  i f  t he  ha r a ssed  s t ud en t  ha s  
no t  co mp la ined .  (EC 2  1  2  . 6 )  

T h e  p r i n c i p a l  o r  d e s ig n e e  s h a l l  i m m e d i a t e l y  i n v e s t i g a t e  a n y  r e p o r t  o f  t h e  s e x u a l  
h a r a s s me n t  o f  a  s t u d e n t .  U p o n  v e r i fy i n g  t h a t  s e x u a l  h a r a s s me n t  o c c u r r e d ,  h  e /  s h e  
s h a l l  e n s u r e  t h a t  a p p r o p r i a t e  a c t i o n  i s  p r o mp t l y  t a k e n  t o  e n d  t h e  h a r a s s me n t ,  a d d r e ss  
i t s  e f f e c t s  o n  t h e  p e r s o n  s u b j e c t ed  to  t h e  h a r a ss me n t ,  a n d  p r e v e n t  a n y  fu r t h e r  i n s t a n c e s  
o f  t h e  h a r a s s me n t .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  s t u d e n t  ma y  f i l e  a  f o r ma l  c o mp l a i n t  w i t h  t h e  
S u p e r i n t e n d e n t  o r  d e s i g n e e  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  wi t h  t h e  D i s t r i c t ' s  u n i fo r m c o mp l a i n t  
p r o c e d u r e s .  

T he  Di s t r i c t  p ro h ib i t s  r e t a l i a to ry b e hav io r  ag a ins t  a n y  co mp la i nan t  o r  an y p a r t i c ip an t  
i n  t he  co mp la i n t  p ro cess .  I n fo r ma t io n  r e l a t ed  t o  a  co mp la i n t  o f  se x ua l  ha r a ss me nt  s ha l l  
b e  co nf id en t i a l  t o  t he  e x ten t  p o ss ib l e ,  and  ind i v id ua l s  i n vo l ved  in  t he  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 171



Page 2 of 3 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 

inves t iga t io n o f  such a  co mpla in t  sha l l  no t  d i scuss  re l a ted  in format ion out s ide  the  
inves t iga t io n p rocess .  
Legal Reference:  
EDUCATION CODE 
2 0 0 -2 6 2 .4 Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion 
4 8  9  0  0  .2  Addi t ional  grounds for  suspension or  expulsion;  sexual  harassment  
4 8 9 0 4 Liability of p ar en t/ gu ar d ian for willful student misconduct 
4 8 9 8 0 Notice at beginning of term  
CIVIL CODE 
5  1  .9  Liab i l i ty fo r  sexual  harassment ;  bus iness ,  se rvice and  profess ional  re la t ionships 
1 7 1 4 .1 Liability of p ar en ts/ gu ar d ian s for willful misconduct o f m in or  
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4670 Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965 Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 2 0 
1221 Application of laws 
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1 6 8 1 - 1 6 8 8 Title IX, Discrimination  
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 4 2 
1983 Civil action for deprivation of rights 
2 0 0 0 d - 2 0 0 0 d -7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1 9 6 4 
2 0 0 0 e - 2 0 0 0 e-1 7 Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1 9 6 4 as amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 3 4 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
1 0 6 .1 - 1 0 6 .7 1 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs 
COURT DECISIONS 
Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education (1 9 9 9 ) No. 9 7 -8 4 3 , 1 9 9 9 U.S. Lexis 3 4 5 2 , 
-- U.S.--  
Geb ser v. Lago Vista Independent School District (1 9 9 8 ) 1 1 8 S.Ct. 1 9 8 9 
Nab ozn y v. Pod lesn y (1 9 9 6 , 7 th Cir .) 9 2 F.3 d 4 4 6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 172

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/137736/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/376750/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187020/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187039/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/187041/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/244922/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/189929/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/189959/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191103/5
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/191132/5


Page 3 of 3 . Adopted: November 6, 1997 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2/97 

 
Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Students Policy # 5 1 4 5 .7 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT Mandated Policy 
 
Doe v. Petaluma City School District (1 9 9 5 , 9 th Cir .) 5 4 F.3 d 1 4 4 7 
Oon a R.-S. etc. v. Santa Rosa City Schools et al (1 9 9 5 ) 8 9 0 F.Su p p . 1 4 5 2 
Rosa H. v. San Elizar io Ind. School District, (W.D. Tex. 1 9 9 5 ) 8 8 7 F. Su p p . 1 4 0 , 1 4 3 
Clyde K. v. Puyallup School District # 3 (1 9 9 4 ) 3 5 F.3 d 1 3 9 6 
Patricia H. v. Berkeley Unified School District (1 9 9 3) 8 3 0 F.Su p p . 1 2 8 8 
Franklin v. Gwin n et County Schools (1 9 9 2 ) 1 1 2 S. Ct. 1 0 2 8 
Kelson v. City of Springfield, Oregon (1 9 8 5,9 th Cir.) 7 6 7 F.2 d 6 5 1 
Management  Reso urces :  
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL 
Pro tec t ing  Stud en t s  f rom Harassment  and  Ha te  Cr ime :  A Guid e  fo r  Scho ol s ,  J anuary  
1 9 9 9 
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS 
Sexual Harassment Guidance, 6 2 FR 4 9, 1 9 9 7 
WEB SITES 
OCR: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OCR 

 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 173



 

Page 1 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

The Pacific Grove Unified School District recognizes that homework is an integral part of the 

instructional process for all students particularly when such work is directed to develop the student’s 

ability to work independently, to improve and reinforce skills taught in the classroom, and to establish 

and promote integration of learned material and content with independent and conceptual thinking 

and decision-making skills. 

Homework allows a student to practice skills and concepts learned in the classroom. Homework 

assignments can include, but are not limited to, completion of work begun in the classroom, creation 

of various projects, exploration of subjects and materials, and various mechanisms which reinforce 

skills taught in the basic curriculum. 

Homework involves the cooperative efforts of the District, teacher, student and parents. The District 

is expected to establish and maintain an academic curriculum (courses that require written work) 

which will benefit from the application of homework assignments for students. 

The teacher is expected to develop and implement a homework assignment program with written 

objectives which are given to both students and parents, which enhance independent study skills, and 

which will assist the student in meeting the objectives of the District’s instructional standards of 

expected pupil achievement. Teachers are also expected to evaluate homework assignments and 

return it to students in a timely manner. 

The student is expected to accept responsibility for his/her completion of assignments in a timely 

manner to the best of his/her ability. 

Parents are expected to assist the teacher and student by incorporating homework time into the family 

routine, providing a quiet study area for the student in the home, by expecting the student to fulfill the 

assignment responsibilities, and by contacting the school when questions regarding homework and 

student performance arise. 

In general, homework assigned at the elementary grade levels is expected to take 10 minutes per 

grade level. For example, 10 minutes for Kindergarten, 20 minutes for first, 30 minutes for 

second....60 minutes for Fifth. Assignments may include such things as reading, writing, math, and 

special projects which both reinforce basic skills learning and enhance the student’s ability to work on 

an independent basis. 

In general, homework assigned at the middle school level is expected to require approximately twenty 

minutes per academic class, or approximately two hours of the student’s time outside of the school 

day on a regular basis. Homework may be specific to the content of a subject and is expected to 

incorporate reading, writing, and critical thinking skills application. 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 174



 

Page 2 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

In general, homework assigned at the high school level is expected to require approximately thirty 

minutes per academic class or approximately two to three hours of the student’s time outside of the 

school day on a regular basis. Homework may be specific to the content of a subject and is expected 

to incorporate reading, writing, and critical thinking and independent study skills development and 

application. 

Because individual student abilities differ and because students vary in abilities to use class time 

productively, variances in times spent by individual students in assignments outside of the school 

day may occur and homework can be differentiated to meet individual student learning needs. 

Homework shall be assigned to a student suspended from school so that he/she may keep up with the 

progress of his/her classes. The homework assigned during suspension will be graded and assessed 

and the student will receive credit for that work. 

The Superintendent shall be responsible for the development of procedures to ensure that this policy 
is implemented at all school sites. 

Make-up Work 

Students shall be given the opportunity to make up school work missed because of an excused 

absence and shall receive full credit for work that is turned in according to a reasonable make-up 

schedule. As determined by the teacher, the assignments and test shall be reasonably equivalent to, 

but not necessarily identical to, the assignments and test missed during the absence. (Education 

Code 48205) 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians that no student may have his/her grade 

reduced or lose academic credit for any excused absence when missed assignments and tests are 

satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time. Such notification shall include the full 

text of Education Code 48205. (Education Code 48980)  

The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete any 

assignments and tests missed during the suspension. (Education Code 48913)  

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

8420-8428 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens 

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 175

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132242/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288499/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288506/6


 

Page 3 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 

Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District  

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

8482-8484.65 After School Education and Safety Program 

8484.7-8484.9 21st Century Community Learning Centers 

48205 Absences for personal reasons 

48913 Completion of work missed by suspended student 

48913.5 Homework assignments for suspended students 
48980 Parental notifications 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

7171-7176 21st Century Community Learning Centers 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of Grades, Governance Brief, 

July 2016 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California State PTA: http://www.capta.org  

REDLINE ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 176

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/291737/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1007030/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/291773/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/387871/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132242/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/302789/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/395598/6
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.capta.org/


Page 1 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

The Pacific Grove Unified School District recognizes that homework is an integral part of the 
instructional process for all students particularly when such work is directed to develop the student’s 
ability to work independently, to improve and reinforce skills taught in the classroom, and to establish 
and promote integration of learned material and content with independent and conceptual thinking 
and decision-making skills. 

Homework allows a student to practice skills and concepts learned in the classroom. Homework 
assignments can include, but are not limited to, completion of work begun in the classroom, creation 
of various projects, exploration of subjects and materials, and various mechanisms which reinforce 
skills taught in the basic curriculum. 

Homework involves the cooperative efforts of the District, teacher, student and parents. The District 
is expected to establish and maintain an academic curriculum (courses that require written work) 
which will benefit from the application of homework assignments for students. 

The teacher is expected to develop and implement a homework assignment program with written 
objectives which are given to both students and parents, which enhance independent study skills, and 
which will assist the student in meeting the objectives of the District’s instructional standards of 
expected pupil achievement. Teachers are also expected to evaluate homework assignments and 
return it to students in a timely manner. 

The student is expected to accept responsibility for his/her completion of assignments in a timely 
manner to the best of his/her ability. 

Parents are expected to assist the teacher and student by incorporating homework time into the family 
routine, providing a quiet study area for the student in the home, by expecting the student to fulfill the 
assignment responsibilities, and by contacting the school when questions regarding homework and 
student performance arise. 

In general, homework assigned at the elementary grade levels is expected to take 10 minutes per 
grade level. For example, 10 minutes for Kindergarten, 20 minutes for first, 30 minutes for 
second....60 minutes for Fifth. Assignments may include such things as reading, writing, math, and 
special projects which both reinforce basic skills learning and enhance the student’s ability to work on 
an independent basis. 

In general, homework assigned at the middle school level is expected to require approximately twenty 
minutes per academic class, or approximately two hours of the student’s time outside of the school 
day on a regular basis. Homework may be specific to the content of a subject and is expected to 
incorporate reading, writing, and critical thinking skills application. 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 177



Page 2 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

In general, homework assigned at the high school level is expected to require approximately thirty 
minutes per academic class or approximately two to three hours of the student’s time outside of the 
school day on a regular basis. Homework may be specific to the content of a subject and is expected 
to incorporate reading, writing, and critical thinking and independent study skills development and 
application. 

Because individual student abilities differ and because students vary in abilities to use class time 
productively, variances in times spent by individual students in assignments outside of the school 
day may occur and homework can be differentiated to meet individual student learning needs. 

Homework shall be assigned to a student suspended from school so that he/she may keep up with the 
progress of his/her classes. The homework assigned during suspension will be graded and assessed 
and the student will receive credit for that work. 

The Superintendent shall be responsible for the development of procedures to ensure that this policy 
is implemented at all school sites. 

Make-up Work 

Students shall be given the opportunity to make up school work missed because of an excused 
absence and shall receive full credit for work that is turned in according to a reasonable make-up 
schedule. As determined by the teacher, the assignments and test shall be reasonably equivalent to, 
but not necessarily identical to, the assignments and test missed during the absence. (Education 
Code 48205) 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians that no student may have his/her grade 
reduced or lose academic credit for any excused absence when missed assignments and tests are 
satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time. Such notification shall include the full 
text of Education Code 48205. (Education Code 48980)  

The teacher of any class from which a student is suspended may require the student to complete any 
assignments and tests missed during the suspension. (Education Code 48913)  

Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

8420-8428 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens 

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 178

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132242/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288499/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/288506/6


Page 3 of 3 . Adopted: March 5, 1998 
Revision: June 4, 2020 

All Rights Reserved by PGUSD CSBA: 2 / 9 9 

Pacific Grove Unified School District 

Instruction Policy # 6 1 5 4 

 

HOMEWORK/ MAKEUP WORK 

8482-8484.65 After School Education and Safety Program 

8484.7-8484.9 21st Century Community Learning Centers 

48205 Absences for personal reasons 
48913 Completion of work missed by suspended student 
48913.5 Homework assignments for suspended students 
48980 Parental notifications 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 

7171-7176 21st Century Community Learning Centers 

Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of Grades, Governance Brief, 
July 2016 

WEB SITES 

CSBA: http://www.csba.org  

California State PTA: http://www.capta.org  

FINAL ACTION/DISCUSSION G

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 179

http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/291737/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/1007030/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/291773/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/387871/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/138126/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/132242/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/226041/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/302789/6
http://gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/395598/6
http://www.csba.org/
http://www.capta.org/


☐Consent  
☐Information/Discussion 
☒Action/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: Board Calendar/Future Meetings 
 
DATE:  June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board review and possibly modify the schedule of meeting dates on 
the attached calendar and determine, given information from the Administration, whether additional Board 
dates or modifications need to be established.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Board has approved Bylaw 9320, which states that regular Board meetings be held on the first and third 
Thursday of each month, from August through June. At the annual organizational meeting held in December, 
Trustees approves the meeting calendar as presented. The calendar is reviewed at each Board meeting.  
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Changes to the Board meeting dates must be approved by a majority vote of the Trustees.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 180



Board Meeting Calendar, 2019-20 School Year 
 

 
Jan. 16 

Regular Board Meeting Adult School 
 Report on Governor’s Budget Proposal                                           (School Site Visit)                  
 Preliminary Enrollment Projection for 2020-21 
 Property Tax Update 

Jan. 23 Regular Board Meeting Community High School 
 School Accountability Report Cards                                                (School Site Visit)                                                                           

 
 
Feb. 13 
 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Budget Development Calendar 
 Possible Personnel Action Presented as Information 
 Preliminary Review of Site Master Schedules 
 Possible Personnel Action (RIF) 
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 

 
Mar. 5 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Second Interim Report 
 Budget Revision #3 
 Open House Schedules Reviewed 
 TRAN Resolution  

 
Mar. 19 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Budget Projections and Assumptions 
 Williams/Valenzuela Uniform Complaint Report 

 
Apr. 2 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 
 Approve 2020-21 Aug.- Dec. Board Meeting Calendar  
 Quarterly District Safety Update 

 
April 23 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Review of Site Master Schedules 
 Review of Strategic Plan and LCAP (as needed) 
 California Day of the Teacher 
 Week of the CSEA Employee 
 Begin Superintendent Evaluation 

 
May 7 

Regular Board Meeting  District Office 
 Continue Superintendent Evaluation 
 Governance Handbook 2020-21 

 
May 21 
 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Complete Superintendent’s Evaluation 
 Review Governor’s Revised Budget 
 Suspensions/Expulsions Annual Report 

 
June 2  
*Special 
Board 
Meeting 

Special Board Meeting District Office 
 Re-Opening/ Distance Learning Update 
 

 
June 4 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 2020-21 Budget Public Hearing/Adoption 
 Retiree Recognition 

 
June 18 

Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Approval of Contracts and Purchase Orders for 2020-21 
 Review of Legal Services Costs  
 Solicitation of Funds Report 
 Consolidated Application 

 
* Quarterly Facilities Projects Update as needed  

 

 

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 181



Board Meeting Calendar, 2020-21 School Year 
 

 
Aug. 20 

 
Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Student Enrollment Update 
 Back to School Night Dates 
 Property Tax Report 
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 
 Quarterly District Safety Update*  

 
Sept. 3 

 
Regular Board Meeting  Forest Grove 
 Unaudited Actual Report (School Site Visit) 
 Budget Revision #1 
 Local Control Accountability Plan Review 

 
Sept. 17 

 
Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Williams Uniform Complaint Report 

Sept. 26 
*Saturday  
9am-12pm 

Special Board Meeting District Office 
 Board Goals – Review/Revise    
 Strategic Plan – Review/Revised                                                                                                     

 
Oct. 1 

 
Regular Board Meeting Robert Down 
   Superintendent’s Goals                                                                    (School Site Visit)   
 Bus Ridership 
 Week of the School Administrator 

 
Oct. 22 
 

 
Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 Quarterly District Safety Update*                                                  
 Budget Revision #2 on 2020-21 Working Budget (Preliminary First Interim) 

 
Nov. 12 

 
Regular Board Meeting  Middle School 
 PGHS Course Bulletin Information/Discussion  (School Site Visit) 

 
Nov. 19 

 
Regular Board Meeting  High School  
 Intent Form Due (to serve as Board President or Vice President)  (School Site Visit) 
 Review of Special Education Contracts                                           
 Quarterly Facilities Project Updates* 
 LCAP Public Hearing  

 
Dec. 10 
 

 
Regular Board Meeting District Office 
 First Interim Report 
 Budget Revision #3 
 Adoption of LCAP  

 
Dec. 17 
 

 
Organizational Meeting District Office 
 Election of 2020-21 Board President and Clerk 
 PGHS Course Bulletin Action/Discussion 
 Williams Uniform Complaint Report 
 Employee Recognition 
 Review of Legal Services Costs  
 Solicitation of Funds Report 

*Quarterly District Safety Update and Quarterly Facilities Projects Update as needed  

ACTION/DISCUSSION H

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 182



☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: District Update on Response to COVID-19 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 

 
INFORMATION: 
 
The District Administration will update the Board, staff and community on current District response and 
protocols to COVID-19. 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 183



☐Consent  
☐Action/Discussion 
☒Information/Discussion 
☐Public Hearing 

 
SUBJECT: Future Agenda Items 
 
DATE: June 4, 2020 
 
PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE:  Ralph Gómez Porras, Superintendent 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Administration recommends that the Board review the list of future agenda items and direct 
Administration to add items to the list and/or schedule items for a particular agenda. 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Board Bylaw 9322 states in part that “Any member of the public or any Board member may request that a 
matter within the jurisdiction of the Board be placed on the agenda of a regular meeting.  The request 
[from a member of the public] must be …. submitted to the Superintendent or designee with supporting 
documents and information …” 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Board members have the opportunity at the end of Open Session in a Regular Board meeting to request 
that items be added to the list for a future meeting.  Depending upon the timeliness of the item, it may 
also be assigned a particular meeting date. 
 
The following is a list of future agenda items as of the June 4, 2020 Regular Board Meeting: 
 

• A member of the public requested Dual Language Elementary Program (TBD) 
• Board requested teacher housing (TBD) 
• Board requested review of current District committees (Will be addressed through District 

Newsletter/Update) 
• A member of the public requested SELPA present on Special Education (Fall 2020) 
• Board requested utility bills costs (electric and water) by school site (2020-21) 

 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION B

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 184



 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 
 

 

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 185



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 186



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 187



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 188



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 189



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 190



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 191



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 192



2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
actual actual actual actual actual actual budgeted budgeted

Categorical Funding 1,781,245  1,374,691  2,284,370  1,707,802  1,840,064  1,800,451  1,338,201  1,223,898  
   change (1,233,767)    (406,554)       909,679        (576,568)       132,262        (39,613)         (462,250)       (114,303)       
Enrollment (CBEDS) 2,051         2,015         2,083         2,082         2,088         2,031         1,975         1,968         
   change (13)               (36)               68                (1)                 6                  (57)                (56)                (7)                  
Staffing 212.6         211.4         221.8         230.1         236.2         247.5         250.9         250.9         
   change 12.3              (1.2)              10.4              8.3               6.1               11.4              3.4                -                
Class Size 21.6           20.5           21.4           20.9           20.5           20.4           20.4           20.4           
   change (1.3)              (1.1)              0.9               (0.5)              (0.4)              (0.1)               -                (0.1)               
Step-and-Column Costs 31,741       39,483       54,999       147,368     100,911     100,911     191,573     191,573     
   change (105,973)       7,742            15,516          92,369          (46,457)        -                90,662          -                
Health Care Plan (single) 679.28       692.87       727.51       749.00       801.00       851.00       954.00       954.00       
   change 18.4% 2.0% 5.0% 3.0% 6.9% 6.2% 12.1% 0.0%
Site Allocations 272,030     265,750     273,990     285,670     295,920     287,737     281,280     271,134     
   change 1,190            (6,280)          8,240            11,680          10,250          (8,183)           (6,457)           (10,146)         
Property Tax Revenue 20,283,021   21,005,314   22,231,404   23,542,062   24,945,648   26,573,259   28,129,637   29,254,822   
   change 875,798        722,293        1,226,089     1,310,658     1,403,586     1,627,611     1,556,378     1,125,185     
Contrib to Rest. Program 4,321,146  3,773,938  3,845,174  3,838,685  4,480,719  5,298,788  5,401,185  -             
   change (163,935)       (547,208)       71,236          (6,489)          642,034        818,068        102,397        (5,401,185)    
Mandated Costs 71,314       133,812     1,033,242  445,293     293,305     436,319     79,086       79,086       
   change 12,128          62,498          899,430        (587,949)       (151,988)       143,014        (357,233)       -                
Bus Ridership 339            316            333            255            253            236            186            186            
   change 37                (23)               17                (78)               (2)                 (17)                (50)                -                
Meals Served 111,579     111,672     123,629     122,102     123,336     117,820     120,978     123,398     
   change 4,370            93                11,957          (1,527)          1,234            (5,516)           3,158            2,420            
Free and Reduced Meals 18.0% 19.8% 19.3% 16.5% 20.0% 19.1% 20.6% 20.6%
   change -2.8% 1.8% -0.5% -2.9% 3.5% -0.9% 1.5% 0.0%
General Fund Reserve % 12.4% 12.5% 16.7% 17.4% 12.6% 12.1% 12.3% 14.8%
   change -1.0% 0.1% 4.2% 0.7% -4.8% -0.5% 0.2% 2.5%
Surplus (Deficit) 262,613     241,697     1,607,862  58,291       (739,727)    367,317     124,223     804,647     
   change 1,133,559     (20,916)        1,366,165     (1,549,571)    (798,018)       1,107,044     (243,094)       680,424        
Ongoing Salary Increases 2.25% 2.25% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% 3.20% 0.00% 0.00%
One-time Salary Increases
STRS Employer % 8.25% 8.88% 10.73% 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 17.10% 18.40%
Cost  1,077,240  1,127,512  2,575,674  2,961,704  3,502,696  4,115,746  4,394,914  4,628,990  
   change 53,797       50,272       1,448,162  386,031     540,992     613,050     279,168     234,076     
PERS Employer % 11.44% 11.77% 11.80% 13.90% 15.53% 18.06% 19.72% 22.68%
Cost 456,473     478,676     544,430     673,279     810,393     1,044,666  1,606,322  1,860,487  
   change (205,081)    22,203       65,754       128,849     137,114     234,273     561,656     254,165     
Ending Fund Balances
Fund 01 - General Fund 3,538,700     3,686,012     5,240,889     5,387,880     4,597,288     4,696,366     4,820,592     5,643,670     
Fund 11 - Adult Education 78,414          34,670          774,914        1,693,433     2,336,590     2,005,884     801,393        805,084        
Fund 12 - Child Developmen 279               4,590            63,531          83,284          108,280        37,885          40,209          44,861          
Fund 13 - Cafeteria Fund 7,613            8,785            8,680            9,929            13,766          11,778          5,127            14,408          
Fund 14 - Deferred Maintena 883,527        462,580        380,180        94,526          26,040          5,571            43,143          101,565        
Fund 20 - Post Employment 136,761        156,788        177,493        199,078        5,860            6,034            6,059            6,084            
Fund 21 - Building Fund 730,364        2,060,698     542,106        1,864,324     1,504,309     951,155        306,155        1,578,671     
Fund 40 - Capital Projects 548,627        636,191        571,955        376,097        10,636          136,813        152,806        179,596        
Total Ending Fund Balan 5,924,287     7,050,315     7,759,749     9,708,550     8,602,769     7,851,485     6,175,483     8,373,938     

Budget Details

Pacific Grove Unified School District

2
Updated 5-28-2020Budget 19-20 (as of 06-4-20) - Budget revisions  Details Updated automatically

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 193



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 194



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 195



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 196



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 197



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 198



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 199



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 200



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 201



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 202



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 203



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 204



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 205



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 206



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 207



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 208



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 209



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 210



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 211



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 212



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 213



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 214



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 215



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 216



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 217



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 218



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 219



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 220



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 221



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 222



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 223



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 224



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 225



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 226



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 227



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 228



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 229



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 230



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 231



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 232



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 233



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 234



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 235



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 236



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 237



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 238



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 239



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 240



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 241



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 242



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 243



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 244



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 245



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 246



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 247



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 248



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 249



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 250



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 251



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 252



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 253



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 254



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 255



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 256



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 257



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 258



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 259



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 260



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 261



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 262



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 263



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 264



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 265



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 266



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 267



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 268



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 269



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 270



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 271



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 272



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 273



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 274



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 275



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 276



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 277



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 278



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 279



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 280



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 281



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 282



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 283



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 284



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 285



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 286



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 287



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 288



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 289



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 290



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 291



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 292



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 293



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 294



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 295



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 296



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 297



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 298



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 299



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 300



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 301



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 302



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 303



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 304



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 305



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 306



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 307



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 308



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 309



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 310



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 311



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 312



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 313



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 314



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 315



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 316



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 317



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 318



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 319



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 320



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 321



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 322



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 323



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 324



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 325



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 326



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 327



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 328



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 329



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 330



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 331



APPENDIX A

PGUSD Regular Meeting of June 4, 2020 332


	AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS
	CONSENT
	Minutes of May 21, 2020
	Certificated Assignment Order #18
	Classified Assignment Order #16
	MOU NMCUSD Independent Study Program

	PUBLIC HEARING I
	PGTA Tentative Agreement

	ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEM A
	PGTA Tentative Agreement

	PUBLIC HEARING II
	District Budget for 2020-21

	ACTION/DISCUSSION
	Adoption of District Budget for 2020-21
	COVID-19 Operations Written Report
	Adoption of Precalculus Textbook for 12th Grade Math
	Options for July Feeding During COVID-19 Pandemic
	Approval of Measure A Education Technology Expenditures
	Updates to Board Policies, Regulations, and Exhibits from the Parents Rights Handbook 2020-21
	Board Calendar/Future Meetings

	INFORMATION/DISCUSSION
	Update on Response to COVID-19
	Future Agenda Items

	APPENDIX
	District Budget 2020-21

	Board Agenda FINAL 06-04-20 REVISED.pdf
	DATE: Thursday, June 4, 2020
	LOCATION: VIRTUAL MEETING
	Pacific Grove Unified School District Office
	435 Hillcrest Avenue
	Pacific Grove, CA 93950
	AGENDA AND ORDER OF BUSINESS




